» o

|
» CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs

Notice of meeting of

Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel

To: Councillors Steve Galloway (Executive Member), Reid
(Executive Member), Vassie (Chair), Simpson-Laing
(Vice-Chair), D'Agorne, Holvey, Hyman and Merrett

Date: Monday, 17 July 2006
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: Guildhall

AGENDA

Notice to Members - Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10:00 am on Friday, 14™ July 2006, if an item is called in before a
decision is taken, or

4:00 pm on Wednesday, 19" July 2006, if an item is called in after a
decision has been taken.

ltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this
agenda.

YORKP RIDE www.york.gov.uk



Minutes (Pages 1 - 14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive
Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel held on 7™ June
2006.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or
an issue within the Panel’s remit can do so. Anyone who wishes
to register or requires further information is requested to contact
the Democracy Officer on the contact details listed at the foot of
this agenda. The deadline for registering is Friday, 14" July 2006
at 10am.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting
during consideration of Annex B to agenda item 14 - ‘Tenders for
Provision of Subsidised Bus Services’ on the grounds that it
contains information relating to ‘the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that
information)’. This information is classed as exempt under
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government
(Access to information) (Variation) Order 20086.

BUSINESS FOR THE EXECUTIVE LEADER

ITEMS FOR DECISION

Science City York: Future Direction (Pages 15 - 34)
The attached report (Annex A) was considered by the Economic
Development Partnership Board on 20 June 2006 and is now
brought to the Advisory Panel, together with additional
information relating to the use of £2.63m Northern Way funds, to
obtain endorsement for the Science City York action plan and to
authorise the submission of proposals for the Northern Way
funds on behalf of the Science City York partners.



BUSINESS FOR THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY

ITEMS FOR DECISION

6. Proposed improvements to the Moor Lane, (Pages 35 -
Askham Lane & Askham Bryan Lane Junctions 68)
on the A1237 York Outer Ring Road
The purpose of this report is to advise Members on the results of
the recent public consultation on the proposals to replace the
Moor Lane, Askham Lane and Askham Bryan Lane junctions on
the A1237 York outer ring road with a roundabout.

7. Public Rights Of Way — Proposed Diversion of (Pages 69 -

Part of Public Footpath, York (Dunnington) No9 74)

This report seeks authority to make the required order to divert
part of Public Footpath York (Dunnington) No9 from a cross-
garden section, to the driveway of the same property, using S119
of the Highways Act 1980. The Executive Member is
recommended to approve Option A and authorise the making of
the proposed public path diversion order.

8. Public Rights Of Way — Proposed Diversion of (Pages 75 -

Public Footpath, York (Murton) No4 80)

This report seeks authority to make the required order to divert
Public Footpath York (Murton) No4 from a cross field section, to
the headland of the same field, using S119 of the Highways Act
1980. The report recommends that the Executive Member
approves Option A and authorise the making of the proposed
public path diversion order.

9. City Strategy Capital Programme 2006/07 - (Pages 81 -
Consolidated to include Carry-Overs from 98)
2005/06
The purpose of this report is to consolidate the 2006/07
programme to include the carry-over schemes that were not
completed in 2005/06, and to make adjustments to schemes and
blocks to reflect individual underspends and overspends within
the programme. The report asks the Executive Member for City
Strategy to approve the amendments to the 2006/07 budget as
set out in the report.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Orders (Pages 99 -
184)

This report brings to Members attention requests for Traffic

Regulation Orders, the results of investigations and seeks

authority to advertise proposals where appropriate.

Automatic Teller Machine (ATM) Defensible (Pages 185
Space - 190)

This report brings to Members attention a request for markings
on the public highway at the Royal Bank of Scotland ATM in
Nessgate to improve security, and seeks approval to develop a
policy for when and where such markings are appropriate.

Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance (Pages 191

- 204)
This report provides a brief overview of the code of practice, ‘Well
Maintained Highways 2005’ and asks Members to approve the
policies determining standards of highway maintenance within
this authority, particularly where they vary from the
recommendations of the Code of Practice.

Code of Practice for Highway Lighting (Pages 205
Management - 214)

This report provides a brief overview of the code of practice ‘Well
Lit Highways November 2004’ and asks Members to note and
approve the recommended standards of highway lighting
management.

Tenders for Provision of Subsidised Bus (Pages 215
Services - 232)

This report asks the Executive Member to consider tenders
received for continuation of most bus services subsidised by the
Council, in either their existing or modified form, and to decide on
appropriate action in respect of the bus services involved.

Any other business which the Chair considers
urgent under the Local Government Act 1972



Democracy Officer

Rowan Hindley
Tel: 01904 552062
Email: rowan.hindley@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Minutes

MEETING EXECUTIVE MEMBERS FOR CITY STRATEGY
AND ADVISORY PANEL

DATE 7 JUNE 2006

PRESENT COUNCILLORS STEVE GALLOWAY (EXECUTIVE

MEMBER), VASSIE (CHAIR), HOLVEY, HYMAN,
D'AGORNE, HILL, SIMPSON-LAING (VICE-CHAIR),
BRADLEY AND MERRETT

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR REID

1.

Declarations of Interest

Members were invited to declare any personal or prejudicial interests they
may have in the business on this agenda.

Councillor Holvey declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
items 4 and 5 (Chief Executive’s Performance and Financial Year End
Report 2005/06 and Economic Development Programme 2006/07) as an
employee of Leeds City Council.

Councillors D’Agorne and Merrett declared a personal non-prejudicial
interest in agenda item 11 (Public Rights of Way — Petition Seeking
Closure of a Snicket Leading from Stratford Way, Huntington, onto New
Lane) in so far as discussion related to cycling as they were members of
the Cycling Touring Club and Cycling England.

Councillor D’Agorne declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 12 (Car Club — Update) as he had registered an interest in joining the
Car Club.

Minutes

RESOLVED: i) That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive
Leader and Advisory Panel held on 20 March 2006 be
approved and signed as a correct record;

i) That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive
Member for Planning and Transport and Advisory
Panel held on 28 February 2006 be approved and
signed as a correct record;

In answer to a question, Officers confirmed that the report back on Minute
83(iii) (The “Cycle Challenge” Project — Planning and Transport EMAP, 28
February 2006) would come back to the September meeting of the Panel.

Public Participation



Page 2

It was reported that there had been five registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Peter Garbutt, a resident of Stratford Way, Huntington spoke regarding
agenda item 11 (Public Rights of Way — Petition Seeking Closure of a
Snicket Leading from Stratford Way, Huntington, onto New Lane) (minute
11 refers). He requested Members to consider residents concerns
regarding crime and anti-social behaviour when looking at the
implementation of a Traffic Regulation Order and signing of the snicket.

Councillor David Scott, Ward Member spoke regarding agenda item 9
(Petition from the residents of St Philip’s Grove requesting traffic calming
or the road to be blocked off) (minute 9 refers). He referred to residents
perceptions of traffic dangers on St Philip’s Grove and their request that
members examine alternatives to Speed Watch.

Val Whittle, Denise Dodd and Heather Dolling all spoke regarding agenda
item 10 (Petition from residents of Copmanthorpe requesting a new
footway on Temple Lane) (minute 10 refers). Representations were made
on behalf of residents of Copmanthorpe regarding difficulties encountered
by residents in not having a footpath on Temple Lane. In particular they
referred to the narrow verge, lack of street lighting which made the area
more unsafe at night for use by residents and the Lanes regular use by
caravans and large agricultural vehicles.

Chief Executive’s Performance And Financial Year End Report 05/06

Members considered an out-turn report which informed them of the
2005/06 year end position on performance against actions and targets
relating to high level deliverables, critical success factors and Local and
Best Value Performance Indicators. The report also reported on the capital
and revenue financial out-turns for the Chief Executive’s Directorate.

Members questioned the Civic, Democratic & Legal Services under spend
in particular relating to the External Consultancy budget in Legal Services.
Concern was also expressed regarding the low number of performance
appraisals completed by the end of July, response times to Stage 3
complaints, project slippage on Ward Committee schemes and the reasons
for no savings being made in Corporate Human Resources.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised:

i) That the performance and financial out-turn position for
2005/06 be noted subject to carrying forward bids totalling
£80K as detailed in paragraph 58 of the report;

ii) Carrying forward £98K of capital slippage as outlined in
paragraph 60 of the report;



Page 3

ii) That Officers email Members of the Panel additional
information in relation to the following points

e Details of the under spend in the Safer Cities budget (Civic,
Democratic & Legal Services)

e York Pride Action Line (YPLA) customer contact
satisfaction details

e Reasons for lack of improvement in response times to
Stage 3 complaints (Customer First)

¢ No savings being made in the Corporate HR budget

e Details of the Ward Committee capital schemes which have
slipped

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and the
suggested decisions, above, be endorsed.

REASON: To prevent further slippage or non completion on the projects
and actions identified and to ensure that schemes can be
completed.

Economic Development Programme 2006/07

Members considered a report which set out key issues, priorities and
actions for the Economic Development Programme for 2006/07. The wider,
strategic framework for the Council’s economic development programme
which was provided by the "Thriving City” theme within the Community
Plan for 2004/014, for which the Economic Development Board had lead
responsibility.

Members questioned aspects of the points raised in the consultation
section of the report.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to approve the report and the
Economic Development Programme for 2006/07;

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
the suggested decision, be endorsed.

REASON: For the effective delivery of activity and achieving
corporate objectives.

2005/06 Economic Development Finance & Performance Outturn



Page 4

Members considered a report which set out draft out-turn figures for
Economic Development for capital and revenue expenditure for the
2005/06 financial year and the out-turn for 2005/06 performance against
target for a number of key indicators.

The key indicators were made up of
e Best Value Performance Indicators owned by Economic
Development
o Customer First targets (letter answering)
e Staff Management Targets (sickness absence)

In answer to Members concerns regarding the fall in take up of stalls on
Newgate Market Officers confirmed that an action plan had been prepared
and additional measures were being put in place to try and reverse the
decline.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

i) That the Executive Leader be advised to note the Economic
Development provisional performance, revenue and capital
out turn for 2005/06;

ii) That, subject to the approval of the Executive, the Executive

Leader be advised to approve the carry forward of the City
Centre Partnership budget as detailed in paragraph 10.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: In accordance with budgetary and monitoring
procedures.

The Electoral Administration Bill and Secondary Legislation

Members considered an update report on the Electoral Administration Bill
and secondary legislation and which put forward a bid for future
Government funding.

Officers confirmed that the Electoral Administration Bill was currently
before Parliament and sought to introduce significant changes to the
administration and conduct of electoral registration and elections. It was
expected that all the measures would be introduced in time for the May
2007 local government elections.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to approve the £40K funding set
aside for the Electoral registration budget for 2006/07



Page 5

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decision, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: In order to comply with and introduce the
measures which will be introduced by the
Electoral Administration Bill and secondary
legislation.

York Central Steering Board Update

Members considered a report, circulated following publication of the
agenda, which confirmed that good progress was being made on the York
Central project since the previous update in March 2006. Details were
reported of the meeting of the York Central Steering Board held on 19 May
2006 and it was indicated that the programme was on course to appoint a
developer in Spring 2007.

In answer to Members questions Officers confirmed that the majority of the
results of studies by environmental and rail consultants would be confined
to the Steering Board and that it was not anticipated that this information
would be made public.

Officers also confirmed that there may be possible funding available from
Yorkshire Forward to employee additional resources to shorten the
timescales involved in this scheme.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to note the contents of the report.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decision, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To keep Members updated with progress on the
York Central project.

Petition From The Residents Of St Philip’s Grove Requesting Traffic
Calming Or The Road To Be Blocked Off

Members considered a report which reported receipt of a petition from
residents of St Philip’s Grove, Clifton requesting traffic calming or the road
to be blocked off.

Officers outlined details of the “mean” speed used when undertaking the
speed survey on St Philip’s Grove which indicated that although the road
was perceived by residents as a “rat run” the evidence did not back this up.



Page 6

In answer to questions Officers confirmed that data from this survey would
be retained as a comparator for other streets.

Members requested that if the recommendation was approved that a
timescale should be set for reporting back on the success of the initiative.

Consideration was then given to the following options

1.

4.

Respond to resident’s concerns with the Community Speed Watch
initiative. The road safety team recognised that resident’s could feel
threatened by traffic speed even when data showed that there was
not a measurable speed problem. The initiative would help residents
to take a stance against any drivers who felt that it was acceptable
to drive too fast on St Philip’s Grove.

Implement traffic calming on St Philip’s Grove. However, road safety
capital expenditure was evidence led and the data did not justify
spending on physical measures.

. Block off St Philip’s Grove. The speed survey diud not justify this

course of action. Network Management would object to this option
as there was no safe location for any vehicle to turn around and
insufficient highway land to allow the construction of suitable
facilities at any point along its length. Without such facilities large
vehicles such as refuse wagons would either have to reverse into
the street and then up to the point of closure or reverse out. Either
scenario would put pedestrians and property at risk in St Philip’s
Grove and the latter would pose a safety problem at the two main
junctions.

Take no action.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised:

iv)

That the content of the petition be noted;

That approval be given to the Community Speed Watch initiative
in response to the petition;

That Officers reply to the lead petitioner on the outcome of the
report;

That Officers, in consultation with Ward Members, be given
delegated authority to consider a report on the success of the
initiative in 6 months.

Decision of the Executive Member




10.

Page 7

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To try and alleviate the perceived danger
problems on St Philip’s Grove and to empower
the residents in this respect.

Petition From Residents Of Copmanthorpe Requesting A New
Footway On Temple Lane

Consideration was given to a report which reported receipt of a petition
from residents of Copmanthorpe requesting a new footway link on Temple
Lane.

Officers confirmed that this scheme had been one of several put forward
as a result of the Copmanthorpe Village Traffic Study in 1999/2000 and
was included as a reserve scheme in the 2005/06 capital programme but
funding pressures meant the scheme was deferred. Feasibility work
undertaken at the time had shown several areas of concern that would
affect the cost of the scheme relating to the presence of utilities on the
verge, potential problems with drainage and the fact that land may have to
be acquired to provide a footway of sufficient width.

Local Members supported the provision of this essential link in the footway
and requested costing of the scheme and implementation as soon as
possible. Officers confirmed that in the short term a vehicle activated sign
was to be erected out of Ward Committee funds but that all aspects of
safety would be examined in the feasibility study which may include other
safety features.

Members considered the two options available

a) to investigate the costs of providing the footway by
commissioning further feasibility work, or;

b) to reject the proposal.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised:

i) That the contents of the petition be noted and Officers be asked
to commission further feasibility work ;

ii) That it be noted that the results of the feasibility work will be fed
into the annual scheme prioritisation process;

iii) That Officers reply to the lead petitioner on the Panels decision;

iv) That Officers report back to the Panel on the outcome of the
feasibility work.



11.

Page 8

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To contribute towards making Temple Lane,
Copmanthorpe safer for pedestrians.

Public Rights Of Way - Petition Seeking Closure of a Snicket Leading
from Stratford Way, Huntington, onto New Lane

Members considered a report which reported receipt of a petition signed by
70 residents living in Stratford Way, Huntington, requesting the closure of a
snicket leading from Stratford Way, Huntington. The request related to
problems encountered in the area with criminal activity and anti-social
behaviour.

Officers confirmed that the snicket was an adopted highway in the control
of the City of York Council and was therefore a public right of way. Its
purpose was to provide an emergency access and route for pedestrians
from New Lane into Stratford Way, which was a cul de sac.

Members questioned if the proposed gates would be adequate for disabled
users and complied with DDA (Disability Discrimination Act) guidelines, if
details were available of the incidences of crime in the area and whether
better signage could be erected.

Consideration was given to the following options

Option A. Do nothing and leave the snicket open to public use.

Option B. Use S118 of the Highways Act 1980 to close the snicket.

Option C.  Close the snicket by means of a Gating Order.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to accept Option
A and agree to

i) Note the petitioners’ request for closure; and

ii) Refuse the request on the grounds that there is presently no
available legislation, which would allow the closure of this
emergency access route.

iii) Explore the possibility of installing a metal construction
combined vehicle and pedestrian access gate at each end of the
snicket, which would still allow the lawful use by pedestrians,
cyclists and the emergency services, but deter unlawful use by



12.

Page 9

motorcyclists. Further consultations on the access gates to be
undertaken with local residents and Ward Members.

iv) Consider the effectiveness of the gates in 12 months time,
against updated crime statistics. If required, consider applying
for a Gating Order under the Clean Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005, in accordance with the revised City of
York Council Alleygating Policy, which is currently under review.

V) Refer the matters raised in the petition to North Yorkshire Police,
for them to try and address the problems faced by the residents
of Stratford Way, by the use of target led patrols in the area, in
line with new Neighbourhood Policing Team strategies.

vi)  Officers to investigate further the request for a Traffic Regulation
Order.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To try and alleviate problems with criminal
activity and anti social behaviour in this area as
there is presently no available legislation, which
would allow the closure of this emergency
access route.

Car Club - Update

Members considered an update report on the position regarding the city
car club project, the development of which had been contained within the
Council’'s second Local Transport Plan. Consideration was also given to a
further update report, circulated at the meeting, which detailed the
selection process undertaken in the choice of the final operator and the
Officers recommendation.

Officers displayed a map of the area which showed areas of the city where
surveys had been undertaken and positive interest received. The map also
showed new developments where Section 106 negotiations had taken
place, together with reasonably new development areas highlighted.

Members thanked Officers for progress made and the work undertaken in
the selection process for obtaining a operator for the club. They questioned
the type of vehicles proposed, length of partnership, the need for
consultation on how the vehicle bays would be marked up and consultation
with the Police on siting etc.

The report presented two options for consideration

a) Approval of the previous report agreed to a discounted tariff for
the bays in Council car parks. Subsequent officer consideration



13.

Page 10

of this (including discussions with the independent advisory
charity CarPlus), leads to the conclusion that the Council should
waive any tariff for at least the first 2 years of operation, with a
review after this period and then annually thereafter.

The alternative would be for the Council to impose a charge on
the operator for the designation of bays for sole use by car club
cars.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised

i)

To note the contents of this report, together with the
supplementary update made at the meeting.

To agree that a further progress report is presented in the
late Autumn.

Approve the appointment of WhizzGo as the selected
operator to provide a car club in York for a 5 year period.

To approve that for the first two years of operation no
parking tariff will be sought by the Council relating to car
club bays established within Council car parks. This will be
reviewed at the end of this period and annually thereafter.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be

accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To encourage the development of a car club in

the city in accordance with Council Policy and
wider objectives.

Planning And Transport Capital Programme 2005/06 — Outturn
Monitoring Report

Consideration was given to a report which set out progress on the major
schemes in the Planning and Transport capital programme during the
2004/06 financial year. This included reports on outturn for 2005/06 and
budget spend to the end of March 2006.

Members made the under mentioned comments in relation to the report

e Need to sort out parking problems related to the kerb height for
buses at the Low Ousegate bus stop.



14.

Page 11

e There were gaps in the CCTV system eg Nexus/Mcmillans which
needed addressing.

e Disappointment with aspects of the BLISS bus information system
displays.

e Haxby Station questioned progress with the scheme.

e Rufforth School Safety Zone, questioned overspend.

e Queen Street bridge cycle lane which was narrow and in close
proximity to railings.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to

i) note the significant progress made in 2005/06 in
implementing the Planning and Transport capital programme.

ii) note the financial implications indicated in paragraphs 132 -
133.

iii) approve the proposed funding of the overspend as indicated
in paragraph 132, subject to the approval of the Executive.

iv) approve the proposed carryovers as outlined in paragraphs
134 - 137, subject to the approval of the Executive.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To manage the Capital Programme effectively.
2005/06 Planning & Transport Finance & Performance Outturn Report

Members considered a report which presented the out turn figures for
revenue and capital expenditure for the Planning and Transport portfolio
together with the 2005/06 out turn performance against target for a number
of key indicators that were made up of the following

e Best Value Performance Indicators owned by Planning and
Transport

o Customer First targets (letter answering)

e Staff Management Targets (sickness absence)

Members expressed their thanks to Officers for the balancing the budget
and for the provisional out turn figures.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to approve the
financial and performance position of the portfolio.



15.

Page 12

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decision, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To update Members on the budgetary and
performance monitoring procedures.

Report on the performance of the Member Enquiry system - 2005
Members considered a report which set out the performance of the City
Strategy Member Enquiry system, based in Business and Policy
Development, from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005.

Officers referred to the increase in items received, improvements in
performance together with an increase in compliments received.

Members congratulated Officers on the significant improvements made to
the service.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised

i) To note the increase in performance and other key areas
from 2004 to 2005.

ii) To note the content of this report and to continue to support
the Member enquiry system.

Decision of the Executive Member

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be
accepted and the suggested decisions, above,
be endorsed.

REASON: To update the Executive Member on the
performance of the Member Enquiry System in
City Strategy.

S F GALLOWAY
Executive Leader



Page 13

A REID
Executive Member City Strategy

C VASSIE
Chair of Advisory Panel

The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 7.35 pm.



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda Item 5

COUNCIL

L

Meeting of the Executive Members for City 17July 2006
Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Science City York: Future Direction
Summary

1. The attached report (Annex A) was considered by the Economic Development
Partnership Board on 20 June 2006 and is now brought to the Advisory Panel,
together with additional information relating to the use of £2.63m Northern Way
funds, to obtain endorsement for the Science City York action plan and to
authorise the submission of proposals for the Northern Way funds on behalf of the
Science City York partners.

Background
2. The report covers 5 areas:

i) The Science City York four year plan which is subject to a £2.85 million
contract with Yorkshire Forward within the Sub Regional Investment Plan.

ii) The outputs emerging from the national Science Cities collaboration with
the other five Science Cities (Manchester, Newcastle, Birmingham,
Nottingham and Bristol), aiming to produce a joint agenda for action that
can be fed into the Government’s autumn Comprehensive Spending
Review.

iii) The latest stakeholder discussions between the Council, University and
Yorkshire Forward on whether a revised (more formal) partnership
arrangement is appropriate for the future.

iv) Details of the British Association for the Advancement of Science (BA)
Conference in September 2007.

V) Information on how Science City York is linking up with other service areas:
lifelong learning and skills, education, culture and tourism for example.

3 Discussion at the Economic Development Partnership Board covered the
following areas:

*

Science City York plays a central role in the economic strategy to generate
(in its own sector and elsewhere) quality employment opportunities for local
people — addressing under-employment that exists in the workforce and
providing progression routes to allow local people to enhance careers and



Page 16

improve incomes (50% of the workforce within the sector is recruited
locally).

Skills development work within schools and public awareness activity is
therefore an important element of future activity and needs to be a high
priority for the SCY Board.

Contact with schools (including primary schools) established at the annual
Festival of Science needs to be maintained and followed up through the
year. Again, this should be prioritised within future activity.

SCY is at the heart of economic policy for the city — aimed at strengthening
the economy through its knowledge base and creating sustainable
economic success around a balanced, diversified, economic base. It is
recognised that some of the outputs (business growth/jobs) generated by
will be located in other parts of the sub-region and city region/region — but it
is important to take action that will maximise the full potential of SCY in
order to retain York’'s competitive advantage. The city then needs to
provide accommodation for a range of business activity within the
immediate area in order to avoid becoming a purely research city — which
would not generate the wider employment opportunities that local people
need. The Northern Way funds enhance the potential of achieving this.
Benefits will, however, extend well outside the immediate York area.

The stakeholder discussions will need to be brought more formally into the
Council’s (and other partner’s) decision-making process — not least, in the
council’s case, reflecting the strategic role SCY plays within both city (LSP)
and council policy. It was confirmed that this would be taking place.

An outline of the proposals for the £2.63m capital funding from Northern Way was
given to the Economic Development Board. This funding has been made
available very recently and the development of proposals had not reached a stage
where detail could be incorporated in the report to the Board. Negotiations and
discussions with Yorkshire Forward/Northern Way are still in progress but it is now
possible to provide more detail and seek the authorisation to progress the plans
on behalf of Science City York.

The following extracts from the concept proposal put to Yorkshire Forward and
Northern Way provide that detail:

*

The Science City York (SCY) Business ‘Hub & Spoke’ is a major innovative
and integrated infrastructure project across the City of York to ensure the
continued growth and development of knowledge-based businesses
particularly in bioscience, digital and creative technology clusters. The
SCY ‘Hub & Spoke’ will provide specialist mentoring, incubation and grow-
on facilities at three key strategic business sites in order to support the
realisation of SCY’s vision of generating 15,000 new jobs by 2021. The
allocation of £2.63m from Northern Way will ensure that capital
requirements of this model can be allocated to support high specification
infrastructure within and across each strategic location as well as wider
links nationally.

The rationale for this model is supported through independent feasibility
assessments commissioned over the last 2 vyears which have



Page 17

demonstrated a significant business need to provide specialist dedicated
facilities and support for early stage knowledge-based ventures in order to
continue to maximise SCY’s track record in stimulating cluster and
business growth.

The key components of the SCY Business ‘Hub & Spoke’ concept includes:

1. SCY ‘Business Hub’ —providing specialist business mentoring and
support services to nurture early stage businesses - supported
through a North Yorkshire Sub Regional Investment Plan (SRIP)
£2.85m programme over the next 4 years which is currently
underway.

2. ‘Spoke Centres’ which include three strategic site locations:

o Digital & Creative Technologies Centre of c. 40,000 sq ft, at
Terry’s, the “Chocolate Works”

o Knowledge Venture Centre (again, around 40,000 sq ft), at
Vangarde

o Innovation & BioCentre Central, at York Science Park

The central part of the ‘Hub’ will be to embed a supportive culture, business
development and mentoring provision through SCY services based from
the city centre and at each ‘Spoke’. This has already a proven track record
and successful programme of intervention which is geared to meet the
needs of knowledge based businesses through each stage of company
growth — proof of concept funds, technology growth packages, technical
and business mentoring and all aspects of workforce development. This is
being scaled up through SRIP investment with £2.85m to further develop
the SCY model and deliver services within York and North Yorkshire, and
extend links into the Leeds City Region.

The concept for the Northern Way funding will be to offer in-depth services
on site at each ‘Spoke’, with specialist business ‘surgery’ space and to use
each facility as part of integrated model to gear business space
requirements at each site to support specific cluster needs. Each SCY
business ‘Spoke’ will incorporate high quality specification facilities, linked
virtually across the city, with scope for shared management infrastructure
and also having the potential to link with other Northern Way Science City
proposals.

The SCY Business ‘Hub & Spoke’ will be able to provide:-

e Bespoke specialist SCY mentoring services for early stage businesses

e Flexible high specification business space appropriate for creative and
knowledge based companies from hot desking services to flexible
space between 800-3,000 sq. ft.

e Meeting Room, Conference Room, Gallery and Networking facilities
with high specification broadband and IT services.

¢ Informal meeting space with catering facilities to be a focal point to
stimulate knowledge and collaboration between cluster businesses and
with Higher York partners.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 18

Each building will have due regard for environmental and sustainability
requirements as a key feature of their concept design.

Developers are on board with the proposals, and detailed discussions have
been taking place to enable a more detailed submission to be made to
Yorkshire Forward.

A possible fourth component may yet emerge, linked to the University, but
no details are yet available on this.

Consultation

Consultation within Science City York is built into the way that decisions are taken
through its Strategy Board, Committees and Cluster Groups. This ensures that
business and community interests are taken into account. The Economic
Development Partnership Board’s comments will also be fed back to the Science
City York Strategy Board.

The Northern Way proposals have the agreement of the SCY Strategy Board.
Options/Analysis

Again, this forms an integral part of the Science City York process — engaging with

partners through the cluster and networking activity to keep a clear focus on
demand and need.

York Corporate and LSP Objectives

See attached report.

Implications

Financial, HR, equalities, legal, and crime and disorder implications are covered
through the Council budgeting and service planning processes. There are no IT
implications.

Risk Management

See attached report.

The Northern Way proposals will involve a risk management assessment as part
of the business planning framework required by Yorkshire Forward. All costs will
be covered within the Science City York project budgets.

Recommendations
Members are asked to:

i) Give comments/advice on the issues covered in the report, to be fed back
to the Science City York Strategy Board.

ii) Support and endorse the actions being taken.



Page 19

iii) Give authorisation for the submission of the Northern Way proposals on
behalf of the Science City York partnership.

iv) Await a further report on the stakeholder discussions.

Reason: To ensure that SCY delivers and addresses both Council and Local
Strategic partnership objectives.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tony Bennett Bill Woolley

Assistant Director Economic Director of City Strategy

Development, and Group

Management Team

Phong NO: 01904 554420 Report Approved r3 Date 3 JU|y 2006
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All II'

For further information please contact the author of the report or Bryn Jones, Head of
Economic Development

Background Papers:

Annex — Report to Economic Development Board 20 June 2006



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21

YORK ANNEX A

Economic Development Partnership Board 20 June 2006

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Science City York: Future Direction

Summary

The report provides the Board with information on current and future plans for the
development of Science City York (SCY) which has been a key part of the city’s
economic strategy for the last 8 years. The Board is invited to provide their input
and comments, particularly the wider economic perspective in taking forward this
work through the Science City York Strategy Board. This reports covers the
following areas:-

. The current SCY 4 year business plan which has been agreed and
supported through the Sub Regional Investment Plan (SRIP). This delivers
intervention within clusters of: bioscience and health, IT & digital and
creative technologies.

. The outputs from joint work on the National Science Cities agenda, working
with the other five Science Cities — Newcastle, Manchester, Nottingham,
Birmingham and Bristol.

) The latest stakeholder discussions between the City of York Council, the
University of York and Yorkshire Forward on the development of Science
City York and its future partnership structure.

. Details on the British Association for the Advancement of Science (BA)
Conference in September 2007.

. SCY’s wider input into the economic agenda in areas which cover skills and
workforce development, schools and education synergies, public
engagement in science and links to tourism investment projects.

Background

The background for each of the five theme areas within this report are detailed
below:

SCY SRIP Business Plan

The current, agreed, Sub-Regional Investment Plan runs to March 2009, and SCY
has been identified as one the major priorities for investment in York as well as
rolling out activities across North Yorkshire. Over £2.85m has been secured for the
delivery of this integrated business plan which has been developed to build on the
success of the initiative to date in stimulating 2,600 employment opportunities and
70 new businesses. Annex A sets out the current 3 year budget profile, the

o1-



Page 22

detailed profile year 4 will be agreed with Yorkshire Forward later this year following
a 2 year review of the contract and performance.

This follows 18 months of liaison with partners and Yorkshire Forward, to take
forward Science City York activity within creative, science and technology sectors
through in-depth cluster work, business partnering, and supply chain and skills
development activity. The overall objective of this proposal is to continue and
accelerate the rate of business growth within York and to cascade benefits across
the local community and identify synergies within the wider North Yorkshire sub
region. This will include activity across the supply chain, fostering business start-
ups and spin-offs, workforce development and increasing learning opportunities.

The Business Plan aims to build capacity and expand Science City York (SCY)
activities within York and into North Yorkshire including:

. Providing mentoring to York’s growing high technology community and
helping to generate new businesses in key parts of North Yorkshire.

. Creating new employment opportunities in knowledge based sectors.

. Guiding education, training and skills needs to ensure the ongoing
development of local workforce science and technology skill base.

. Raising awareness of science and technology opportunities and fostering

international links and synergies.

Further details of the Action Plan and targets are set out in Annex B.

Science City York, as a partnership between the City of York Council, University of
York, private sector and Yorkshire Forward draws together all stakeholders within a
Strategy Board which meets every quarter. Science City York secures senior high-
level engagement in this Strategy Board as well as the supporting Committees
which advise on the direction of priorities and policies for cluster specific activities.
Each Committee draws together business, research and public inputs, with Chairs
rotated on an annual basis. This structure has just been reviewed, to reflect the
new Business Plan priorities. Annex C sets out the structure of the Science City
York Board and Committees.

As part of the new SRIP bid, a review of resources was required to undertake the
4-year programme. A report to Urgency Committee on 9 March 2006 set out the
new team structure for the delivery of the programme. Following Council HR policy,
a number of positions within the structure were filled through the ‘at risk process’,
the remaining 5 vacant positions have been advertised, with interviews scheduled
for late June 2006. Annex D sets out the current organisational chart.

Key issues that the Board might focus on include:

= The Action Plan priorities, and future objectives for the development of the
Science City York.

= Science City York’s role in the sub-region (and with the Leeds City Region and
wider region)

The Board’s views on these are invited — to be fed into the development and
planning of Science City York’s future priorities and delivery of outputs as
detailed in Annex B.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 23

National Science Cities Agenda

Following from the previous updates, Board Members will be aware that in the
budget report issued in March 2005, the Chancellor confirmed the Government’s
continued investment in science and technology to drive forward the UK’s position
in the global economy. As well as York, Manchester and Newcastle being promoted
by the Regional Development Agencies as ‘Science Cities’, other cities including
Bristol, Birmingham and Nottingham have also been confirmed as important drivers
for this initiative.

The budget report emphasised the importance of collaboration between the six
Science Cities in boosting regional centres of world-class scientific excellence and
creating closer regional links between industry and the public research base are
key to the Government’s long-term ambitions for science and innovation. Within the
budget statement it states:

“The Government will continue work with the science cities to explore how local,
regional, and national policies can best support the development of science
cities, in areas such as business-university collaboration, support for enterprise,
infrastructure development, skills and public engagement with science.”

The first national Science Cities workshop, held in York in September 2005,
brought together the six science cities to present their initial plans and formulate a
vision for the future development of science cities. These plans have been
developed in more detail in recent months, and a further national meeting was held
in Manchester in May 2006 to discuss further.

Consultants SQW have been commissioned by the six Science Cities to develop
proposals for policies which could be encouraged to further support Science Cities
in the promotion of knowledge-based economic development. SQW have worked
up draft policy proposals in discussion with the six cities and relevant parts of
Government. Each Science City is at different stages of partnership development,
with York as the most established partnership. Overall common themes have
emerged which address public awareness, planning, knowledge-transfer, support to
early stage businesses and skills development.

The next stage in the process will be to scope more detailed priorities so that this
can influence central Government thinking. SQW will be producing a discussion
paper which will be reviewed by a new inter-departmental Government group which
is being drawn together by HM Treasury following the Manchester Summit. This will
ensure that Science City proposals can be fed into the Comprehensive Spending
Review process later this year.

Key issues that the Board might focus on include:

» The national role of Science City York in influencing Government priorities and
collaboration with the other Science Cities (each a core city).

=  What should the role be of Science City York as the regional Science City? How
might this relationship be extended beyond the sub-region and Leeds City
Region agenda?



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 24

The Board’s views and comments are invited on this increasing regional and
national role for Science City York in influencing Government priorities for
knowledge-based growth.

Science City York Stakeholder Discussions

As highlighted in Annex A, Science City York has been operating as a partnership
body over the last 8 years — with high levels of engagement and appropriate
consultation mechanisms, as set out in Annex B. This has ensured involvement
and ownership from the business community in the development and formation of
policy priorities. Given the increased status of York as a National Science City, the
University of York has taken the initiative to convene a high-level stakeholder group
compromising senior leaders within each main stakeholder, to review the
development of the future of the initiative.

A series of discussions have taken place over the last 12 months, and a
consultancy report commissioned by the University of York was produced. This
report advocated that Science City York should review and potentially formalise its
partnership status and ‘step-up’ activity in the face of increased competition from
other areas now pursuing a Science City agenda. This work has prompted the
senior stakeholders (Vice Chancellor, University of York; Chief Executive, City of
York Council; Director, Business Directorate, Yorkshire Forward; Chair, Science
City York and an independent Chair of the group) to review the appropriate
partnership structure to move forward this work.

The stakeholders have formed a Stakeholder Board in the last few weeks, to review
this issue and determine the priorities and future management capability required.
This should hopefully have regard to the organisational assessment which has
already been undertaken by the Stakeholder Board as highlighted in paragraph 7.
The relationship with the current Strategy Board has yet to be formalised but close
integration obviously will be required.

Some additional consultancy work is to be commissioned which will examine the
appropriate model for Science City York potentially setting up the partnership as a
Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG) and reviewing whether the position of a
high-level ‘Chief Executive’ is required to assist in the aspirations for SCY to ‘step
up a gear’ to influence activity on a national stage. A focus on local delivery should
be still part of this role function. The parameters for this work are currently being
defined, and discussions are due to take place with the SCY Strategy Board to
ensure they are on board with the process. Clearly additional consultation would be
required with members of the Economic Development Board Partnership during the
process of the work.

Key issues that the Board might focus on include:

= The input that the Economic Development Board Partnership would like to have
as part of this review of the partnership structure of SCY and its future
priorities?

The Board’s views on this are sought on the process and development of the
Science City York partnership model.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 25

British Association Festival 10-14 September 2007

The British Association for the Advancement of Science (the BA) is national
foundation which promotes the public engagement and understanding in a broad
spectrum of science disciplines. It is the national coordinating body for National
Science Week and was originally founded in York (linked to the Yorkshire
Philosophical Society) in the 1870’s.

Every year it organises an Annual Festival of Science, which is a 4 day event to
draw together world experts in science to assist in the communication of science
through a series of events aimed at schools, public and media. It has a scientific
programme aimed at researchers. The BA Festival is regarded as a major
international platform for the promotion of science and all of the key national and
scientific media attend. The BA is planning their 2007 event to take place in York
between 10-14 September, with the academic programme content taking place at
the University of York campus and a whole series of schools and community
activities taking place across the City. A substantial amount of sponsorship will
need to be generated nationally and locally.

It is a major opportunity to help promote York globally as a Science City, the
research excellence of the University of York and as a City of Festivals. A local
Advisory Committee has been set up to represent local stakeholders involved in the
coordination and organisation of the York activities. This is being chaired by Sir
Ron Cooke and will involve representation from across the Council, SCY,
University, the BA and Yorkshire Forward.

Amy Parkinson, Skills Coordinator for Science City York and SETPOINT North
Yorkshire is supporting the local coordination of activities in the city and within
schools. This will feature as a key skills development activity within the new SRIP
business plan, and the development of programmes can be built into the delivery of
learning opportunity outcomes.

Currently a list of local organisations and groups that can be involved in delivering
content for the event is being drawn together, with a view to invite them to an initial
awareness session. This is due to take place on 26 June at the University of York.

Key issues that the Board might focus on include:

» The key messages to promote about York as part of this BA Festival, together
with themes/topics and possible support opportunities,

= Business and community content ideas to feed into the early stage planning of
the city and schools based activities.

The Board’s views on this Festival are sought to support the development of
the initial programme.

Science City York and the wider agenda

Science City York is an integral part of the Economic Development Strategy and
wider city strategy priorities. The concept of Science City York has always been
holistic to view all aspects of engagement and ‘embedding’ within the local
economy. Key to the success of SCY has been the ability to link with other



27.

28.

29.

Page 26

Economic Development Programmes and this is part of the current SRIP business
plan including -

. Work with Future Prospects and York Training Centre — to review workforce
development programmes such as bespoke leadership and management
training courses, bite-size taster courses as part of outreach activities and
graduate retention programmes within local SCY businesses.

o Programme delivery with the Learning & Skills Council and North Yorkshire
Business Education Partnership — to help raise the aspiration levels in the
community of interest in science, assist the take-up of science and
technology related subjects across all York schools and delivery of bespoke
training support to SCY cluster businesses.

. Synergies with the First Stop York — through the promotion of Science City
York and working to secure additional science based events in York, helping
to transform the tourism infrastructure and product development in the City
through links with SCY businesses for content ideas and concepts.

. Business support delivery — in conjunction with partners including Business
Link North Yorkshire, Connect Yorkshire and the University of York — to
ensure effective customer orientated delivery of services to assist knowledge
transfer, employment and business opportunities.

Key issues that the Board might focus on include:

» The importance of embedding Science City York within City Strategy to
maximise synergies in other programme areas.

= QOther opportunities for Science City York to exploit in the wider economy and
community.

The Board’s views on the integration of SCY activities are sought to shape
the ongoing development of City Strategy priorities.

Consultation

The Board’s discussion of these issues forms part of the consideration of options
for development of ongoing priorities for Science City York across all these areas.
Consultation within Science City York is built into the way the project is run through
the Strategy Board, its Committee structure, and the cluster groups and networking
activity. In this way, the action is geared to need.

Options and Analysis

SCY programme of activity across all these areas is ongoing and is all part of the
process of engaging with key stakeholders and partners through the SCY Strategy
Board process. At this stage the Board is asked to provide input to this process and
suggest options, where appropriate, that can be referred to the SCY Strategy Board
for further examination.



29.

30.

31.

Page 27

York Corporate and LSP Objectives

Science City York as a major part of York’s economic priorities are firmly embedded
within the Council’s corporate objectives and the Without Walls initiative.

*

The “Thriving City” theme of the WOW Community Plan has the following
strategic objective:

“To support the progress and success of York’s existing businesses and to
encourage new enterprises in order to maintain a prosperous and flourishing
economy that will sustain high employment rates.”

The Council’s corporate objective 3 — “strengthening York’s economy”, sets
out the following strategic objectives:

- Generate business growth and start-ups in science, creative tourism
and other key business sectors to protect existing jobs and provide
higher quality, sustainable and higher paid jobs.

- Attract investment to strengthen the city’s high growth sectors and
generate quality jobs.

- Ensure that the University and other higher education providers
contribute to business growth and generate quality jobs and underpin
skills-training opportunities for local people.

- Support residents into learning and work, and improve skill levels in
key areas of the economy.

This highly focused approach — identifying key priorities that have generated real
economic change in the city has been key to the success of Science City York
since its formation in 1998. Key to the heart of SCY moving forward must to be
ensure that the needs of the business and community remain the central priority, to
ensure that real action is delivered effectively and efficiently on the ground. The
current SCY Strategy Board and Committee structure can ensure that this can
happen. The Board can reflect these priorities in responding and making an input.

Implications

Implications and risk for SCY have been fully assessed through the SRIP approval
process and are also a main part of the Committee structure. There are substantial
processes in place to review all aspects of SCY activity on performance, monitoring
and delivery:

e Financial: Financial implications have been considered as part of the overall
SRIP allocation and normal Council budget forward planning process. There is
no additional commitment to Council resources.

¢ Human Resources: All related HR issues have been considered and reviewed
as part of the Urgency Committee report in March 06.

e Equalities: There are no equalities implications



Page 28

e Crime & Disorder: There are no crime and disorder implications.
¢ Information Technology: There are no IT implications.

Risk Management

32. In compliance with the Councils risk management strategy the main risks that have
been identified in this report are those which could lead to the inability to meet
business objectives (Strategic) and to deliver targets, services (Operational),
leading to financial loss (Financial), damage to the Council’s image and reputation
and failure to meet stakeholders’ expectations (Governance).

33. Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score all risks has been
assessed at less than 16, this means that at this point the risks need only to be
monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives
of this report.

34. The SCY Audit & Finance Committee meets regularly every 2-3 months to review
activity against business plan objectives and targets. A full risk register is in place
and is reviewed regularly by the SCY Strategy Board. Progress reports will be
brought to future meetings of the Board.

Recommendations

35. a) The Board's views and advice on the issues covered are requested, in relation
to maximising the potential impact of Science City York; and
b) The Board is asked to support and endorse the actions being taken.

Reason: To ensure that SCY delivers and meets both Council and LSP objectives.
Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Anna Rooke Tony Bennett

Project Director Assistant Director, Economic Development

Science City York
Phone no: 01904 554424

Report Approved 4 Date 5/6/06

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers: None

Annexes: Annex A — Science City York Budget

Annex B — Science City York SRIP Action Plan
Annex C — Science City York Board & Organisational Structure
Annex D — Science City York Organisational Structure



Annex A: Science City York Budget

Activity 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008

1) Expenditure (£000s) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

1a) Revenue Costs (£000s)

Management, Finance 30,000 13,000 10,000 8000 8000 8000 8000 8000 8000 7000 7000 115,000
Evaluation, mapping, financial 0 0 20,000 15000 25000 30000 30000 30000 35000 35000 30000

appraisal 250,000
Cluster, supply chain 40,000 40,000 20,000, 20,000 30000 50000 55,000 60,000 60000 55,000 50000 480,000
Business promoter 40,000 35,000 30,000 50000 60000 60000 60000 60000 60000 60000 60000 575,000
Micro fund 0 0 80,000 30000 30000 35000 35000 30000 20000 20000 20000 300,000
Skills, enterprise, workforce 0 0 5,000 20000 30,000 30000 30000 40000 30,000 30,000 30000

development 245,000
YPI Action Plan 10,000 5000 5000 6000 7000 10000 8000 8000 6000 65.000
Marketing, web, PR 25,000, 15,000 10,000{ 25,000 30,000 25,000 25000 25,000 25,000, 25,000 25,000 255,000
Revenue Costs SUBTOTAL 135,000 103,000 185,000 173000 218000 244000 250000 263000 246000 240000 228000 2,285,000
1b) Capital Costs (£000s)

Office Space and new business 40,000 30,000 20,000 10,000 0
accommodation 100,000
Capital costs - SUBTOTAL 0 40,000 30,000 20,000 10,000 0 100,000
TOTAL COSTS (revenue+capital) 135,000 103,000 185,000{ 173,000 218,000 244,000 290,000 293,000 266,000/ 250,000 228000 2.385,000
2) Income by Funding Source

Project Sponsor's Own Funds 15,000 27,000 65,000, 50,000 55,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 55,000 50,000 48,000 515,000
Yorkshire Forward Single Pot 122,000[ 76,000 70,000, 80,000 120,000 150,000 180,000 180,000 150,000/ 135,000 132,000 1,395,000
Private Sector 45,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 35,000 35,000, 35,000 40,000 310,000
Income from project activities

Other (please specify) '

University of York 0 0 5,000, 13,000 10,000 10,000 20,000 18,000 14,000 15,000 5,000 110,000
DA/ Business Link 3,000 4,000 10,000 10,000 12,000 15,000 3,000 57,000
Total (Gross) Income 135,000 103,000 185,000| 173,000 218,000 244,000 290,000 293,000 266,000/ 250,000 228,000 2 385,000

Note: Year 4 project will be determined later in 2006/7 following review of activity and outputs by YF.

62 abed



Page 30

ANNEX B
Science City York: SRIP Action Plan
Overview

This project aims to continue and build on the success of the Science City York initiative in
fostering the development of knowledge-based clusters in order to stimulate the creation
and retention of employment, business growth and workforce development opportunities
in York and North Yorkshire. Science City York nurtures growth through the development
of key sectors in bioscience and health, IT & digital and creative technologies, as a
leading partnership between the University of York, City of York Council and industry
established in 1998.

Science City York’s vision is to create value at a city, region and national level by
stimulating
Prosperity from knowledge.

Science City York seeks to extend activity in York and North Yorkshire through the
following areas of activity:

1. Build and strengthen existing sectors supported by Science City York developing
virtual, spatial and inter-cluster connectivity in York and North Yorkshire. This includes
the creation of a dedicated specialist development technician officer, working
alongside the Chair and stakeholder committee(s) to drive knowledge sharing and
network building activities, as well as signpost business development referrals.
Specifically within each sector, this will include: -

e Develop medical and healthcare core competencies within bioscience.

e Build and expand IT & Digital cluster strengths

e Re-shape and expand creative technologies, to include additional heritage and
arts technology strengths.

2. Enhance and expand activities to stimulate an entrepreneurial business
environment to support the development of ideas and growth of new start-ups

e Develop and expand SCY business support activities to accelerate rate of
growth and creation of new start-ups through specialist technology and business
development provision through extending capacity with Business Promoter
services and business surgery sessions.

e Extend and develop the Micro Fund for pre-start-up ventures to provide
essential proof of concept funding to assist the viability and creation of
technology start-ups.

o Facilitate the creation of flexible business space to support creative and digital
businesses in major development areas within York and across key parts of the
sub region.

3. Develop a supportive framework for creating a culture, which embeds enterprise,
training and skills actions across SCY and supporting sectors

e Implementation of activities creative, science and technology workforce

development needs, identified in the Impact Research feasibility assessment in
2003.

-10 -



Page 31

e As part of the workforce development plan, deliver continued professional
development support, targeted local community and education skills
development ‘taster’ sessions, supporting the continuation of management and
providing support to early stage employer networks.

e Expand the inter-connectivity and synergies between SCY businesses and the
supporting professional sectors through joint work within York Professional
Initiative.

The key activities delivered in York and North Yorkshire would be reviewed by the SCY
Board, which is led by industry with key representatives from the University of York and
City of York Council. Regular reports on progress and consultation on proposals will be
reported to EMAP and EDB.

Flexibility will remain at the heart of the partnership, enabling new priorities to be
developed following regular review of performance and priorities

Targets & Outouts

The implementation of this Business Plan will continue to generate significant employment
and business outputs to benefit the local economy, namely: -
e Establish 10-15 new businesses per annum
Create 300-400 jobs per annum
Generate 80 Learning Opportunities per year for local people
Assist 30-50 businesses per annum
Leverage over £100k per annum from private sector to invest in SCY activities

This will complement and contribute to the overall targets and vision of SCY, in stimulating
direct growth of average of 5% employment growth per annum.

Local Workforce

A major part of SCY strategy since inception, has to ensure that business and
employment growth can benefit the local community. The work undertaken by Impact
Research in 2003, demonstrated that over 50% of employees with SCY clusters are from
the local workforce. The next phase Business Plan for SCY is to maximise opportunities
for the local community in developing skills and training initiatives to address perception
issues and entry barriers.

The views of residents were evaluated as part of the Impact Research project through the
Talk About panel. A high proportion of residents (33%) would consider a job in SCY
clusters (an encouraging figure considering that at present the clusters account for around
10% of total employment in York), but more than half of respondents would never
consider a job in the clusters due to perception issues on entry levels, qualifications and
the possible career paths.

A key component of SCY activity under SRIP proposals therefore is to promote greater
awareness of the range and diversity of careers that are available locally and skills
development opportunities. The target for generating new Learning Opportunities is
specifically geared to this objective.

“11 -



Annex C

SCY Strategy Board & Committee Structure June 2006

Science City York Board

Gareth Lloyd Jones, Chair David Dickson, Chair
Robert Brech, Deputy Chair

Audit

¢ abed

Science City York
Executive
|
I | I |
IT & Digital York Bioscience York Creative York Business Development Communications Development| |  Community Development
lan Wand, Chair Tony Robards, Chair Janet Bames, Chair Chris Henshall, Chair Paul Murphy, Chair Mike Galloway, Chair
Debbie Guppie, Deputy Chair | | Tony Hardy, Deputy Chair Gill Greaves, Deputy Chair | | David Dickson, Deputy Chair | | Tony Bennett, Deputy Chair | | John Yeomans, Deputy Chair

S12-



Annex D:

Science City York Organisational Structure June 2006

SCY Board

SCY Executive

Project Director
PO 17-20

Business Promoters (x3)

Head of Development & Delivery

PO12-15 + Market Supplement PO12-15
I
I | I | | |
Communications Manager Office Manager Cluster Development Co-ordinators Skills Co-ordinator
PO6-9 Scale 5 (x3) | (Employed by NYBEP) ;
P03-6

Positions highlighted in bold are being recruited.

-13-

cg abed



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35 Agenda ltem 6

Meeting of Executive Members for City 17 July 2006
Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MOOR LANE, ASKHAM
LANE, & ASKHAM BRYAN LANE JUNCTIONS ON THE A1237
YORK OUTER RING ROAD

Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to advise members on the results of the recent
public consultation on the proposals to replace the Moor Lane, Askham Lane
and Askham Bryan Lane junctions on the A1237 York outer ring road with a
roundabout.

2. The report seeks approval to the preferred scheme prior to submitting a
planning application. The report also seeks approval to:

e commence detailed design on the preferred scheme;
e commence associated land acquisition negotiations; and

e advertise any associated Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) and to make
the orders subject to successful resolution of any objections;

3.  Approval is also sought to purchase the additional land and to implement the
scheme subject to:

e the scheme receiving planning approval;
e the land being acquirable through negotiation; and

e the scheme being within the approved budget.

Background

4. The Executive Member for Planning and Transport and Advisory Panel, at its
meeting on 28 February 2006, considered a report updating them on the
progress of investigations to replace the existing priority junctions on the
A1237 York outer ring road (ORR) at Moor Lane, Askham Lane, and Askham
Bryan Lane with a roundabout. They agreed to consultation being carried out
on three broad options and to progress design and land issues. They also



Page 36

agreed to receive a further report following public consultation to enable a
decision to be made as to the preferred scheme to form the basis of a planning
application.

Consultation

Subsequently public consultation was carried out on the roundabout options.
Over 6,000 consultation leaflets were distributed to residents of Askham Bryan,
Westfield and Woodthorpe and public meetings were held in each area.
Details of the consultation and responses are contained in Annex A. The
following is a summary of the main findings:

Preferred Option Support Option Do Not Support Option

Option | Westfield & | Askham | Westfield & | Askham | Westfield & | Askham
Woodthorpe | Bryan Woodthorpe Bryan Woodthorpe Bryan

A 53% 30% 64% 38% 23% 51%
B 16% 18% 23% 17% 67% 65%
C 27% 44% 45% 44% 34% 41%

e 38% of Westfield and Woodthorpe respondents indicated that they
currently use alternative routes such as Wetherby Road and Beckfield
Lane to access the north of the city, primarily because they say it avoids
having to make a right turn on to the A1237 and because it is safer.

e Over 50% of those who responded said a roundabout would make their
journeys safer with a significant proportion indicating that the roundabout
would make access to and from the A1237 easier.

e 65% of respondents are in favour of buying additional land if this helps
minimise disruption during the construction phase.

e 56% of Westfield and Woodthorpe residents think planting should be
nominal and land purchase kept to a minimum whereas 44% would prefer
substantial planting to screen the new roads, even if this means purchasing
additional land. 62% Askham Bryan residents, however, would prefer
substantial planting along the new roads even if this means buying
additional land whereas 38% think planting should be nominal and land
purchase kept to a minimum.

e 67% of respondents are satisfied with the proposals for at-grade crossing
facilities for cyclists and pedestrians. 3% indicated that they were
dissatisfied and 5% felt that an underpass should be built.

There were some concerns raised by Askham Bryan residents about potential
adverse impacts that a roundabout could have on Askham Bryan, and the
particular adverse impacts that Option A has on the nearby residents of the
Askham Lane cul-de-sac. As a result a further meeting was held and
consultation carried out to try to identify a solution that would be acceptable to
them. Details of the consultation and responses are contained in Annex B.
The following is a summary of the main findings:




Page 37

e 89% indicated a preference for Askham Bryan Lane to be kept open whilst
11% indicated a preference for it to be closed at its junction with the
A1237.

Of those who wanted Askham Bryan Lane kept open:

o 22% indicated support for Askham Bryan Lane to be connected directly to
a roundabout north of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction (as Option
A), whilst 53% do not support it.

e 49% indicated support not to provide a direct connection to a roundabout
north of Askham Bryan Lane but to retain the existing Askham Bryan Lane
junction as both left and right in but left out only (in the direction of the
roundabout). 26% do not support it.

e 68% indicated support for Askham Bryan Lane to be connected directly to
a roundabout south of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction (as Option
C), whilst 19% do not support it.

e 25% indicated support not to provide a direct connection to a roundabout
south of Askham Bryan Lane but to retain the existing Askham Bryan Lane
junction as left in but left out only. 47% do not support it.

Askham Bryan Parish Council have indicated a strong preference for Option
C. They have requested that, if Option A is to be considered, the roundabout
be located as far away from the Askham Lane cul-de-sac properties as
possible and the impact of the scheme on those residents minimised. They
have also requested that a previous weight restriction through the village
should be re-introduced and “access only” or similar signs erected at
appropriate locations.

The councillors for Dringhouses & Woodthorpe and Westfield wards strongly
support the scheme and have a strong preference for Option A. They have
asked for improvements to the signing of the goods vehicle restrictions on
Askham Lane and Moor Lane. The zones would need to be amended as part
of any improvements and new signing would be provided at appropriate
locations to better inform goods vehicle drivers of the restrictions.

Whilst the councillors for Rural West York ward strongly support the provision
of a roundabout on safety grounds, they share the concerns expressed by
Askham Bryan residents. As such their preference is for Option C with the
roundabout at or to the south of the Askham Bryan Lane junction. They have
requested that, if Option A is to be adopted, the position of the roundabout and
associated link roads be such as to minimise the impact on the residents of
Askham Lane cul-de-sac. The councillors have further requested that the
lighting be designed to only illuminate the highway and not be seen by nearby
properties. The street lighting will be designed to be “dark sky compliant” to
minimise the amount of light pollution. The ward councillors also support the
request from Askham Bryan residents for a goods vehicle restriction through
their village similar to those on Askham Lane and Moor Lane.



10.

11.

12.

Page 38

The views of the key stakeholders groups who have responded to the
consultation can be summarised as follows:

e The Police comments are generally issues to be considered at the detailed
design stage. They have requested that, if a roundabout is to be provided,
all movements should be via the roundabout and the existing junctions be
physically closed to prevent motorists from attempting banned turns at risk
to themselves and other motorists.

e The Fire & Rescue Services support the provision of a roundabout in view
of the history of serious and fatal injury accidents and prefer Option A.

e Transport 2000, the York Cycle Campaign, and the Cyclists Touring Club
are opposed to the scheme as they perceive it to be solely for the benefit of
motorists. The cycling groups have suggested a subway should be
provided to help cyclists to cross without having to dismount. Sustrans
have also indicated a preference for a subway crossing.

The following is a summary of conclusions based on the above consultations:

e Option A is the preferred scheme of residents on the east side of the
A1237 whilst Option C is preferred by those living to the west in Askham
Bryan.

e There is a high proportion who do not support Option B and hence Option
B can be discounted from further consideration.

e The main issues of concern for Askham Bryan residents are the adverse
impact Option A would have on the local area, in particular the nearby
properties on Askham Lane cul-de-sac, and the potential for increased
traffic through the village if Askham Bryan Lane is directly connected to the
roundabout. These concerns would be reduced by moving the roundabout
to the east of the A1237, and retaining the existing Askham Bryan Lane
junction rather than providing a direct connection to the roundabout.

The following issues were also raised as part of the consultation which do not
relate directly to the roundabout scheme:

e Request for traffic calming or other appropriate measures to control
speeding on Moor Lane.

e Request for an off-carriageway cycle and footpath and continuous kerbing
and lighting along Askham Lane.

These do not relate directly to the roundabout scheme and are being or will be
considered separately.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 39

Options

There are four options for a preferred scheme. Two of the three consultation
options are put forward for consideration together with a modified option and a
new option which have been developed to address the issues raised during
the consultation.

Option A

This option, which is shown in Annex C, is one of the consultation options and
involves a five-arm roundabout located at or very close to the existing summit
between Askham Lane and Moor Lane. Askham Lane, Moor Lane, and
Askham Bryan Lane would be diverted to suit and connected directly to the
roundabout. The three existing junctions would be closed to motor vehicles,
however access for cyclists and pedestrians would be maintained with
connections to crossing facilities on the A1237.

The location of the roundabout is such as to strike an equal balance between
Askham Lane and Moor Lane. In addition, being at the summit with the main
approaches uphill, it is the best from a road safety viewpoint. Whilst the
number of injury accidents may be similar to the existing arrangement, the
severity of injuries should be reduced as speeds will be significantly lower.

This option would be likely to require approximately 5.0Ha of additional land to
be acquired. The estimated cost of this option is now £2.8m. Since the
previous report topographical surveys have been carried out which indicate
that more works would be required to compensate for the level differences
between the A1237 and Askham Lane cul-de-sac. Whilst this estimate allows
for land acquisition it does not include potential Land Compensation Act claims
so the cost is likely to be higher.

Amended Option A

This option, which is shown in Annex D, is based on Option A, but has been
amended since the consultation to take account of concerns raised by Askham
Bryan residents and their ward councillors. The amendments move the
roundabout substantially to the east of the existing A1237 and, rather than
upgrading the Askham Lane cul-de-sac to provide a connection, a new link
road would be constructed to link Askham Bryan Lane directly to the
roundabout. The remaining portions of the existing field west of the A1237
would contain noise mitigation measures and be substantially landscaped in
an attempt to screen the new roads. These amendments, whilst requiring
more land than initially envisaged, should help to reduce the impact on the two
properties on Askham Lane cul-de-sac.

This option has the same benefits in terms of the location and safety of the
roundabout as Option A.

This option would be likely to require approximately 5.5Ha of additional land to
be acquired, and the estimated cost is £3.0m.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Page 40

Option C

This option, which is shown in Annex E, is also one of the consultation options
and involves a five-arm roundabout in the vicinity of the Moor Lane / Askham
Bryan Lane junctions. Moor Lane, Askham Lane and Askham Bryan Lane
would be diverted to suit and connected directly to the roundabout. The three
existing junctions would be closed to motor vehicles, however access for
cyclists and pedestrians would be maintained with connections to crossing
facilities on the A1237.

The location of the roundabout is such as to have less impact on nearby
residents than the other options. However the location of the roundabout
would be on a downward gradient for traffic approaching from the north with
limited forward visibility of queuing traffic, increasing the risk of accidents
compared with both versions of Option A. In addition it favours Moor Lane and
may discourage movements between Askham Lane and the A1237(N).

This option would be likely to require approximately 4.2Ha of additional land to
be acquired, and the estimated cost is £3.5m.

Option D

This option, which is shown in Annex F, has been developed since the
consultation and takes account of the Askham Bryan residents preference to
retain the junction rather than have a direct connection to the roundabout. It
involves a four-arm roundabout at the same location as Amended Option A.
Askham Lane and Moor Lane would be closed and diverted as for Amended
Option A. However the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction would be
retained, but with the right turn out of Askham Bryan Lane banned. Physical
measures would be required between the junction and the roundabout to
prevent the banned right turn or dangerous u-turns. This option would allow
for Askham Bryan Lane to be connected directly to the roundabout in the
future should the need arise.

This option has the same attributes in terms of location as Amended Option A.
The amount of non-village traffic using Askham Bryan Lane is likely to be less
with access from a junction rather than directly from the roundabout. This
arrangement appears to be preferred by Askham Bryan residents based on the
recent consultation.

Whilst the potential accident rate at a four-arm roundabout would be lower
than for the other options, this would be offset by the risk of accidents at the
retained Askham Bryan Lane junction.

On the assumption that the field between the Askham Lane cul-de-sac and the
A1237 would be acquired and landscaped, the amount of additional land to be
acquired would be similar to Amended Option A (5.5Ha), however if this field is
not acquired the amount of additional land required would be 3.5Ha.

This option is estimated to cost between £2.8m and £2.9m dependent on
whether the field is acquired and landscaped.



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Page 41

Provision of a subway

The provision of a subway under the roundabout would enable cyclists and
pedestrians to cross without conflict with traffic on the A1237 and would also
create opportunities for new equestrian routes. However the existing and
potential demand is low and, because of its isolated location, most pedestrians
and some cyclists would still wish to cross at-grade and hence the subway
would be in addition to at-grade crossing facilities. The provision of a subway
and associated approach ramps would increase the cost of the scheme by at
least £0.7m.

Analysis

Option A meets the initial aims of replacing the three existing junctions with a
roundabout. The location of the roundabout is such as to strike an equal
balance between Askham Lane and Moor Lane and be the best from a road
safety viewpoint being at the summit with the main approaches uphill.

Whilst this is the preferred option of residents of Westfield and Woodthorpe, it
is not the preferred option of residents of Askham Bryan. This option would
have the most impact on the two nearby properties on the existing cul-de-sac
section of Askham Lane, which increases the risk of objections and Land
Compensation Act payments.

Amended Option A has all the benefits of Option A. Moving the roundabout
eastwards and providing a new link to Askham Bryan Lane, rather than making
use of the Askham Lane cul-de-sac, helps to reduce the impact on the nearby
residents and hence should make this option more acceptable to the residents
of Askham Bryan than the consultation option. The amendments provide
increased scope for appropriate amelioration measures to minimise the
environmental impact.

This option will require more land than Option A. Whilst the estimated cost is
slightly higher than the revised cost of Option A, it may ultimately be cheaper
than Option A if the potential costs resulting from objections and compensation
payments are taken into account.

Option C meets the initial aims of replacing the three existing junctions with a
roundabout. Whilst it is the preferred option of Askham Bryan residents, it did
not receive as much support from Westfield and Woodthorpe residents as
Option A.

This option has a higher accident potential than either Option A or Amended
Option A. In addition it is less likely to encourage movements between
Askham Lane and the A1237(N) and has a higher estimated cost than both
versions of Option A.

As such this option cannot be recommended.



36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

Page 42

Option D does not fully meet the initial aims of replacing the three existing
junctions with a roundabout, in that the Askham Bryan Lane junction would be
retained albeit with restricted movements. However it does provide a scheme
in line with the preferred option of residents of Westfield and Woodthorpe and
takes account of the views of Askham Bryan residents.

Whilst there will be a slight reduction in the accident potential at the
roundabout compared with the other options, this could be more than off-set by
accidents at the retained junction. The Police have expressed particular
concerns about retaining the existing junction, even with restricted movements.

As such this option cannot be recommended.

In view of the above Amended Option A is recommended as the preferred
scheme.

If a subway is provided it would benefit cyclists and open up a new equestrian
route across the A1237. However its isolated location is unlikely to make it
attractive to pedestrians and at-grade crossing facilities would also need to be
provided. In view of the relatively low potential utilisation and the estimated

additional cost (£0.7m), the provision of a subway crossing is not
recommended.

Corporate Priorities

The provision of a roundabout on the A1237 to replace the existing Moor Lane
and Askham Lane junctions has been accorded a high priority in the Council’s
Local Transport Plan for 2006 — 2011.

The programme of outer ring road improvements, of which this scheme is part,

supports the Council’s Corporate Aim 1, “take pride in the city, by improving
quality and sustainability, creating a clean and safe environment.”

Implications
e Financial

An allocation is currently included in the LTP programme of £0.5m for 2006/07
and £2.5m for 2007/08.

¢ Human Resources
There are no Human Resource implications.
o Equalities

There are no Equalities issues.



46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 43

e Legal

The City of York Council, as highway authority for the area, has powers under
the following Acts and associated Regulations to implement improvements to
the highway and any associated measures:

e The Highways Act 1980
e The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
e The Road Traffic Act 1988

As all the roundabout options extend well beyond the existing highway
boundaries, it will be necessary to obtain the relevant planning approvals.
Subject to the agreement of this EMAP, a planning application for the
preferred option will be submitted in accordance with the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

As it is not possible to provide a roundabout and associated link roads within
the existing Council owned land, it will be necessary to acquire additional land
in accordance with the powers and provisions of the afore mentioned
Highways Act.

New or amended Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are likely to be required,
as a result of the proposed changes to the road layout, to cover the following:

e Changes to the extent of existing speed limits.
e Changes to existing parking, loading, and clearway restrictions.
e Changes to existing access restrictions.

e New access and / or goods vehicle restrictions to protect Askham Bryan
village.

e Motor vehicle prohibitions on redundant sections of side roads (cycle and
pedestrian access to be maintained).

e Banned turns should Option D be adopted.

These would be advertised in accordance with the afore mentioned Road
Traffic Regulation Act.

e Crime and Disorder

The scheme would enable motorists to join and leave the A1237 in a safer
manner, and should help to significantly reduce the numbers of people killed
or seriously injured on this section of road.

Whilst a subway would provide a safer crossing by avoiding the conflict
between motorists and those wishing to cross, its isolated location would pose



52.

53.

54.

55.

Page 44

a crime risk and discourage many people, in particular pedestrians, from using
it.

e Information Technology
There are no ITT implications.
e Land & Property

All the roundabout options extend beyond the existing highway boundary and
on to land which is not in the ownership of the Council. Subject to the
agreement of this EMAP, negotiations will commence with the respective land
owner(s) regarding the purchase of additional land required for the preferred
scheme. The purchase of land will only be completed once planning consent
has been received and the scheme being within the approved budget.

e Other

There are no other implications.

Risk Management

The following risks have been identified which could significantly affect the
cost, programming, and / or implementation of this scheme.

e If significant objections are received to the planning application, the
Secretary for State may call for a public inquiry. Not only would there be
the additional cost of the inquiry, but the scheme would be likely to be
delayed by at least six months.

e |f the additional land cannot be acquired through negotiation, compulsory
purchase orders will be required. This process can only commence when
the Secretary for State has approved the scheme and hence could result in
the scheme being delayed by six months if there is no public inquiry and 12
months if there is a public inquiry. There would be additional costs in
addition to the adverse impact on the programme.

e There is also the risk of Land Compensation Act payments to those
adversely affected by the scheme.

e There is the risk of objections when the Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
are advertised. This could delay the scheme, however advertising the
TROs would be programmed sufficiently early to minimise the risk of
delays.

e There are potential financial and programming risks arising from the site
investigation, detailed design, and contractors tender submissions. Project
management procedures will be put in place to manage and control these.



Page 45

Any significant changes to the budget for this scheme or issues which
would significantly affect the programme will be reported back to Members.

Recommendations

56. That the Advisory Panel advises the Executive Member for City Strategy that:

a)

The contents of the report and the results of the consultation processes
be noted.

Reason: For background information and for assisting in the decision
making progress.

Amended Option A (a five-arm roundabout located at or very close to the
existing summit between Askham Lane and Moor Lane) be adopted as
the preferred scheme to form the basis of a planning application;

Reason: To improve the Moor Lane, Askham Lane, & Askham Bryan
Lane junctions on the A1237 York outer ring road.

A subway should not be provided under the A1237 as part of the project;

Reason: The small numbers who would be likely to make use of this
facility in an isolated location would not justify the additional
costs.

That a planning application be submitted for the preferred scheme;

Reason: To obtain planning approval for those parts of the scheme not
within the existing highway boundary.

That detailed design of the preferred scheme commence in advance of
receiving planning approval;

Reason: To minimise delays to the scheme.

That negotiations with any affected land owner(s) commence in advance
of receiving planning approval;

Reason: To minimise delays to the scheme.

That, subject to the scheme receiving planning approval, to successful
negotiations with the affected land owner(s), and the scheme being within
the approved budget, authorisation be given to acquire the additional
land;

Reason: To enable the scheme to proceed.

That any Road Traffic Regulation Orders associated with the scheme be
advertised and, subject to no objections being received, the Order(s) be



Page 46

made. Any unresolved objections to be referred back to Members for
consideration;

Reason: To enable any restrictions on access, turning movements,
parking, loading, and stopping, and any changes to speed
limits to be implemented.

i)  That, subject to the scheme receiving planning approval, the land being
acquired through negotiation, and the scheme being within the approved
budget, authorisation be given to proceed with construction of the
scheme.

Reason: To enable the scheme to proceed.

j)  That the Executive Member be kept fully appraised of the progress of the
scheme and that a further report be submitted to Members should issues
arise which significantly affect the scheme.

Reason: For monitoring and decision making purposes.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
David Webster Damon Copperthwaite

Project Leader (Projects) Acting Assistant Director (Development & Transport)
Engineering Consultancy

Tel: 553466

Report Approved IZ' Date 03-07-06

Specialist Implications Officers
Financial Land & Property

Patrick Looker John Irwin

Finance Manager, City Strategy Property Manager
01904 551633 01904 553362

Legal

Brian Grey

Principal Property Lawyer
04904 551042

Wards Affected: All |:|
Dringhouses and Woodthorpe; Westfield; and Rural West York

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Proposed Improvements to the Moor Lane, Askham Lane, & Askham Bryan Lane
junctions on the A1237 outer ring road report — Meeting of Executive Member for
Planning and Transport and Advisory Panel on 28 February 2006.



Page 47

Annexes

Annex A — Consultation on Roundabout Options

Annex B — Consultation on Askham Bryan Lane Options
Annex C — Option A

Annex D — Amended Option A

Annex E — Option C

Annex F — Option D



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49

Annex A

Consultation on Roundabout Options

Residents of Askham Bryan and about 6,000 properties in Westfield and Woodthorpe
were consulted on three possible outline options for the roundabout:

Option A A five-arm roundabout between Askham Lane and Moor Lane with
Moor Lane, Askham Lane and Askham Bryan Lane diverted to connect
directly to it.

Option B A four-arm roundabout near the Moor Lane junction with Moor Lane
and Askham Bryan Lane diverted to access it directly. A new link road
would connect Askham Lane to Moor Lane.

Option C A five-arm roundabout near the Moor Lane junction with Moor Lane,
Askham Lane and Askham Bryan Lane diverted to connect directly to it.

The consultation also tried to identify their current travel patterns and how the
provision of a roundabout would change these. Views were also sought on the
priorities of minimising delays and disruption during construction and providing
substantial planting to screen the new roads against minimising the purchase of
additional land.

The consultation documents were supplemented by a public meeting in Askham
Bryan as well as attendance at the Dringhouses and Woodthorpe, Rural west York,
and Westfield Ward Committee meetings.

Views of Westfield and Woodthorpe residents

849 responses to the consultation document were received, giving a response rate of
14%. Of those who responded:

e  53% prefer Option A. 64% gave it support whilst 23% do not support it.
e 16% prefer Option B. 23% gave it support whilst 67% do not support it.
e 27% prefer Option C. 45% gave it support whilst 34% do not support it.

Westfield and Woodthorpe residents were asked how they currently travel to and
from the A64 and to and from the north of the city (A59, A19, Clifton Moor). The vast
majority use Moor Lane or Askham Lane for trips to or from the A64 direction.
However 38% of respondents indicated that they use alternative routes such as
Wetherby Road and Beckfield Lane to reach the north of the city, primarily because
they say it avoids having to make a right turn on to the a1237 and because it is safer.



Page 50

Views of Askham Bryan residents

61 responses to the consultation document were received, giving a response rate of
36%. Of those who responded:

e  30% prefer Option A. 38% gave it support whilst 51% do not support it.
e 18% prefer Option B. 17% gave it support whilst 65% do not support it.
e 44% prefer Option C. 41% gave it support whilst 40% do not support it.

Askham Bryan residents were asked how often they currently travel via Askham
Bryan Lane and Askham Fields Lane on a weekly basis, to access the A1237.

e On average Askham Bryan Lane is used 17.0 times a week for trips to the north
and to Askham Lane and Moor Lane and 17.8 times a week for return trips. On
average residents travel via Askham Bryan Lane to the north of the city just
under seven times a week, and to and from all other areas between 5.2 and 5.9
times a week.

e On average Askham Fields lane is used 16.8 times a week for trips to the north
and to Askham Lane and Moor Lane and 13.6 times a week for return trips. On
average residents travel via Askham Fields Lane just over seven times a week

to Askham Lane, and between 3.9 and 5.8 times a week to and from other
areas.

Perceived impact of a roundabout on residents journeys

All residents were asked how a roundabout would affect their journeys on the A1237.
e 54% said a roundabout would make their journeys safer;

e 18% said access onto and across the A1237 would be easier;

e 15% said it would be easier to turn right onto the road;

e 15% said that a roundabout would make their journeys quicker;

e Only four per cent of respondents feel that a roundabout will make no difference

to their journeys on the A1237. Askham Bryan residents (15%) are significantly
more likely to feel this way.



Page 51

Reasons for supporting each option

Respondents were asked to give their reasons for supporting each of the options.
Looking at the supporters for each of the options in turn:

e Option A supporters feel that it would give easy access for all routes joining the
roundabout (22%) and would be the most cost effective option (21%).

e Option B supporters feel this option would be the most cost effective option
(20%) and would be the sensible (17%) and safest option (17%).

e Option C supporters feel this option is the most cost effective option (36%) with
15% feeling it will cause least disruption to traffic on the A1237 during
construction.

Land acquisition

It is not possible to provide a roundabout within the existing council owned land and
some agricultural land will need to be purchased.

Bearing this in mind, respondents were asked whether they would prefer to minimise
delays during construction, even if this requires buying additional land, or whether
additional land purchase should be kept to a minimum, even if this might increase
disruption during construction.

e Overall, 65% of respondents are in favour of buying additional land if this helps
minimise disruption during the construction phase. Opinion is even across the
Westfield and Woodthorpe and the Askham Bryan areas.

e This view does not change significantly with the roundabout option respondents
prefer. The relevant views are Option A supporters 61%, Option B supporters
68% and Option C supporters 71%.

Respondents were also asked whether they consider that more substantial planting
to screen the new road should be a priority, even if requires buying additional land, or
whether additional land purchase should be kept to a minimum, even if this might
result in only nominal planting alongside the new roads.

e Overall, 45% would prefer substantial planting to screen the new roads, even if
this means purchasing additional land, whereas 55% think planting should be
nominal and land purchase kept to a minimum.

e The above view is stronger amongst supporters of Option A (59%:41%) whereas
for Option B and C supporters it is almost 50:50.

e Askham Bryan residents, however, would prefer substantial planting along the
new roads even if this means buying additional land (62%).



Page 52

Overall satisfaction with the proposed cycle and pedestrian crossings

Respondents were asked to comment on the proposed cycle and pedestrian
crossings as part of their preferred scheme.

e Overall, 67% of respondents are satisfied with the proposed cycling and
pedestrian provision and this view is shared almost equally between supporters
of each option.

e 3% indicated they were dissatisfied and 5% felt that an underpass should be
built.

e 25% did not answer this question.

Other features respondents would like to see

Respondents were asked if there are any other features that they would like to see
provided as part of this scheme.

e Overall 71% of respondents had no further comments to make.

e Respondents that gave comments said the roundabout would need good lighting
(six per cent), be accompanied by traffic calming measures (five per cent), and a
pedestrian and cycling underpass should be provided (four per cent).

Views of other key stakeholders

The Police comments are generally issues to be considered at the detailed design
stage. They have requested that, if a roundabout is to be provided, all movements
should be via the roundabout and the existing junctions be physically closed to
prevent motorists from attempting banned turns at risk to themselves and other
motorists.

The Fire & Rescue Services support the provision of a roundabout in view of the
history of serious and fatal injury accidents and prefer Option A.

Transport 2000, the York Cycle Campaign, and the Cyclists Touring Club are
opposed to the scheme as they perceive it to be solely for the benefit of motorists.
The cycling groups have suggested a subway should be provided to help cyclists to
cross without having to dismount. Sustrans have also indicated a preference for a
subway crossing.



Page 53

Summary

A significant proportion of respondents have indicated that the provision of a
roundabout would make joining and leaving the A1237 easier and safer. In particular
those who are currently discouraged from joining the A1237 to go north from Moor
Lane and Askham Lane indicated that they would be more likely to use the A1237
rather than the local road network if a roundabout is provided.

Whilst Option A is the preferred option of those living to the east of the A1237 in
Westfield and Woodthorpe, residents of Askham Bryan prefer Option C. The
potential impact of Option A on two properties on askham lane cul-de-sac appears to
be an influencing factor.

The majority support buying additional land if this helps minimise disruption during
the construction phase. Whilst the majority of residents on the east side think
planting should be nominal and land purchase kept to a minimum, Askham Bryan
residents would prefer substantial planting along the new roads even if this means
buying additional land.

Other Issues raised as part of this consultation process

The following issues were raised which, whilst relating to Moor Lane or Askham
Lane, do not affect the choice of roundabout option.

o Request for traffic calming or other appropriate measures to control speeding
on Moor Lane.

This is an ongoing issue which is being considered separately. However it
should be noted that Moor Lane is a priority route on the Speed Management
Plan and, as such, physical traffic calming measures would not normally be
installed. An appropriate gateway treatment would be provided at the start of
the 30 zone on Moor Lane as part of the roundabout scheme.

. Request for the provision of an off carriageway cycle and footpath on Askham
Lane.

This issue would need to be considered separately as part of the cycle and
pedestrian schemes programme.

o Request for consideration of a formal lay-by with litter bins. Provision of lighting
and measures to dissuade drivers from parking on the verges and in field
entrances and dumping litter along Askham Lane.

Consideration will be given to a lay-by on the new section of Askham Lane. It
is currently proposed to only provide lighting on the approach to the
roundabout. Kerbing and other measures on the existing section of Askham
Lane would need to be considered in conjunction with the footway / cycleway
request above.



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



A1237 (York outer ring road)

Proposed Moor Lane/Askham Lane/Askham Bryan Lane roundabout

Leaving and joining the A1237 at Moor Lane,
Askham Bryan Lane and Askham Lane is
difficult because of the amount of traffic on the
main road and will worsen as traffic increases.
There are several options to make it easier and
safer, but the council thinks that a roundabout
will be the most appropriate solution. It will
improve accessibility to and from the southwest
area of the city and make it safer for turning
traffic. It will also minimise delays to traffic on
the ring road.

Three options have been identified for
consultation and outlines of these can be found
overleaf. The possible locations of the round-
abouts are approximate and may change as a
result of this consultation. It is not possible to
provide a roundabout within the existing council
owned land and some agricultural land will
need to be purchased. The amount of land
required will increase if the roundabout is built
just off the existing road. The roundabout and
approaches will be lit for safety reasons and
the area landscaped. The options, which are
currently estimated to cost between £2.5 and
£3.5 million, will be funded out of the Local
Transport Plan grant from the government.

Consultation -
your views count

The council is keen to hear your views on the
options. It would also like to hear your views
on purchasing agricultural land, the extent of
landscaping and any suggestions about
minimising disruption during construction. You
may also have views about other aspects of the
scheme which you would like the council to be
aware of. If you would like to make your views
known, please complete the enclosed
guestionnaire and return to the freepost address
shown, by Friday 5 May 2006. Your views
will help the council to make a decision on the
way forward and select the preferred option.

For more information

Council officers will be attending the following
meetings to give a brief presentation on the
proposals and answer questions. There will
also be an exhibition from 7pm onwards:

Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Ward
Committee meeting at 7.30pm on Tuesday
18 April, 2006

Location - Woodthorpe School,
Summerfield Road

Askham Bryan public meeting at 7.30pm
on Wednesday 19 April, 2006
Location — Askham Bryan Parish Hall

Westfield Ward Committee meeting at
7.30pm on Wednesday 26 April, 2006
Location - Westfield School, Askham Lane

What happens next ;,U

The results of this consultation will be reported%
to a council meeting, together with the views of ¢y
other interested parties. o1

If an option is agreed by councillors, a planning
application for the preferred scheme would
then be submitted. At the same time,
negotiations will take place to secure any

land required for the project.

Subject to obtaining the necessary approvals
and acquiring the additional land needed,
construction is expected to start in 2007.

YORK

ZS  city oF
S counciL



A1237 (York outer ring road)

Proposed Moor Lane/Askham Lane/Askham Bryan Lane roundabout

Existing cycle/pedestrian Junction to be closed
crossing to be retained
ASKHAM LANE /
) unction to be closed
| /

Improvements to the

|
BRYAN LANE

|
highway alignment of
] / Moor Lane
Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained

ASKHAM LANE

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained

=

|New pedestrian/cycle
crossing

[

ASKHAM LANE

p# "\

Five arm
roundabout

Junction to be closed

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained

9G obed

Improvements to the
highway alignment of Moor
Lane

MNew pedestrian/cycle
crossing

Write to: City of York Council
Engineering Consultancy
Directorate of City Strategy
FREEPOST (YO239)

York YO177Z

© City of York Council 2006. Printed on environmentally friendly paper. Published by
Marketing and Communications on behalf of Directorate of City Strategy. This leaflet
cost 0.8p per York resident to design and print, a total of £1440. Printed by HBA, York.

Location of roundabout and alignment of highway improvements (indicative only)

If you would like this information in an accesssible
format (for example in large print, on tape or by

email) or another language please email
major.projects@york.gov.uk

This information can be provided in your own language.
HPIAEMNESRMERES (Canonese)
G2 O] oI ISR ST (R (@0 AN | (Bengali)
Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
wu‘ b w(dﬂ.)uuwd}f b, (Urdu)
= (01904) 613161




Page 57

Annex B

Consultation on Askham Bryan Lane Options

As a result of comments made during the roundabout options consultation, a further
consultation of Askham Bryan residents was carried out seeking their views as to
whether they wished to see Askham Bryan Lane closed to motor vehicles at its
existing junction with the A1237 or kept open. For those who wished to see it kept
open, their views were also sought as to whether it should be linked directly into the
roundabout or the junction retained with restricted turning movements.

81 responses to the consultation document were received, giving a response rate of
about 50%.

Closure of Askham Bryan Lane

Residents were asked whether they would like to see Askham Bryan Lane closed to
motor vehicles at its junction with the A1237 or whether it should be kept open. It
was noted that if the road were to be closed, access would be retained for cyclists,
pedestrians, and emergency vehicles, and that Askham Fields Lane would become
the only access for motor vehicles to and from Askham Bryan.

¢11% indicated a preference for the road to be closed;

*89% indicated a preference for the road to be kept open.

Roundabout north of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction

Respondents who favoured keeping Askham Bryan Lane open were asked for their
views on the form of the Askham Bryan Lane connection to the A1237 if the
roundabout were to be located north of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction.
(Location similar to roundabout consultation option A).

The first option would be to connect Askham Bryan Lane directly to the roundabout
via the existing Askham Lane cul-de-sac. It was noted that this option would have an
adverse impact on the two properties on the Askham Lane cul-de-sac.

22% gave it support whilst 53% do not support it.

The second option would be to not provide a direct connection to the roundabout but
to retain the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction as both left and right in but left out
only (in the direction of the roundabout). This option would go some way to reducing
the impact of the northern roundabout scheme on the two Askham Lane properties.
It was noted that access would be available in all directions either directly or indirectly
via the roundabout.

¢49% gave it support whilst 26% do not support it.



Page 58

Roundabout south of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction

Respondents who favoured keeping Askham Bryan Lane open were also asked for
their views on the form of the Askham Bryan Lane connection to the A1237 if the
roundabout were to be located south of the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction.
(Location similar to roundabout consultation options B & C).

The first option would be to connect Askham Bryan Lane directly to the roundabout.
¢68% gave it support whilst 19% do not support it.

The second option would be to not provide a direct connection to the roundabout but
to retain the existing Askham Bryan Lane junction as left in / left out only. It was
noted that access to Moor Lane, to Askham Lane (to Acomb), and to the A1237
South would not be available, however all other movements would be available either
directly or indirectly via the roundabout.

¢25% gave it support whilst 47% do not support it.

Public meeting in Askham Bryan

The residents of Askham Bryan were given an opportunity to discuss the above
issues at a meeting in Askham Bryan on 14 June 2006 arranged in conjunction with
the Parish Council.

At this meeting, which was very well attended, there was strong support to keep
Askham Bryan Lane open. Although there were some residents who are concerned
that traffic flows through the village have increased recently and could increase
further with a roundabout, the vast majority were more concerned about the adverse
impact a closure would have on access, journey distances and times, and on farmers
and other local businesses.

There were strong concerns about the adverse impact the northern (Option A)
roundabout would have on nearby properties and strong support for the southern
roundabout with Askham Bryan Lane connected directly to it (Option C).

As a related issue there were strong views that the signing on the A1237 and on
Askham Fields Lane should be such as to indicate local access only, to discourage
through traffic. There were also concerns about the impact of lighting on the
environment and strong requests that the lighting be designed in such a way to
illuminate the highway but be shielded from adjacent areas. These are issues that
relate to all options and have been noted and will be taken into account at the
detailed design stage.



Page 59

Views of Askham Bryan Parish Council

Askham Bryan Parish Council’s views are in line with those expressed at the public
meeting. They have indicated a strong preference for Option C. They have
requested that, if Option A is to be considered, the roundabout be located as far
away from the Askham Lane cul-de-sac properties as possible and the impact of the
scheme on those residents minimised.

They have also requested that a previous weight restriction through the village
should be re-introduced and “access only” or similar signs erected at appropriate
locations.

Summary

Based on the above there is strong support to keep Askham Bryan Lane open and
connected to the A1237. The preference of Askham Bryan residents and businesses
is for the roundabout to be located to the south, in the vicinity of Askham Bryan Lane
or Moor Lane. Askham Bryan residents have concerns about the impact Option A
has on nearby properties and the prospect of increased traffic through the village
resulting from a direct connection to the roundabout. Should the roundabout be
located to the north of the Askham Bryan Lane junction their preference is to retain
the existing junction rather than provide a direct connection to the roundabout.



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

Annex C

ASKHAM LANE

A1237

Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
for cyclists and
pedestrians.

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained.

Five arm roundabout

ASKHAM LANE

S

Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
for cyclists and
pedestrians.

ASKHAM
BRYAN LANE

Improvements to the
highway alignment of

Moor Lane.
MOOR LANE
Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained.
9 A1237
\ AN | AL Proposed A1237 / Moor Lane / Askham Lane /
--,,,y YQRK Askham Bryan Lane Roundabout — Option A
BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPI GBWTTI'I'I;'I'IE e AEREE AE Annex C SCALE NTS




Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

4

A1237

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained.

ASKHAM LANE \

Annex D

ASKHAM LANE

Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
for cyclists and
pedestrians.

Five arm roundabout

Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
for cyclists and
pedestrians.

ASKHAM Improvements to the
BRYAN LANE highway alignment of
/Moor Lane.
MOOR LANE
Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained.
g A1237
SN orcominey VAR Proposed A1237 / Moor Lane / Askham Lane /
— [ : YQRK Askham Bryan Lane Roundabout — Amended Option A
BASED UPON THE GRDNANCE SURVEY WAPPING WTH THE e ABBIEE AE Annex D SCALE NTS




Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Annex E
@ A1237

ASKHAM LANE

Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
for cyclists and
pedestrians.

ASKHAM LANE

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained

Junction to be closed.

5 Improvements to the
highway alignment of Moor
Lane.

ASKHAM
BRYAN LANE \/\

IMOOR LANE|

Five arm New pedestrian/cycle
roundabout crossing.

A1237

\ 2\ | s Proposed A1237 / Moor Lane / Askham Lane /

--Yorkc‘““”“/”“ YORK Askham Bryan Lane Roundabout — Option C

|REV] AMENDMENTS A

pp— ™ Annex E SCALE NTS
STATIONEI

B T B rosteimon |§| RIM 3 ow DATE |26/06/06

No. LA 08067L &




Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

Annex F
@ ASKHAM LANE
A1237
Junction to be closed.
Access to be retained
Existing cycle/pedestrian for cyclists and
crossing to be retained. pedestrians.

Four arm roundabout

ASKHAM LANE \

Junction to be closed.
Right turn out of Access to be retained
Asham Bryan Lane for cyclists and
to be banned. pedestrians.
ASKHAM \ Improvements to the
BRYAN LANE highway alignment of
/ Moor Lane.
MOOR LANE

Existing cycle/pedestrian
crossing to be retained.

A1237
\ AN | AL Proposed A1237 / Moor Lane / Askham Lane /
&/-\k,,”,y YQRK Askham Bryan Lane Roundabout — Amended Option D
BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY HAHINGEWTTI'I'I;HE e AEREE AE Annex F SCALE NTS




Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69 Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL

s,

Meeting of the Executive Member for 17 July 2006
City Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Public Rights Of Way — Proposed Diversion of Part of Public
Footpath, York (Dunnington) No9.

Summary

1. This report seeks authority to make the required order to divert part of Public
Footpath York (Dunnington) No9 from a cross-garden section, to the driveway
of the same property, using S119 of the Highways Act 1980.

2. The report recommends that the Executive Members approve Option A and
authorise the making of the proposed public path diversion order.

Background

3. Public Footpath (Dunnington) No9 leaves the A1079 Hull Road approximately
15metres south west of the driveway to Hall Garth, Dunnington, a private
residence. It then carries on in a northerly direction across the private garden
of that property, where it joins a track, which continues into open countryside in
the Dunnington area (see attached plan).

4.  Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, allows the diversion of a public right of
way if it is in the interests of the landowner, or of the public and it is expedient
to do so.

5.  The owners of Hall Garth are wanting to make use of the section of their
garden over which the first 34 metres of this footpath runs and have requested
that this part of the path be diverted, to start at their driveway.

6. The proposed route is of benefit to the landowner, as it will provide greater
privacy to the garden. It could also be said that the proposed diversion is of
benefit to the public as, instead of climbing a stile and crossing a private
garden, they will be able to use a surfaced driveway to access the rest of the
path. The extra distance anyone would have to walk, at most, amounts to 12
metres. There are no other landowners affected by this diversion.

Consultation



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 70

Pre Order consultation has been carried out in accordance with the
Parliamentary Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice for
consultation on proposed changes to rights of way. These consultees include
The Ramblers’ Association, British Horse Society, Open Spaces Society and
other similar organisations and all relevant utility companies such as gas
companies, telephone companies, electricity companies etc. No objections
have been received.

Options

Option A. Divert the public right of way, from its present alignment across a
private garden, to the driveway of the same property.

Option B. Do nothing and leave the footpath open to the public along its
present alignment.

Analysis

Option A — Make a public path diversion order to divert the first part of the path
onto the driveway of the property. The landowner will be able to improve the
appearance of the garden of his property and provide greater privacy. This
new section of footpath would be vehicle width instead of an undetermined
width as at present. This would be a more pleasant route, especially in wet
weather. This is recommended.

Option B — Refuse to make a diversion order and leave the footpath open for
public use along its present alignment. This will be less convenient for the
landowner, who will not be able to improve the appearance of his property and
thereby increase its market value. It will also be less convenient to users, who
will have to continue traversing a stile and crossing a private garden. This is
not recommended.

Corporate Priorities

The recommended option meets the council’s Corporate Aim 1: Take pride in
the City, by improving quality and sustainability, creating a clean and safe
environment.

Although this aim relates mainly to the environment, it incorporates the second
Local Transport Plan (LTP2), where the hierarchy of transport users is firmly
embedded within this plan, with pedestrians and cyclists being at the top of our
priority when considering travel choice. The encouragement of travel by
sustainable modes also corresponds with other ‘wider quality of life objectives’
as contained in the Community Strategy, such as those relating to health.
Although the preferred option has no bearing on vehicle usage, it does assist in
making the diverted route more pleasant for users and encourages its use,
which would tie in to Objective 1.3 to: Make getting around York easier, more
reliable and less damaging to the environment.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 71

Implications
« Financial

The landowner has agreed to cover all costs which may become payable in
consequence of the coming into force of this order and has agreed to defray
any compensation.

« Human Resources (HR)

There are no HR implications.

« Equalities

There are no Equalities implications.
« Legal

Other than the relevant legal orders being made, there are no legal
implications.

« Crime and Disorder

There are no crime and disorder implications.
« Information Technology (IT)

There are no IT implications.

« Property

There are no property implications.

« Other

There are no other implications.
Risk Management
Not applicable.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member to
accept Option A, and resolve to:

1. To authorise the Director of City Strategy to instruct the Head of Legal
Services to make a Public Path Diversion Order, York Footpath
(Dunnington) No9.

2. That if no objections are received to the making of the order, or that if
any objections that are received are subsequently withdrawn, the Head



Page 72

of Legal Services be authorised to confirm the Order recommended in
1. above.

3. That if objections are received and not subsequently withdrawn, a
further report be placed before the Committee, to enable Members to
consider whether or not to pass the Order to the Secretary of State for
determination.

Reason: The reason for making this decision is that it meets the criteria of the

legislation, as set out in paragraph 4, where allowing the diversion will
be to the benefit of the landowner and also the public.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Stephen Bushby Damon Copperthwaite

Alleygating Officer Acting Assistant Director

Public Rights of way Unit City Development and Transport

9, St Leonard’s Place

YORK Report Approved IZ' Date 30/06/06
YO1 7ET

Tel: 551338

Report Approved I:l Date
Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Not Applicable
Wards Affected: Al [

Dunnington Parish, Derwent Ward

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

File — PROW/064 Dunnington No9
Highways Act 1980

Annexes

1. Plan of proposed diversion.



i KEY
Existing Footpath e
Path to be Extinguished
Proposed Diversion A

% a
o CITY OF Highways Act 1980 Section 119
Yo R K Public Path Diversion Order No PROW/064 Dunnington No9 Grid Ref SE6751
Scale 1:750 Drawn By: Stephen Bushby Date: 24 April 2006
COUNCIL Group: Proect: ‘Drawing No.
Public Rights of Way

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permissi

of the C

ller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings

York Cit




Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75 Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL

s,

Meeting of the Executive Member for 17 July 2006
City Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Public Rights Of Way — Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath,
York (Murton) No4.

Summary

1. This report seeks authority to make the required order to divert Public Footpath
York (Murton) No4 from a cross field section, to the headland of the same field,
using S119 of the Highways Act 1980.

2. The report recommends that the Executive Members approve Option A and
authorise the making of the proposed public path diversion order.

Background

3. Public Footpath (Murton) No4 leaves the A166 Stamford Bridge Road
approximately 25metres north east of the driveway to Hope Cottage,
Dunnington, from an opening in the hedge-line which is signposted. It then
carries on in a north-westerly direction across a ploughed field where it then
joins a track known as York Footpath (Murton) No11 at Smary Lane, Murton in
the northwest corner of the field (see attached plan, points A to C).

4. The path has been used for a number of years, although not frequently and it
appears that users tend to walk around the headland of the field, rather than
across the field which is the definitive alignment.

5. Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, allows the diversion of a public right of
way if it is in the interests of the landowner, or of the public and it is expedient
to do so.

6. The landowner has requested that the footpath in question be diverted from its
present cross-field route, to the one generally used by the public around the
headland of the field. The location point of each end of the path will remain the
same, A - B - D - C on the plan.

7. The proposed route is of benefit to the landowner as it means that he will not
have to reinstate a path as required by legislation, which is seldom used. It will
also benefit the public, as, instead of a 1metre wide path through ploughed



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 76

crops, they will be able to enjoy the use of a 1.5metre wide path around the
crops.

Consultation

Pre Order consultation has been carried out in accordance with the
Parliamentary Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice for
consultation on proposed changes to rights of way. These consultees include
The Ramblers’ Association, British Horse Society, Open Spaces Society and
other similar organisations and all relevant utility companies such as gas
companies, telephone companies, electricity companies etc. No objections
have been received.

Options

Option A. Divert the public right of way, from its present alignment across a
ploughed field, to the headland of the same field.

Option B. Do nothing and leave the footpath open to the public along its
present alignment.

Analysis

Option A — Make a public path diversion order to divert the path around the
headland of the field which is the route used by the public at the moment. This
new section of footpath would be a minimum of 1.5 metres wide instead of
1metre wide at present. This would be a more pleasant route, especially in wet
weather. It also means that the landowner will not have to reinstate a little
used route through growing crops. This is recommended.

Option B — Refuse to make a diversion order and leave the footpath open for
public use along its present alignment. This will be less convenient for the
landowner, who will have to continue to reinstate a path, on an alignment,
which will probably not be used. It will also be less convenient to users, who
will probably continue using the headland rather than the official line. This is
not recommended.

Corporate Priorities

The recommended option meets the council’s Corporate Aim 1: Take pride in
the City, by improving quality and sustainability, creating a clean and safe
environment.

Although this aim relates mainly to the environment, it incorporates the second
Local Transport Plan (LTP2), where the hierarchy of transport users is firmly
embedded within this plan, with pedestrians and cyclists being at the top of our
priority when considering travel choice. The encouragement of travel by
sustainable modes also corresponds with other ‘wider quality of life objectives’
as contained in the Community Strategy, such as those relating to health.
Although the preferred option has no bearing on vehicle usage, it does assist in



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Page 77

making the diverted route more pleasant for users and encourages its use,
which would tie in to Objective 1.3 to: Make getting around York easier, more
reliable and less damaging to the environment.

Implications
- Financial

The landowner has agreed to cover the costs of advertising the legal notices
and has agreed to defray any compensation which may become payable in
consequence of the coming into force of this order. The Public Right of Way
Unit has agreed to donate officer time and expertise.

« Human Resources (HR)

There are no HR implications.

« Equalities

There are no equalities implications.
« Legal

Other than the relevant legal orders being made, there are no legal
implications.

« Crime and Disorder

There are no crime and disorder implications.
« Information Technology (IT)

There are no IT implications.

« Property

There are no property implications.

« Other

There are no other implications.

Risk Management
Not applicable.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member to
accept Option A, and resolve to:



Page 78

1. To authorise the Director of City Strategy to instruct the Head of Legal
Services to make a Public Path Diversion Order, York Footpath
(Murton) No4.

2. That if no objections are received to the making of the order, or that if
any objections that are received are subsequently withdrawn, the Head
of Legal Services be authorised to confirm the Order recommended in
1. above.

3. That if objections are received and not subsequently withdrawn, a
further report be placed before the Committee, to enable Members to
consider whether or not to pass the Order to the Secretary of State for
determination.

The reason for making this decision is that it meets the criteria of the legislation, as
set out in paragraph 5, where allowing the diversion will be to the benefit of the
landowner and also the public.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Stephen Bushby Damon Copperthwaite

Alleygating Officer Acting Assistant Director

Public Rights of way Unit City Development and Transport

9, St Leonard’s Place

YORK Report Approved [ ¢+ | Date 3006/06
YO1 7ET

Tel: 551338

Report Approved |:| Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Not applicable
Wards Affected: Al [

Murton Parish, Osbaldwick Ward

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

File — PROW/066 Murton No4
Highways Act 1980

Annexes

1. Plan of diversion.



v’ . KEY
N ~...| Existing Path i
Murto 1 +———t—t—
No11 %, Path to be Extinguished
,.... Proposed Diversion
fooo L
D
/i<

o
N~
[
&
N / i

\\ P
= 0
%2 Sy Highways Act 1980, Section 119
Public Path Diversion Order No PROW/066 Murton No4 Grid Reference SE6552
— o : —A Scale 1:2600 Drawn By: Stephen Bushby Date: 16 May 2006
COUNCIL Group: Froject: Drawing No.
Public Rights of Way
8 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 ZET g g e e iges Grown Copyigh and may 1ead 1 prosacuton o i proceedings.
Telephone: 01904 613161 York Cit




Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81 Agenda ltem 9

COUNCIL

s,

Meeting of Executive Members for City Strategy and 17 July 2006
the Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

CITY STRATEGY CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2006/07 —
CONSOLIDATED TO INCLUDE CARRY-OVERS FROM 2005/06

Summary

The purpose of this report is to consolidate the 2006/07 programme to include
the carry-over schemes that were not completed in 2005/06, and to make
adjustments to schemes and blocks to reflect individual underspends and
overspends within the programme. The report asks the Executive Member for
City Strategy to approve the amendments to the 2006/07 budget as set out
below.

The Planning and Transport Capital Programme has been renamed as the City
Strategy Capital Programme to reflect the new Council structure.

Background

The City Strategy Capital Programme budget for 2006/07 of £10,464k was
agreed by the Executive Member in April 2006, and includes the Local
Transport Plan Capital Programme allocation of £6,378k, and other elements
allocated funds through the Council’s budget process. These figures do not
include overprogramming, which was set at £1,900k (including £270k of
structural maintenance reserve schemes) in the 2006/07 budget report.

The 2005/06 Planning and Transport Capital Programme contained a level of
overprogramming of £3,358k at consolidated report stage of 2005/06 to give
some flexibility in the programme should slippage in some schemes occur.
Because of this it was never intended, nor indeed would it have been possible,
to deliver all the schemes programmed in 2005/06. The full programme agreed
at Quarter 3 by Members in February 2006 for 2005/06 was £10,504k with a
budget of £10,104k. There was therefore £400k worth of work outstanding that
could not have been funded by the LTP in 2005/06.

For this reason it was necessary when planning the 2006/07 programme in
early 2006 to take account of schemes that we already knew would slip from
2005/06.

The provisional outturn report for 2005/06 was agreed by the Executive
Member in June 2006. After including the accruals for schemes undertaken at



10.

11.

12.

Page 82

the end of the year but not paid for until 2006/07, there was an overspend on
the LTP funded schemes of £197k, which was funded through the use of
developer contributions for part of the Malton Road Bus Priorities schemes.

There was an underspend on the non LTP funded programme of £30.6k, which
it is proposed to carry forward into 2006/07 together with £25k of funding for
Special Bridge Maintenance slipped at Quarter 2.

There are a number of schemes which were included in the 2005/06
programme which were not as complete as originally anticipated when the
2006/07 programme was prepared. An allowance for the completion of these
schemes needs to be made in the 2006/07 programme, and the proposals are
detailed in this report.

In addition there are a number of schemes which it is proposed to bring
forward into the programme from future years to enable preliminary design
work to be undertaken, and allow flexibility in the programme should progress
on other schemes be slower than anticipated. These include improvements to
the Blossom St/Queen Street junction for pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport, and preliminary design works for a funding bid for the items included
in the LTP strategy but not possible to fund from the current LTP settlement.

Carryovers into 2006/07

Known slippage in 2005/06 arising from previous monitoring reports or late
changes in the programme were included in the 2006/07 programme when it
was presented for Members consideration in April 2006. An indicative figure
(£100k) for further carry-over due to remaining overprogramming was also
included.

An important part of capital programme management is to ensure that any
underspends or overspends within particular schemes or spending blocks at
outturn are considered and the 2006/07 budget adjusted accordingly. Following
the final outturn, the carry-overs can now be built in to the existing approved
programme for 2006/07.

Whether funding is carried over from 2005/06 to 2006/07 is based on the
following principles:

e In some cases, where we reported slippage in the Q3 monitoring
report (February 2006), sufficient funding had already been allocated
in the 2006/07 programme - therefore any underspend in 2005/06 is
not required to carry-over to 2006/07 (e.g. Kathryn Avenue Signals).

e Where work has been accelerated the value of the work is added to
the 2006/07 allocation for that programme area (e.g. Archbishop
Holgate's School Safe Routes to School Phase 2 and 3).

e There are also some schemes where additional money is required to
complete the scheme in 2006/07. In this case the amount of money



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 83

required to complete the scheme has been added to the programme
(e.g. Huntington Road Signals, Dales Lane Footway).

Annex 1 to this report summarises the key changes required to the 2006/07
capital programme to accommodate carry-overs and adjustments. Annex 2
indicates the current and proposed budgets for each scheme within the
programme.

Members will be given an update on progress in delivering the 2006/07 capital
programme in the first quarter budget monitoring report in September 2006.

Consultation

Consultation was undertaken on the LTP strategy, and detailed consultation
will be undertaken on each scheme where appropriate during the design period
and before construction.

Options

Members have been presented with a proposed programme of works for
approval which it is anticipated will be deliverable within funding constraints
whilst enabling the objectives of the approved Local Transport Plan to be met.

Analysis

The new items within the programme have been proposed to cover the
consequences of any slippage in key areas and to enable preliminary design
work to be undertaken on schemes proposed for later in the LTP period. In
particular the Archbishop Holgate’s Safe Route to School proposals, which are
predominantly cycling and walking schemes, have been included to cover
uncertainty on the delivery of the access ramp to the station in the cycling and
walking blocks.

If the proposed changes are accepted the total value of the City Strategy
Capital Programme excluding the new depot would increase from £12,364k to
£13,598k. The overprogramming would increase from £1,900k to £2,903k
(compared to £3,358 in 2005/06) which is considered to be reasonable at this
stage in the year bearing in mind the uncertainty relating to the delivery
programmes of some of the larger schemes.

Corporate Priorities

The programme was prepared in accordance with the objectives of the Local
Transport Plan which was approved by the Council in March 2006.

The schemes in the City Strategy Capital Programme also support the
following Corporate Aims and Objectives included in the Council Plan



21.

22.

23.

24.

Page 84

Corporate Aim 1: Take Pride in the City, by improving quality and
sustainability, creating a clean and safe environment.

Objective 1.3 Make getting around York easier, more reliable and less
damaging to the environment. — e.g. Introduction of FTR, provision of
improved cycle routes.

Objective 1.4 Protect residents and our environment from pollution and
other public health and safety hazards, and act as a role model in the
sustainable use of resources. — e.g. Continuation of improvements to
public transport provision.

The City Strategy Capital Programme also supports the following Key Priority
for 2006/07 in the Environment area:

Increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes of
transport

A. Introduction of the first phase of ftr fleet.
i ftr operational in May 2006.
B. Implementatlon of actions to increase usage levels of key bus services
i Bus stops and shelter infrastructure to be improved.
ii. Preliminary design of bus priority measures being undertaken.
C. Construction of 500 metres of off street cycle route
i. 1100m of off road cycle route under construction in James St.
Link road, Oaklands Safe Route to School, and Clifton Green
School Safe Route to School schemes.
i. Additional 250m planned to be built as part of Hob Moor Link,
Murton/A166 Junction, Station Ramp and Strensall Rd
Roundabout schemes.
D. Commencement of work on Moor Lane and Hopgrove outer ring road
improvements
i. Consultation commenced on Moor Lane Roundabout; capacity
improvements to Hopgrove roundabout being progressed with
the Highways Agency.

Corporate Aim 4: Create a safe City though transparent partnership working
with other agencies and the local community.

Objective 4.7 Make York’s roads safer for all types of user — e.g. Local
Safety Schemes (improvements to Murton Rd/A166 junction)

Corporate Aim 5: Work with others to improve the health, well-being and
independence of York residents.

Objective 5.7 Increase participation in sport and active leisure and
promote active lifestyles — Provision of Safe Routes to School and
School Cycle Parking to complement cycle training.



Page 85

Implications

25.  The Financial Implications of the report are identified below. There are no other
implications of this report.

Financial — See below

Human Resources (HR) — There are no human resources implications
Equalities — There are no equalities implications

Legal — There are no legal implications

Crime and Disorder — There are no crime and disorder implications
Information Technology (IT) — There are no IT implications

Property — There are no property implications

Other — There are no other implications

Financial Implications

26. The LTP allocation for 2006/07 was confirmed by the Government Office for
Yorkshire and the Humber in December 2005. The City Strategy capital budget
was agreed by the Budget Council as part of the overall CYC capital
programme in February 2006, and was funded (excluding the New Depot) as

follows:
£000s
LTP element 6,378
Government Grant 57
Developer Contribution 1,537
CYC Resources 1,992
CYC Prudential Borrowing 500
Total 10,464

27. The changes set out above would take the value of the City Strategy Capital
Programme to £10,696k and would be funded as follows:

Changes Total
£000s £000s

LTP element 6,378
Government Grant 57
Developer Contribution +176 1,713
CYC Resources +56 2,048
CYC Prudential Borrowing 500
Total 10,696

28. No changes are proposed to the depot budget at this stage in the year
therefore the total City Strategy Budget including the New Depot for 2006/07
would be £19,677k.

Risk Management



29.

30.

Page 86

The Capital Programme has been prepared to assist in the delivery of the
objectives of the Local Transport Plan. The Department for Transport will
assess the progress of the LTP against the targets set in the plan. If the
schemes included within the programme do not have the anticipated effect on
the targets it is possible that the Council will receive a lower score and
consequentially there is a risk that future funding will be reduced. It is therefore
essential that each scheme is assessed against the key objectives of the LTP
(reductions in congestion, improving safety and air quality and enhancing
accessibility) before introduction into the programme.

Recommendations
The Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended to:

1) Agree to the adjustments set out in Annex 1 and 2 subject to the approval
of the Executive to the proposed funding changes.

Reason: To manage the Capital Programme effectively

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tony Clarke Damon Copperthwaite

Capital Programme Manager  Acting Assistant Director -

City Strategy City Development & Transport

Tel No.01904 551641

Co-Author

Damon Copperthwaite

Patrick Looker Report Approved | ,~ Date T704-07-06
Finance Manager

City Strategy . .,

Tel No. 01904 551633 Chief Officer’s name

Title

Report Approved | tick Date /nsert Date

Specialist Implications Officer
Financial

Patrick Looker

Finance Manager — City Strategy
01904 551633

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:



Page 87

Transport Capital Programme 2005/06 — Third Quarter Monitoring Report — 28
February 2006

Proposed 2006/07 Planning and Transport Capital Programme — 18 April 2006
Planning and Transport Capital Programme 2005/06 — Outturn Monitoring Report —
7 June 2006

Annexes
Annex 1: Summary of Key Changes Required

Annex 2: Current and Proposed Budgets for 2006/07 Planning & Transport Capital
Programme



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Recommended variations to LTP Programme (changes to overprogramming only)

Budget Change
Scheme Change £1.000's
. Allocation increased to accommodate carryover
James St. Link Road from 2005/06 100
. Proposed allocation to undertake preliminary
LTP Strategy Modelling design work for future funding bid 100
Improvements to FTR Route AIIocqtlon increased to accommodate further 100
route improvement costs
Malton Rd Bus Priorities Phase 3 Allocation increased to accommodate carryover 20
from 2005/06
Blossom St/Queen St Junction Reserve scheme added - Improvements to 200
Improvements junction for public transport, cycling and walking
Pedestrian Minor Works Was not included in pedestrian budget total in o5
Budget Report
Main St Fulford Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 15.5
A166/Murton Lane Junction Reylsed cost estimate for scheme including 60
cyling route upgrade
Huntlngton.Roa.d / Hgley§ Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 28.5
Terrace - signalised junction
Dales Lane Footway Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 9
Robert Wilkinson Primary SRS 3g<j|?et increased to include SSZ Safety Audit 8
. Allocation reduced to allow review of scheme in
New Earswick SSZ 2006/07 -22
Dunnington SSZ Revised estimate for cost of scheme -10
Badger Hill Further con.trlbutlon to cycle parking at school no 3
longer required
English Martyrs' SSZ Carryover from 05/06 - now complete 8
Naburn SSZ Carryover from 05/06 - now complete 9.5
Scarcroft SSZ Carryover from 05/06 5
Westfield Infant and Junior SSZ |Carryover from 05/06 - now complete 9
Osbaldwick SSZ Carryover from 05/06 - now complete 6
Lowfield/Oaklands SRS Carryover from 05/06 - now complete 50
Copmanthorpe SSZ Carryover from 05/06 5
Fishergate/St George's SSZ Scheme added in response to concerns raised 1
Review & Enhance by schools regarding traffic speeds on Fishergate
Archbishop Holgate's SRS Phase |Phase 2 of SRS scheme - cycling provision - 152
2 added as reserve scheme
Archbishop Holgate's SRS Phase |Phase 3 of SRS scheme - cycling provision 126
3 added as reserve scheme
TOTAL 1,003
CYC Carryovers
Allocation increased (£9k carry over from
Woodlea Bank FW 2005/06) 9
Moor Lane, Hessay Carry over from 2005/06 including slippage at 66.35
Quarter 2
. . Allocation reduced to take account of overspend
City Walls Repair in 2005/06 19.44
TOTAL 55.91
Section 106 Funding
. Allocation increased to accommodate carryover
James St. Link Road from 2005/06 145
Designer Outlet P&R Relocation AIIocatlop increased to include additional signage 31
and Designer Outlet costs
TOTAL 176

Page 1 of 1

Annex 1



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total | 06/07 LTP I I )
Scheme . Consolidated | Consolidated Consolidated Report Comments
Ref 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget Total Budget | LTP Budget
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
[LTP Integrated Transport ]
ORR & JAMES ST LINK ROAD
OR01/05 [A64 Hopgrove Roundabout 500 500 500 500
ORO01/06 [Moor Lane Roundabout 500 500 500 500
OR01/04 |Strensall Roundabout Left Turn Lane 250 250 250 250
JS01/04 |James St. Link Road 1,769 571 2,014 g71  [|Mlocation increased to accommodate
carryover from 2005/06
ORR & James St. Link Road Programme 3,019 1,821 3,264 1,921
Overprogramming -555 -555 -655 -655 Overprogramming increased
ORR & James St. Link Road Budget 2,464 1,266 2,609 1,266 Total Budget increased
AIR QUALITY, CONGESTION & TRAFFIC
MANAGEMENT
TMO02/04 [Inner Ring Road Signage 40 40 40 40
TC03/02a |TCMS 150 150 150 150
TMO03/03 [Coach Study Measures 96 10 96 10
TMO01/06 |Lorry Park Signage 10 10 10 10
BP01/03 |Air Quality Action Plan 25 25 25 25
) Proposed allocation to undertake preliminary
TMO02/06 | LTP Strategy Modelling 0 0 100 100 design work for future funding bid
Air Quality Congestion & Traffic Management 304 235 421 335
Programme
Overprogramming 0 0 -100 -100 Overprogramming Increased
Air Quality Congestion & Traffic Management Budget 321 235 321 235
PARK & RIDE
PRO02/02 | Designer Outlet P&R Relocation 130 0 161 0 Allocation increased to include additional
signage and Designer Outlet costs
PR02/05 [Askham Bar P&R Site (Development) 50 50 50 50
PR01/06 |Enhancements to Park & Ride Sites 50 50 50 50
Park & Ride Programme 230 100 261 100
Overprogramming -50 -50 -50 -50
Park & Ride Budget 180 50 211 50 Total Budget Increased
PUBLIC TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENTS
BP04/03 [Jockey Lane/Kathryn Ave Signals 20 20 20 20
BP02/02_ |Extension of BLISS 150 150 150 150
PT02/06 |Improvements to FTR Route 300 300 400 app  |Allocation increased to accommodate further
route improvement costs
PT03/06 [A59 Bus Priorities 25 25 25 25
PT04/06 [Fulford Rd Bus Priorities 25 25 25 25
PT05/06 [Orbital Bus Route 25 25 25 25
PT01/06 |Bus stop/shelter improvements 100 100 100 100
RL02/02 |Station Frontage 100 100 100 100
PT06/06 |Poppleton Station Platform extension 40 40 40 40
05/06 Carryover Schemes
[ PR03/02b [Malton Rd Bus Priorities Phase 3 [ [ 20 [ 20 [Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 |
Reserve Public Transport Schemes
Reserve scheme added -- Improvements to
PT06/06 |Blossom St/Queen St Junction Improvements 0 0 200 200 junction for public transport, cycling and
walking
Public Transport Improvements Programme 785 785 1,105 1,105
Overprogramming -150 -150 -470 -470 Overprogramming Increased
Public Transport Improvements Budget 635 635 635 635

Page 1 of 7



Page 92

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total 06/07 LTP - - )
Sc;z;“e 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget ?g{‘;‘g‘g{j‘;‘: CL‘}r"f‘E’;'Ld j‘;ﬁf’ Consolidated Report Comments
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
WALKING
PE02/06 |Pedestrian Minor Schemes 25 25 25 25 Was not included in pedestrian budget total
in Budget Report
PE01/06 |Access to Footstreets 5 5 5 5
PEO03/06 [Dropped Crossing Programme 30 30 30 30
n/a Access to Station Pedestrian Contribution 50 50 50 50
PE04/06 [Green Lane Rawcliffe Footway 10 10 10 10
PE02/04b |Accessible Route (Station to City Centre) 20 20 20 20
PE02/04c [War Memorial Route (Station to City Centre) 10 10 10 10
PE02/04a |Lendal Bridge Route (Station to City Centre) 80 80 80 80
PEO05/05 [Melrosegate/Tang Hall Lane pedestrian refuges 17 17 17 17
PE02/02c [Coppergate Pelican Crossing 8 8 8 8
PEO06/04 [Barbican to St. Georges Field Walking Route 123 0 123 0
05/06 Carryover Schemes
[ PE03/04 [Main St Fulford 0 [ 0 [ 155 | 155 _ [Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 |
Walking Reserve Schemes
PEO05/06 [Haxby Village Pedestrian Audit 5 5 5 5
PE06/06 [Footstreets Expansion Study (Goodramgate) 10 10 10 10
PEQ7/06 [Footstreets Expansion Study (Fossgate) 10 10 10 10
PE12/05 |Shipton Rd Pedestrian Audit Works 30 30 30 30
PE09/05 [Haxby Rd Pedestrian Audit Works 25 25 25 25
TMO01/03 |Walmgate Bar Footway Improvements 90 90 90 90
Walking Programme 523 400 564 441
Overprogramming -170 -170 -210.5 -210.5 Overprogramming Increased
Walking Budget 353 230 353 230
CYCLING
CY01/06 [Anti-skid Surfacing 25 25 25 25
CY02/06 [Various Minor Schemes 30 30 30 30
CY03/06 |City Centre Cycle Parking 5 5 5 5
CY09/02c [Nestle to Station - Back of Hospital route 15 15 15 15
CY06/02¢c [Haxby to York - Nestle Northern Access 5 5 5 5
CY01/02 |Access Ramp to Station 200 143 200 143
CY03/02d [Millennium Route - Bishopthorpe Rd Crossing 30 30 30 30
CY08/03 |Hob Moor Link 30 30 30 30
CY06/02a [Haxby to York - Hartrigg Oaks 5 5 5 5
CY04/04 |Route 66 - A166 Crossing 5 5 5 5
CY04/05 |Green Lane Acomb 10 10 10 10
CY06/03 |Crichton Ave Cycle Route 5 5 5 5
CY11/03 |North York Cycle Route 5 5 5 5
CY07/04 |St Oswald's Rd to Landing Lane 5 5 5 5
CY09/04 |Fulford Rd Cycle Route 0 0 0 0
CY10/04 |Development of Clifton Bridge Cycle Scheme 5 5 5 5
CY03/05 |Fishergate Gyratory 0 0 0 0
CY01/05 |Beckfield Lane 5 5 5 5
Cycling Reserve Schemes
CY09/03a [Heslington Lane Cycle Route Phase 1 35 35 35 35
CY06/04 |Route 65 Youth Hostel Link 45 45 45 45
CY05/03 |Field Lane Cycle Route 20 20 20 20
CY09/02c [Nestle to Station - Front of Hospital route 10 10 10 10
Cycling Programme 495 438 495 438
Overprogramming -153 -153 -153 -153
Cycling Budget 342 285 342 285
DEVELOPMENT LINKED SCHEMES
DLO1/06 Connection of lSustlrans Cycle path with City Centre 0 0 0 0
(Hungate/Morrison's Developments)
DL02/06 [Monks Cross Master Plan 0 0 0 0
CY07/03 Qonnection of Foss Islands Cycle Path to James Street 20 20 20 20
Link Road
Development Linked Schemes Programme 20 20 20 20
Overprogramming 0 0 0 0
Development Linked Schemes Budget 20 20 20 20

Page 2 0of 7



City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Page 93

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total | 06/07 LTP . . .
Scheme . Consolidated | Consolidated Consolidated Report Comments
Ref 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget Total Budget | LTP Budget
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
[SAFETY SCHEMES |
Local Safety Schemes
LS01/06 |Station Ave junction with Rougier St 5 5 5 5
LS17/04 |Stirling Rd/Clifton Moorgate Roundabout 5 5 5 5
PE01/06 [Access to Footstreets Study (see Pedestrian Block) 25 25 25 25
LS02/05 [Wigginton Rd/Fountayne St mini roundabout 10 10 10 10
LS20/04 |A166/Murton Lane Junction 170 170 230 230  |Revised costestimate for scheme including
cyling route upgrade
LS02/06 |Hull Rd/Melrosegate/Green Dykes Lane junction 5 5 5 5
LS06/05 [Acomb Triangle 5 5 5 5
LS03/06 |2007/08 Programme Development 10 10 10 10
05/06 Carryover Schemes
LS23/04 [Huntington Road / Haley's Terrace - signalised junction 0 | 0 | 28.5 | 28.5 |Costs from scheme completed in 05/06
LSS Reserve Schemes
[ DR06/05 [Monkgate Roundabout 20 | 20 | 20 | 20 | |
[_LS04/06 |A19 Skelton Area LSS 25 | 25 | 25 | 25 | |
Local Safety Schemes Programme 280 280 369 369
Safety & Speed Management
LS21/04 [A19 - Wheldrake Lane (Crockey Hill) Junction 60 60 60 60
SMO03/04 |A19 Skelton Study 5 5 5 5
SM01/05 [A1079 Grimston Bar to Kexby 20 20 20 20
SM01/06 [A1079 Hull Rd nr Archbishop Holgates 20 20 20 20
SMO2/06 Strensall Rd (Village boundary to Fosslands 5 5 5 5
roundabout)
SM03/06 [Vehicle Activated Signs 10 10 10 10
Safety & Speed Management Programme 120 120 120 120
Danger Reduction
LS05/05 [Carr Lane (including York Rd junction) 5 5 5 5
LS05/04 [Water End/Landing Lane 5 5 5 5
DR02/05 |B1363 nr Mill Lane Wigginton 15 15 15 15
DR03/05 |Shipton Rd/Rawcliffe Lane signalised junction 25 25 25 25
DR01/06 |Naburn Lane 10 10 10 10
DR02/06 |2006/07 Reactive Scheme Development 20 20 20 20
05/06 Carryover Schemes
| DR07/05 [Dales Lane Footway 0 | 0 | 9 | 9 [Costs from scheme completed in 05/06 |
Danger Reduction Reserve Schemes
DR03/06 |Copmanthorpe Various Minor Measures 10 10 10 10
DR04/06 |Hodgson Lane/A59 Junction (Poppleton) 5 5 5 5
DR05/06 |Alness Drive, Acomb Wood Drive, Bellhouse Way 5 5 5 5
Danger Reduction Programme 100 100 109 109
Safety Schemes Programme 500 500 598 598
Overprogramming -65 -65 -162.5 -162.5 Overprogramming Increased
Safety Schemes Budget 435 435 435 435
ACCESSIBILITY AND VILLAGE TRAFFIC SCHEMES
Village Traffic Schemes
VS21/04 |York Road, Dunnington Traffic Signals 250 250 250 250
LS21/04 [Wheldrake Lane/A19 Traffic Signals 550 550 550 550
VS10/04 |Holtby/A166 junction 100 100 100 100
VS19/04 |Rufforth (Permanent build-outs) 15 15 15 15
VS18/04b [Strensall (York Road refuges) 30 30 30 30
VS18/04a |Strensall (Southfields Road) 7 7 7 7
VS01/06 |Strensall Parking/Crossing improvements at shops 10 10 10 10
VS02/06 |VTS Scheme Development 10 10 10 10
Village Traffic Reserve Schemes
VS01/05 [Deighton (Right turn Island) 225 225 225 225
VS08/04b [Elvington (Gateway) 5 5 5 5
VS03/05 |Kexby 5 5 5 5
VS12/04a [Naburn Gateway 8 8 8 8
VS03/06 |Naburn Feasibility 3 3 3 3
VS04/06 |Skelton Feasibility 2 2 2 2
VS05/06 |New Earswick Feasibility 3 3 3 3

Page 3 of 7

Annex 2



Page 94

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total | 06/07 LTP . . )
Sc;z;“e 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget ?g{‘;‘g‘g{j‘;‘: CL‘}r"f‘E’;'Ld j‘;ﬁf’ Consolidated Report Comments
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
Accessibility Schemes
ACO01/06 |York Hospital Bus Stops Relocation 15 15 15 15
AC02/06 |Audible Information at 'BLISS' stops 10 10 10 10
ACO03/06 |Service 6 Extension (feasibility) 10 10 10 10
VTS & Accessibility Programme 1,258 1,258 1,258 1,258
Overprogramming -363 -363 -363 -363
Village Access Improvements & Accessibility Total 895 895 895 895
[SCHOOL SCHEMES
Safe Routes to School
Safe Route to School Phase 2+
SR21/04 |Robert Wilkinson Primary SRS 10 10 18 18 Budget increased to include SSZ work
SR26/04 |Fulford Secondary SRS 4 4 4 4
SR22/04 |St Lawrence's Primary SRS 1 1 1 1
Safe Route to School Phase 1
SR20/05 |Dringhouses Primary SRS 50 50 50 50
SR18/05 |Clifton Green Primary SRS 2 2 2 2
SR19/05 |Clifton Without Primary SRS 12 12 12 12
SR17/05 |Bishopthorpe Infants & Juniors SRS 22 22 22 22
SR25/05 |Yearsley Grove Primary SRS 2 2 2 2
SR23/05 [Huntington Primary SRS 3 3 3 3
SR18/05 |Clifton Green Primary SRS (Resources scheme) 32 32 32 32
School Safety Zone Schemes
SR01/06 |SSZ Safety Audit Measures 7 7 7 7
SR02/06 |Steiner School SSZ 3 3 3 3
SR26/04 |St. Oswald's SSZ 35 35 35 35
. Allocation reduced to allow review of
SR08/05 [New Earswick SSZ 25 25 3 3 scheme in 2006/07
SR03/05 [Dunnington SSZ 30 30 20 20 Revised estimate for cost of scheme
School Cycle Parking
SR20/03b [Rufforth Cycle Parking 5 5 5 5
SR03/06 |Lowfield/Oaklands 20 20 20 20
SR04/06 |Clifton Green Primary 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5
SR05/06 |Bishopthorpe Infants 3 3 3 3
SR06/06 |Carr Junior 4 4 4 4
SR07/06 |Badger Hil 3 3 0 0 Further contribution tq cycle parking at
school no longer required
SR08/06 |Feasibility work for 07/08 cycle parking programme 5 5 5 5
05/06 Carry over Schemes
SR04/05 |English Martyrs' SSZ 0 0 8 8 Carryover from 05/06 - now complete
SR07/05 |Naburn SSZ 0 0 9.5 9.5 Carryover from 05/06 - now complete
SR12/05 |Scarcroft SSZ 0 0 5 5 Carryover from 05/06
SR14/05 |Westfield Infant and Junior SSZ 0 0 9 9 Carryover from 05/06 - now complete
SR09/05 |Osbaldwick SSZ 0 0 6 6 Carryover from 05/06 - now complete
SR18/04 |Lowfield/Oaklands SRS 0 0 50 50 Carryover from 05/06 - now complete
SR04/04 |Copmanthorpe SSZ 0 0 5 5 Carryover from 05/06
School Reserve Schemes
SR09/06 |Haxby Road Primary Cycle Parking 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5
SR25/05 |Yearsley Grove Primary SRS Ph 1 10 10 10 10
SR18/05 |Clifton Green Primary SRS Ph 1 10 10 10 10
SR25/04 |Hob Moor Primary SRS Ph 2 25 25 25 25
SR35/05 |Headlands Primary Cycle Parking 12.8 12.8 12.8 12.8
SR10/06 |Heworth Primary Cycle Parking 8 8 8 8
SR11/06 |St Lawrence's Primary Cycle Parking 8 8 8 8
SR12/06 [Park Grove Primary Cycle Parking 8 8 8 8
SR13/06 |Ralph Butterfield Primary Cycle Parking 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5
SR26/04 |Fulford Secondary SRS Phase 2 26 26 26 26
Scheme added in response to concerns
SR14/06 |Fishergate/St George's SSZ Review & Enhance 0 0 1 1 raised by schools regarding traffic speeds on
Fishergate
SR15/06 |Archbishop Holgate's SRS Phase 2 0 0 152 152 Phase 2 of SRS scheme - cycling provision -
added as reserve scheme
SR16/06 |Archbishop Holgate's SRS Phase 3 0 0 126 126 Phase 3 of SRS scheme - cycling provision
added as reserve scheme
School Safety Schemes Programme 411.3 411.3 755.8 755.8
Overprogramming -124.3 -124.3 -468.8 -468.8 Overprogramming Increased
School Safety Schemes Budget 287 287 287 287

Page 4 of 7



City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Page 95

Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total 06/07 LTP ’ - .
Scheme . Consolidated | Consolidated Consolidated Report Comments
Ref 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget Total Budget | LTP Budget
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
|COSTS OF PREVIOUS YEARS SCHEMES |
[__na__[Costs of 01-06 Schemes | 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 |
[TRAVEL AWARENESS |
| n/a [Travel Awareness | 40 | 40 | 40 | 40 |
LTP Integrated Transport Programme 7,702 6,108 8,881 7,111
Overprogramming -1,630.3 -1,630.3 -2,632.8 -2,632.8 _ Overprogramming increased
LTP Integrated Transport Budget 6,072 4,478 6,248 4,478 Total Budget Increased
[LTP Structural Maintenance |
[LTP Street Lighting |
[ Li01/06 [Street Lighting [ 80 [ 80 [ 80 [ 80 [
LTP Street Lighting Total 80 80 80 80
LTP Bridges Structural Maintenance
[ BR01/06 [Castle Mills Bridge 200 | 200 | 200 | 200 | |
[ BR02/06 [Monk Bridge 200 | 200 [ 200 [ 200 | |
LTP Bridges Structural Maintenance Total 400 400 400 400
LTP Principal Roads
PL01/05 [Tower Street 120 120 120 120
PL01/06 [Queen Street 64.4 64.4 64.4 64.4
PL02/06 [Cemetery Road 112.7 112.7 112.7 112.7
PL03/06 |Stamford Bridge Road 276 276 276 276
LTP Principal Roads Total 573 573 573 573
LTP Local Roads
LR01/06 |The Village Haxby 80.5 80.5 80.5 80.5
LR02/06 |Tang Hall Lane 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3
LR03/06 |Wetherby Road (Rufforth) 93.4 93.4 93.4 93.4
LTP Local Road Total 199.2 199.2 199.2 199.2
LTP Minor Urban Surfacing
[ YY01/06 [Main St Heslington 727 | 727 | 727 | 727 ] |
[ YY02/06 Bishopthorpe Road 61 | 61 | 61 | 61 | |
LTP Minor Urban Surfacing Total 134 134 134 134
De-Trunked Rds
| DT01/06 [A19 North (Skelton) 410 | 410 | 410 | 410 | |
| DT02/06 [A19 South (Crockey Hill) 104 [ 104 [ 104 [ 104 [ |
De-Trunked Roads Total 514 514 514 514
LTP Structural Maintenance Total 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900
LTP Total Programme 9,602 8,008 10,781 9,011
Overprogramming -1,630 -1,630 -2,633 -2,633 Overprogramming increased
LTP Total Budget 7,972 6,378 8,148 6,378

Page 5 of 7



Page 96

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total | 06/07 LTP . . .
Sc;z;“e 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget %{‘;‘g‘jj;‘: CL‘}r"f‘E’;'Ld j‘;ﬁf’ Consolidated Report Comments
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
[CYC Funded Schemes ]
CYC Carriageway
RR01/06 |Carr Lane 28.8 0 28.8 0
RR02/06 |Carr Lane/Boroughbridge Rd Junction 27.6 0 27.6 0
RR03/06 |North Lane 25.3 0 25.3 0
RR04/06 [York Road/Carr Lane Junction 43.3 0 43.3 0
RR05/06 |Green Lane 102.4 0 102.4 0
RR06/06 |Audax Road 67.9 0 67.9 0
RR07/06 |Grassholme 94.3 0 94.3 0
RR08/06 [Clarence Street 84 0 84 0
RR09/06 |Manor Lane 0 0 0 0
RR10/06 |Oakdale Road 126.5 0 126.5 0
RR11/06 |Wheatfield Lane 91.9 0 91.9 0
RR12/06 |Ryecroft Avenue 23.6 0 23.6 0
RR13/06 |Naburn Lane 60 0 60 0
RR14/06 |A1237, A59 towards A19 92 0 92 0
CYC Carriageway Reserve Schemes
[ RR15/06 [Walmer Carr 83 0 | 83 0 | |
[ RR16/06 [Tranby Avenue 187 0 [ 187 0 [ |
CYC Carriageway Schemes Programme 1,137.6 0.0 1,137.6 0.0
Overprogramming -270.0 0.0 -270.0 0.0
CYC Carriageway Schemes Budget 868 0 868 0
CYC Footway Schemes
FR01/06 |Common Road (Dunnington) 45.7 0 45.7 0
FR02/06 |Barmby Avenue 68.3 0 68.3 0
FR03/06 [Broad Highway (Wheldrake) 3.6 0 3.6 0
FR04/06 |Hambleton Avenue 33.7 0 33.7 0
FR05/06 |Main Street Heslington 19.3 0 19.3 0
FRO06/06 [Leven Road 140.3 0 140.3 0
FR07/06 |Branton Place 19.8 0 19.8 0
FR08/06 |Wigginton Road 8.6 0 8.6 0
FR09/06 |Whernside Avenue 80.5 0 80.5 0
FR10/06 |Malvern Avenue 12.4 0 12.4 0
FR11/06 |Heslington Road 18 0 18 0
FR12/06 [Galtres Road 5.7 0 5.7 0
FR13/06 [Westfield Place 82.3 0 82.3 0
FR14/06 [St Philips Grove 32.9 0 32.9 0
FR15/06 |Grants Avenue 60 0 60 0
FR16/06 |Elvington Lane 47 0 47 0
FR17/06 |Station Road (Poppleton) 4.5 0 4.5 0
FR18/06 |Knapton Lane 29.3 0 29.3 0
FR19/06 |Heather Bank 37.2 0 37.2 0
FR20/06 |St Peters Grove 32.4 0 32.4 0
FR21/06 |Almsford Road 89 0 89 0
FR22/06 [Hill Street 16.1 0 16.1 0
FR23/06 [Leake Street 12.4 0 12.4 0
FR24/06 [Gale Lane 77.6 0 77.6 0
FR25/06 |Whin Road 24.2 0 24.2 0
FR26/06 |Beech Avenue 26.6 0 26.6 0
FR27/06 |Landsdowne Terrace 21.7 0 21.7 0
Allocation increased (£9k carry over from
FR28/06 |Woodlea Bank 10.6 0 19.6 0 2005/06)
FR29/06 [St Aubyns Place 38 0 38 0
FR30/06 |Ebor Way (Poppleton) 8.4 0 8.4 0
CYC Footway Schemes Total 1106.1 0 11151 0 Budget Increased
Special Bridge Maintenance
[ SB01/05 [Castle Mills Bridge 75 0 | 75 0 | |
| SB02/05 [Moor Lane, Hessay 0 0 | 66.35 0 |Carry over from 2005/06 |
Special Bridge Maintenance Total 75 0 141.35 0 Budget Increased

Page 6 of 7



Page 97

City Strategy Capital Programme Consolidated Budget Report

Annex 2

Proposed Proposed
06/07 Total | 06/07 LTP . . .
Scheme . Consolidated | Consolidated Consolidated Report Comments
Ref 06/07 City Strategy Programme Budget Budget Total Budget | LTP Budget
£1000s £1000s £1000s £1000s
Maintenance Revenue Schemes transferred to
Capital Programme
n/a Various Maintenance Schemes 276 [ 0 276 0
Revenue Maintenance Schemes 276 0 276 0
CYC Structural Maintenance Programme 2,595 0 2,670 0
Overprogramming -270 0 -270 0
CYC Structural Maintenance Budget 2,325 0 2,400 0 Budget Increased
City Walls
. . Allocation reduced to take account of
CW01/06 |City Walls Repair 67 0 48 0 overspend in 2005/06
CW02/06 |Robin Hood Tower Roof 80 0 80 0
CW03/06 [City Walls Railings 20 0 20 0
City Walls Budget Total 167 0 148 0
Total CYC Funded Schemes Programme 2,762 0 2,818 0
Overprogramming -270 0 -270 0
CYC Structural Maintenance Budget 2,492 0 2,548 0
Total P&T Budget Excluding New Depot 10,464 6,378 10,696 6,378 Total Budget Increased
Total P&T Overprogramming (excluding new depot) -1,900 -1,630 -2,903 -2,633
Total P&T Programme Excluding New Depot 12,364 8,008 13,598 9,011 Programme Increased
[New Depot
[ n/a_ [New Depot [ 8981 ] 0 8,981 0
Total P&T Budget 19,445 6,378 19,677 6,378
Total P&T Programme 21,345 8,008 22,579 9,011

Page 7 of 7



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99 Agenda ltem 10

COUNCIL

a,

Meeting of Executive Members for City 17" July 2006
Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Orders

Summary

1. This report brings to Members attention requests for Traffic Regulation Orders,
the results of investigations and seeks authority to advertise proposals where
appropriate.

Background

2. The introduction of new, or amendments to existing, traffic restrictions are
considered in batches on an approximately annual basis. Requests have been
tackled in this manner for many years now and achieve considerable cost
savings in addition to reducing Members and officer time.

3. A list of the requests for new or changes to existing restrictions is shown in
Annex A. A more detailed description of each site where waiting restrictions
have been requested, along with recommendations and an associated cost is
attached in Annex B. All other restrictions that affect the movement of traffic,
such as changes to speed limits, access restrictions and road closures are
shown in Annex C. Plans of each site under consideration are in Annex D.

Consultation

4. All the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders will have to be formally advertised in
the local press to give people the opportunity to send in a written
representation. In addition, notices are also posted on the streets affected and
letters are delivered to properties immediately adjacent to where there are
proposed changes to waiting restriction. The proposals will also be sent to the
Local Councillors, Parish Councils, emergency services and a variety of other
relevant organisations for their comments and information. Any objections to
the proposals received will be reported back to Members, along with officer’s
comments, for consideration and a decision on how to take the matter forward.

5. The Police have been informally consulted on the items where there is a
recommendation for taking action and have not raised any concerns at this
time.



10.

Page 100

Options

The options available to Members are:

A. Approve the formal advertising of the Traffic Regulation Orders as
proposed for some or all of the sites in Annexes B, C and D.

B. Defer individual items for consideration at a later date if additional
information is required.

Analysis

Option A above provides the most cost effective method of tackling large
numbers of requests and determining the views of those most likely to be
affected by the proposals and is the favoured option.

Option B will increase the time taken to resolve the issues raised and has the
potential to increase the costs, as there won’t be the advantages of advertising
items in bulk. Hence this option is not the favoured recommendation.

Corporate Priorities

The annual review of Traffic Regulation Orders ties in with the corporate
priorities of customer focus as the bulk of the issues raised are from local
residents who have concerns or difficulties with some aspect of the control of
the Highway Network. In addition, as some of the issues raised are based on
safety concerns a contribution is also made to the corporate priorities of
creating a safer city.

Implications
The implications of the recommendations in this report are as follows:

e Financial - Budgets are available for the advertising of the proposed
Traffic Regulation Orders and the introduction of the restrictions if
approved. Depending on the objections received however, some of the
proposals may end up being introduced during the next financial year. It is
not anticipated that this situation would create any financial problems.

e Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

e Equalities - There are no Equalities implications.

e Legal — The City of York Council has authority to advertise and implement
Traffic Regulation Orders.

e Crime and Disorder - There are no Crime and Disorder implications.
¢ Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

e Property - There are no Property implications.



Page 101

e Other — The increase in waiting restrictions will require enforcement by
the City Council’s Parking Enforcement staff.

Risk Management

11. The parking of vehicles on the highway is tolerated rather than allowed and all
risks created by parked vehicles are the responsibility of the individual drivers
concerned. Whilst the implementation of waiting restrictions aimed at
preventing parking will in many cases reduce risks on the highway, the City
Council does not take on the responsibility for risk if the introduction of waiting
restrictions does not take place. In compliance with the Councils risk
management strategy there are no risks associated with the recommendations
in this report.

Recommendations
12. Members are asked to:

1) Approve the advertising of the Traffic Regulation Orders in line with option A
in paragraph 6 above and Annexes B, C and D.

Reason: To minimise the Traffic Regulation Order advertising costs.

2) Approve the implementation of any proposals where no objections are
received. Items where an objection is made will be reported back to a
subsequent meeting of this Panel for a decision on how to proceed.

Reason: To minimise the time taken to implement the proposals.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Alistair Briggs Bill Woolley

Traffic Engineer Director of City Strategy

Dept Name

Tel No. 01904 551368
Report Approved Date 26/06/06

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers: None

Annexes:

Annex A — List of streets and areas for consideration

Annex B — Details of each waiting restriction site and recommendation
Annex C — Details of each traffic movement site and recommendation
Annex D — Plans of each site



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103

Annex A

Traffic Regulation Order Requests

<
o

Location

Restriction

St Aubyn’s Place

No waiting at any time

Blossom Street

Motorcycle parking

Lastingham Terrace

No waiting at any time

Hunt Court, Aldwark

No waiting at any time

Garden Place

No loading

Beresford Terrace

No waiting at any time

Clifton Residents parking
Dixon’s Yard, Walmgate Residents parking
Finsbury Street Disabled parking

Aldreth Grove

No waiting at any time

Mount Vale Drive

No waiting at any time

Rectory Gardens

No waiting at any time

Westwood Terrace

No waiting at any time

Bishopthorpe Road

No waiting at any time

Railway View

No waiting at any time

Ullswater, Silverdale Court and Acorn Way

No waiting at any time

York Road, Acomb

Remove restrictions

Ouseburn Avenue

No waiting at any time

Main Street/Black Dyke Lane, Upper Poppleton

No waiting at any time

S A N N e T AT PN S

Cleveland Street, Upper St Paul's Terrace and
Railway Terrace

No waiting at any time

22 | Collingwood Avenue No waiting at any time

23 | Acomb Road Removal of restrictions

24 | Holgate Park Drive No waiting at any time

25 | St Paul's Square No waiting at any time

26 | Cecelia Place Removal of restrictions

27 | Carleton Street Removal of restrictions

28 | Ascot Way No waiting at any time

29 | Leeman Road / Garfield Terrace No waiting at any time

30 | West Bank No waiting at any time

31 | West Thorpe / Sandcroft Road junction No waiting at any time

32 | Thurston House and St. Benedict Road Reduced non-resident
parking time limit

33 | The Mount Residents Parking

34 | Brecks lane, Strensall No waiting at any time

35 | Marlborough Grove Residents Parking

36 | Library Square Disabled Parking

37 | Heworth Place No waiting at any time

38 | Galtres Grove No waiting at any time

39 | Southolme Drive No waiting at any time

40 | Low Poppleton Lane Relax restrictions

41 | Great North Way No waiting at any time

42 | Oxford Street Residents parking

43 | Carr Lane / Rosedale Avenue No waiting at any time




Page 104

44 | Scarcroft Road Residents Parking
45 | Sandacre Court No waiting at any time
46 | Elmtree Gardens / Oak Rise No waiting at any time
47 | Bramble Dene / Moorcroft Road No waiting at any time
48 | Royal Chase No waiting at any time
49 | Manor Drive No waiting at any time
50 | Beech Grove No waiting at any time
A | Scarcroft Lane Road Closure

B | Staithes Close Prohibition of cycling
C | Poppleton Park 20mph speed limit

D | Arran Place 20mph speed limit

E | Clifford Street / Coppergate No right turn relaxation
F | Acaster Lane, Bishopthorpe 30mph speed limit

G | School Lane and Croft Court, Bishopthorpe 20mph speed limit

H | Northolme Drive and Southolme Drive One Way

I

Wheatlands Grove

Road Closure




Page 105

Waiting Restrictions Annex B
1 St Aubyn’s Place Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Cars parking on either side of St. Aubyn’s Place are obstructing access to local
residents vehicles to and from the street. Would like no waiting restrictions to prevent
cars parking on both sides of the street

Background information:

The instances of parking at this location are not a daily occurrence for long periods
of time, hence restrictions would not normally be recommended. However, as this
street is directly off a main radial route into the city any obstruction close to the
junction is not desirable, therefore extending the existing restrictions beyond the
pedestrian crossing points is considered appropriate in this case.

Recommendation:
Introduce ‘No Waiting at any Time’ restrictions for 27m both sides from its junction
with The Mount as shown on attached plan

2 Blossom Street Cost
(Raised by Local Shop Owner) £60

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Double yellow lines outside Motorcycle shop preventing customers parking, request
for Motorcycle parking bay.

Background information:

The whole of Blossom Street is covered by waiting restrictions of one sort or another.
It has been claimed that owners of large expensive motorcycles are reluctant to park
their bikes in the nearby public car park due to fears of theft and damage. Whilst this
in itself may not justify altering the restrictions, the parking of motorcycles on a short
stretch of the cobbles for a limited duration would not result in any disruption to the
road network or visibility problems for other road users. It should be noted that, if
approved, the spaces would not be for the sole use of the shops customers.

Recommendation:

Remove the double yellow lines and introduce a 1 hour maximum stay Motor Cycle
Parking Bay between the projected property boundary lines of 35 Blossom Street as
shown on attached plan

3 Lastingham Terrace Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £20

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Vehicles parking close to the junction make it difficult for drivers to turn into the back
lane and a gas pipe running up a wall has been hit at least once. Would like yellow
lines.

Background information:

There is no verge or footway between the carriageway and properties; hence any
misjudgement by a driver turning is likely to result in boundary walls (or the gas pipe)
to be hit.

Recommendation:
Place the double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway for 8m as shown on
attached plan.




Page 106

4 Hunt Court, Aldwark Cost
(Raised by local resident) £20

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking on the side of the garage belonging to No 5 Hunt Court is causing an
obstruction to vehicles, double yellow lines requested

Background information:

The carriageway at the side of the garage belonging to No 5 Hunt Court is only 4.6m
wide, vehicles are parking at this location, which narrows this access point to the rest
of the properties and has, on occasions caused an obstruction to other vehicles

Recommendation:
Placing 9m of double yellow lines on both side of this pinch point in Hunt Court as
shown on attached plan

5 Garden Place Cost
(Raised by a resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking by Blue Disabled Badge holders on the double yellow lines along Garden
Place is causing a narrowing of the carriageway and obstruction.

Background information:

Double yellow lines (No Waiting at any Time) are in place at present along both
sides of Garden Place to keep a clear access for the Shambles Car Park and other
businesses in the area. These lines are effective for the majority of vehicles, but
Disabled Badge holders can lawfully park for up to 3 hours along these lengths of
road and on many occasions the whole length of road are filled with Disabled Badge
holders cars, this gives them free parking and easy access to the city centre, but at
the same time causes access problems along this length of road. The only way to
prevent parking by drivers holding a blue disable badge is to introduce a loading ban.

Recommendation:
The introduction of a “No Loading at any time” ban on both sides of the carriageway
would prevent all vehicles from parking or stopping as shown on attached plan.

6 Beresford Terrace Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £30

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles parking too near to the junction of Bishopthorpe Road and Beresford
Terrace. The introduction of double yellow lines has been requested

Background information:

At the junction of Bishopthorpe Road and Beresford Terrace vehicles are parking
day and night which is causing visibility problems for vehicles entering or exiting the
junction.

Recommendation:

Placing 15m of double yellow lines on both sides of Beresford Terrace at its junction
with Bishopthorpe Road and 15m into Bishopthorpe Road at its junction with
Beresford Terrace as shown on attached plan




Page 107

7 Clifton Cost
(Raised by local Hotel Owner) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Lack of parking spaces for hotel guests on Clifton between Burton Stone Lane and
Bootham Crescent. Suggest making existing Residents Parking Bays (R34) along
this stretch of road into Community bays (C bays) and adding two extra C Bays into
a small double yellow lined cobbled area in front of the Hotel

Background information:

The parking bays between Burton Stone Lane and Bootham Crescent are pay and
display and residents parking. There is, however, some spare capacity, hence
residents may be prepared to agree to change the status of these bays to allow
parking by hotel guests.

A second suggestion is the addition of 2 extra parking spaces on the cobbles in front
of the hotel where there are double yellow lines at present. This would interfere with
visibility for other road users and is therefore not being recommended.

Recommendation:
Amend the regulations governing the use of the parking bays shown on the attached
plan for use by hotels.

8 Dixon’s Yard, Walmgate Cost
(Raised by local resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Lack of resident parking bays in Dixon’s yard. Request for an additional bay

Background information:

Dixon’s Yard has only 3 Residents parking spaces at present within the R18
scheme, a request for an additional space has been asked for. There is no room to
extend the present bays, but additional bays may be provided along the south
eastern side of No 40 Walmgate which would increase the amount of bays to 5

Recommendation:
Provide 10m of resident parking bay adjacent to 40 Walmgate

9 Finsbury Street Cost
(Raised by local residents) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
The resident of No 29 Finsbury Street has suffered a severe stroke and requests an
advisory disabled parking bay outside the property

Background information:

The request for a disabled bay has been supported by the resident’s doctor due to
their severe mobility problems. It should be noted that if approved the bay can not be
made exclusively for the resident and any blue badge holder would be entitled to use
the space.

Recommendation:
Introduce a 6m disabled parking bay outside 29 Finsbury Street




Page 108

1 0 Aldreth Grove Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Parking in Aldreth Grove is preventing wardens, carers, Doctors and resident visitors
vehicles from parking near to Cameron Walker Court (a home for the elderly) can
some form of on street parking be provided

Background information:

Parking demand in Aldreth Grove is high because of the number of residential
properties and the proximity to the shopping area and city centre. The only practical
way of providing spaces for visitors would be to create an on street parking bay with
a limited duration of stay permitted. This would, however, result in a loss of parking
for local residents who would require parking for extended periods.

Recommendation:
Take no action.

1 1 Mount Vale Drive Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £35

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Parking along the north east side of Mount Vale Drive is causing access problems to
Mount Vale Drive. Double yellow lines are requested for the whole of the
northeastern side of Mount Vale Drive and on both sides of St Georges Place at its
junction with Mount Vale Drive/Tadcaster Road.

Background information:

At present there are no restrictions at these locations and the parking that takes
place tends to be for extended periods of time. Whilst the narrow road and parking
do create some problems for free traffic flow the main issue is congestion at the
junctions, hence it is recommended that the introduction of yellow lines be confined
to the immediate area around the junctions. This approach will also minimise the
likely transfer of parking.

Recommendation:

Placing double yellow lines for approx 20m on both sides of Mount Vale Drive and
15m on both sides of St Georges Place from their respective junctions with
Tadcaster Road as shown on attached plan

1 2 Rectory Gardens Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £40

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Sight line problems for vehicles exiting Rectory Gardens into Bishopthorpe Road.
Request for double yellow lines

Background information:

Drivers exiting Rectory Gardens into Bishopthorpe Road are having problems with
sightlines due to parked vehicles. The introduction of double yellow lines either side
of the junction should lead to an improvement.

Recommendation:
Provide 10m of double yellow lines on Rectory Gardens and Bishopthorpe Road,
either side of the junction as shown on the attached plan




Page 109

1 3 Westwood Terrace Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £40

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Sight line problems for drivers exiting Westwood Terrace into Albemarle Road.
Request for double yellow lines.

Background information:

Drivers exiting Westwood Terrace into Albemarle Road are having problems with
sightlines due to vehicles parking on pavement and near this junction. These
vehicles belong to local residents and also people visiting the nearby shops and
Public House. Because parking is at a premium in this area the proposed yellow
lines have been kept to a minimum.

Recommendation:
Provide 10m of double yellow lines on Westwood Terrace and Albemarle Road,
either side of the junction as shown on the attached plan

14 Bishopthorpe Road Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £20

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Sight line problems for pedestrians crossing Bishopthorpe Road. Request for
extension to existing double yellow lines

Background information:

Pedestrians crossing Bishopthorpe Road near its junction with Southlands Road are
having problems with sightlines due to vehicles parking half on the carriageway and
half on pavement at the end of the existing yellow lines. This area is close to a
school and an access to Rowntree Park. By extending the yellow lines a short
distance sightlines would be improved and also two accesses protected.

Recommendation:
Provide 12m of double yellow lines on Bishopthorpe Road as shown on the attached
plan

15 Railway View Cost
(Raised by local resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
There was commitment made at a previous annual review to reconsider the extent of
restrictions required.

Background information:

Double yellow lines exist at this junction, 10m into North Lane and 5m into Railway

View. The extent of the restrictions was reduced from what was originally proposed
following objections from local residents. No further complaints have been received;
hence no further action is considered necessary.

Recommendation:
Take no action




Page 110

1 6 Ullswater, Silverdale Court and Acorn Way Cost
(Raised by a local resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles causing an obstruction along Ullswater. Request for yellow lines.

Background information

It is acknowledged that parking will take place on occasions that will cause some
inconvenience to the free flow of vehicles. However, the streets in question are
residential estate roads with a relatively low flow of traffic. The introduction of waiting
restrictions would probably be an ongoing inconvenience for some local residents
and their visitors. On balance, waiting restrictions are not recommended on this
occasion, but can be reconsidered at a later date if necessary.

Recommendation:
Take no action

1 7 York Road, Acomb Cost
(Raised by local residents) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
On street parking time limit is inconvenient for local residents, would like it removed.

Background information:

The allowable parking time restriction has been in place for many years, but it has
been brought to our attention that the plates giving the details of the restrictions have
been missing for well over 18 months, hence enforcement has not been carried out.
As this hasn’t been raised as a problem by residents it is likely that this situation has
been to their advantage therefore it is suggested that the restrictions should be
removed.

Recommendation:
Remove the existing on street parking 60 minute time limit

1 8 Ouseburn Avenue Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £20

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Vehicles parking near to the junction with Boroughbridge Road are causing sightline
problems. Requests the extension of the existing double yellow lines into Ouseburn
Avenue

Background information:

Cars parking in the narrow road of Ouseburn Avenue close to the junction with
Boroughbridge Road are causing visibility problems and obstructing the free flow of
traffic to and from the main road. The exiting double yellow lines at this junction are
on Boroughbridge Road but not Ouseburn Avenue. Double yellow lines are in place
along Boroughbridge Road, but not on Ouseburn Avenue.

Recommendation
Extend the existing double yellow lines into both sides of Ouseburn Avenue for 10m
(see attached plan)




Page 111

1 9 Main Street/Black Dyke Lane, Upper Poppleton Cost
£50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Vehicles parking outside the Post Office on Main Street are causing visibility
problems for drivers exiting Black Dike Lane. Yellow lines, some form of prevention
is requested

Background information:

The Post Office customers and deliveries park in Main Street very close to the
junction with Black Dyke Lane. Vehicles exiting Black Dyke Lane have difficulty
seeing oncoming traffic. There are also two dropped kerbs to the Post Office and
Electrical Sub Station that also get obstructed if vehicles park in this location.

Recommendation:
Provide 20m of double yellow lines from its junction with Black Dyke Lane (see
attached plan).

20 Beech Grove Cost
(Raised by local resident) £20

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles parked across dropped crossing. Would like existing yellow lines extending.

Background information:

The existing yellow lines stop short of the dropped kerb where pedestrians cross the
road creating difficulties for those in wheelchairs and with pushchairs. If the lines are
extended as shown on the attached plan in addition to the crossing point being kept
free the adjacent driveway will also be covered.

Recommendation:
Introduce double yellow lines as shown on the attached plan.

21 Cleveland Street, Upper St Paul's Terrace and Railway Terrace | Cost
(Raised by local resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Sight lines problems for vehicles exiting Cleveland Street and Upper St Paul's
Terrace into Wilton Rise and obstructions issues for drivers turning into Railway
Terrace from Wilton Rise. Request for double yellow lines.

Background information:

There is a high demand for parking in this area, primarily from local residents; hence
any waiting restrictions are likely to be unpopular. Visibility is poor and large
vehicles, such as the refuse wagon do have problems negotiating the corners.
Bearing these factors in mind minimal restrictions are proposed.

Recommendation:

5m of double yellow lines on Wilton Rise into at the junctions with Cleveland Street,
Upper St Paul's Terrace and 5m on both sides of Cleveland Street and Upper St
Paul's. 3m of double yellow lines southwest and 15m south east at the junction with
Railway Terrace and Wilton Rise (see attached plan).




Page 112

22 Collingwood Avenue (raised by local Resident) Cost
£40

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Vehicles parking at the junction with Collingwood Avenue and Hamilton Drive are
causing an obstruction to buses and other road users. Request for double yellow
lines

Background information:

Site visits have established that vehicles are regularly parked close to the junction
and this route is used as a bus route. The parked vehicles cause varying degrees of
difficulties for bus drivers depending on where the cars are parked.

Recommendation:
Provide 10m of double yellow lines on both sides Collingwood Avenue from its
junction with Hamilton Drive (see attached plan).

23 Acomb Road Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Removal of on street parking bays.

Background information:

Approximately 80m of 'Limited Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 60min Max Waiting
Period' exists on Acomb Road opposite Lindley Street and Murray Street. The
parking spaces have been in place for many years and it is assumed that they were
placed when the carriage works were in operation to ensure there was a turnover of
parking spaces for the local shops. These conditions are no longer in place and the
restricted parking does not allow local residents to park for extended periods outside
their properties.

Recommendation:
Remove the time restrictions on the existing on street parking spaces on this section
of Acomb Road (see attached plan).

24 Holgate Park Drive Cost
(Raised by a local employee) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking on Holgate Park Drive is obstructing free traffic flow. Double yellow lines
have been requested

Background information:

Holgate Park Drive is the main road in to the business park and there is extensive
long term parking every day that can lead to some delays to the free flow of traffic.
However, the widespread introduction of restrictions would almost inevitably lead to
a transfer of parking to the surrounding residential streets leading to ongoing
complaints from residents. The restrictions put forward will allow the traffic signal
junction to operate effectively and ensure that there are passing place opportunities
for drivers.

Recommendation:
Provide double yellow lines as shown on the attached plan.




Page 113

25 St Paul's Square Cost
(Raised by Residents Association) £60

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Obstruction issues at its south eastern junction with Watson Terrace and at the
turning head, double yellow lines have been requested

Background information:

These issues were brought to light during school safety zone work and the problems
occur on and off throughout the day. Vehicles parking near to the junction with
Watson Terrace are causing sight line problems for other road users exiting from this
junction. Parked vehicles are also obstructing the entrance to St Paul's Nursery
School.

Recommendation:
10m of double yellow lines on both sides at the junction with Watson Terrace and
50m of double yellow lines at the turning head adjacent to No 15 St Paul's Square
(see attached plan)

26 Cecelia Place Cost
(Petition from local residents, friends and visitors) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Lack of parking within Cecelia Place. Requests the removal of double yellow lines
and the introduction of an 'Access Only' TRO or create a lay-by within the verge.

Background information:

Cecelia Place is a short road that has only enough off-street parking spaces for 2
vehicles and the rest of the road is covered in double yellow lines. Nearby St Paul's
Square has an 'Access Only' TRO in place so local residents are not able to park in
this street. However, other spaces do exist in nearby streets, which are within a short
walking distance from Cecelia Place. However, residents are concerned over safety
when walking to and from their vehicles and vandalism / theft of vehicles. The
petition was considered by the Planning and Transport (West Area) Sub-Committee,
which recommended that the verge area be investigated for the possibility of this
being surfaced and becoming a parking area. Investigations carried out have shown
that there are services in the verge and the cost of converting them to a lay-by would
be prohibitively expensive. The removal of the existing lines would result in a return
to the parking problems (such as blocking the turning head) that lead to the
introduction of the lines in the first place, hence, this option is not being put forward.
Due to the ineffectiveness of Access Only restrictions, it is City Council policy to not
introduce any more Access Only restrictions; hence this request is also not being put
forward for consideration.

Recommendation:
Take no action (see attached plan).




Page 114

27 Carleton Street Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Existing limited waiting is inconvenient to local residents and they request its
removal.

Background information:

The existing restrictions allow 60 minutes Limited Waiting between 8am-6pm and
this applies to residents as well as other road users. The restrictions have been in
place for many years and the street is on the list for consideration for residents
parking. The consultation required for residents parking will take quite some time to
complete and the removal of the current restrictions may be a compromise way
forward in the interim.

Recommendation:
The removal 80m of existing Limited Waiting TRO (see attached plan)

28 Asqot Way _ Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £60

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles parking in the entrance to garages, double yellow lines requested

Background information:

Ascot Way is 4m wide at this junction and it leads to a row of garages. Although
parking is intermittent it does potentially affect quite a few residents entering and
exiting their garages.

Recommendation:
Providing approx 60m of double yellow lines (see attached plan)

29 Leeman Road/Garfield Terrace Cost
(Raised by First Group) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Buses entering from Leeman Road into Garfield Terrace have difficulty turning due
to parked vehicles, request double yellow lines

Background information:

Where Leeman Road joins Garfield Terrace vehicles are parking on the hatched
area outside No 1 Kingsland Terrace and along the northern side of Garfield
Terrace, this can cause problems for buses travelling into Garfield Terrace from
Leeman Road.

Recommendation:
Provide approx 50m of double yellow lines on the northern side of Garfield Terrace
(see attached plan).




Page 115

30 West Bank Cost
(Raised by local resident via Cllr Stephen Galloway) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parked vehicles along West Bank are causing an obstruction, request for double
yellow lines (see attached plan)

Background information:

On West Bank, north from its junction with Firtree Close, vehicles have been parking
on the footway at varying times of day. Because of the alignment of the road this
causes problems, particularly at school times, for pedestrians.

Recommendation:
Provide approx 110m of double yellow lines (see attached plan)

31 West Thorpe/Sandcroft Road junction Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Sightline problems at the junction of West Thorpe and Sandcroft Road, double
yellow lines have been requested

Background information:

At the junction of West Thorpe and Sandcroft Road vehicles are parking on the
carriageway near to the entrance to West Thorpe Methodist Church, this is causing a
sightline problem for vehicles entering/exiting from this entrance and obstructions to
various dropped kerbs around this location. It is acknowledges that there likely to be
times when parked vehicles do obstruct the view for those leaving the church,
however, parking restrictions would affect local residents on a daily basis.

Recommendation:
Take No Action (see attached plan)

32 Thurston House and St. Benedict Road Cost
(Raised by Councillor Fraser) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
The existing residents parking restrictions allow 60 minutes non-resident parking.
Would like this reduced to 10 minutes.

Background information:

The parking bays outside Thurston House and in St. Benedict Road were put in as
60 minute parking because of the commercial premises and the health centre in the
area. As this situation has not changed and the Bishopthorpe Road car park seems
to be well used it does not seem appropriate to change the non-resident parking limit
to 10 minutes as this would tip the parking availability in the area too far towards
residential use from the current mixed residential / commercial usage.

Recommendation:
Take no action.




Page 116

33 The Mount Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Would like the possibility of additional residents parking bays investigating.

Background information:

Parking demand in the R2 residents parking zone is in high demand and it has been
suggested that an additional bay could be provided outside number 134 next to the
bus stop. An additional bay positioned parallel to the kerb can be provided without
compromising the effectiveness of the bus stop; hence this proposal is put forward.

Recommendation:
Remove the existing double yellow lines and introduce a residents parking bay on
the same terms and conditions as the existing spaces in this area.

3 4 Brecks lane, Strensall Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking close to the junction is causing an obstruction.

Background information:

There is a business that operates close to the corner and this generates long term
parking that on occasions is right up to the junction. This prevents easy exit and
entry to the street and difficulties for drivers to pass each other.

Recommendation:
Provide double yellow lines (see attached plan)

35 Marlborough Grove Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Residents parking on both sides of the road make access for large vehicles difficult.
Would like some of the residents parking spaces removed.

Background information:

This residents parking scheme was put in before the current set of design standards
was agreed with the emergency services. If a residents parking scheme was to be
taken forward now parking would not put in on both sides of the road, however, there
has been no request from the emergency services for the older schemes to be
reviewed. The remaining road width between the parking bays is approximately 2m.
In order to increase this to allow easy access 3 residents parking spaces would need
to be removed.

Recommendation:
Remove the residents parking bays as shown on the attached plan.




Page 117

36 Library Square Cost
(Raised by Council Officer) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Enforcement of the existing restrictions is open to challenge. Need to formalise the
disabled parking arrangements.

Background information:

An informal set of disabled parking spaces has been marked out for many years in
Library Square in order to encourage blue badge holders to park in one place rather
than randomly around the square on the yellow lines for up to 3 hours as their badge
allows them to. There is a single yellow line at the back of the parking bays that
prohibits parking Monday to Saturday and allowing anyone to park on a Sunday.
This system has worked very well, however, there are an increasing level of
challenges made to the issue of parking tickets where the signing and lining do not
tie in with the regulations and in this case may be able to successfully argue that the
yellow lines and parking bay lines contradict each other. In order to protect the
current parking provision for blue badge holders this area should be brought into line
with best current practise.

Recommendation:

Remove the single yellow line restriction from the parking bay area and create formal
disabled parking spaces Monday to Saturday and leave unrestricted on Sundays
(see attached plan).

37 Heworth Place Cost
(Raised by local Resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Drivers parking close to the Heworth Road junction and on the footway. Would like
yellow lines.

Background information:

The bulk of Heworth Place is an unadopted road, but the section between Heworth
Road and Limes Court, which is only 5m wide, has been adopted. Any vehicles
parked on this length of road will affect the ability to enter or exit the road freely. It
should be noted that the terraced properties on Heworth Road do not have any off
street parking provision and have reported a reluctance to park in Heworth Place
because notes are put on their cars regarding the road being a private road. The
status of private road does not give those owners of the road any rights over who
may use the road, but being made unwelcome can be intimidating. Bearing this in
mind a minimal set of restrictions at the junction is suggested.

Recommendation:
Provide double yellow lines (see attached plan)




Page 118

38 Galtres Grove Cost
(Raised by local resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles parking in a narrow road creating access difficulties. Would like waiting
restrictions.

Background information:

This is a narrow cul-de-sac and further to the initial concerns raised a redevelopment
is taking place at the sports club over the road. As part of the redevelopment a
commitment has been made to consider the parking issues in the immediate area.
Whilst parking in the road is likely to have an adverse impact on local residents from
time to time the introduction of waiting restrictions will prevent any parking taking
place by visitors.

Recommendation:
Take no action at this time and review as part of the new development.

39 Southolme Drive Cost
(Raised by Local Resident) £40

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking close to the junction and on the footway. Would like waiting restrictions.

Background information:

When vehicles are parked too close to the junction drivers entering the road have to
brake abruptly if there is a car approaching the junction from the other direction. Site
visits have confirmed that there is regular long term parking taking place and also on
the footway on occasions. However, the introduction of extensive waiting restrictions
would move the parking further down the road to where residents and their
driveways front on to the street, which is likely to create more problems for residents
than there are at present. It is therefore suggested that introducing 20m (4 car
lengths) of restrictions would overcome the problems associated with accessing the
street without creating a significant migration of the parking. Vehicles left parked on
the footway can be tackled by the Police on the grounds of obstruction and this
matter has been passed to them for their information.

Recommendation:
Introduce 20m of no waiting at any time restrictions as shown on the attached plan.




Page 119

40 Low Poppleton Lane Cost
(Raised by local residents) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Duration of the existing waiting restrictions is excessive and would like them relaxing.

Background information:

The existing restrictions in Low Poppleton Lane of no waiting 8am to 6pm and on
street parking for 1 hour have been in place for many years and were aimed at
preventing long term parking in the street by commuters to the local businesses.
Residents have requested that the restrictions be relaxed to no waiting 8am to 6pm
Monday to Friday (excluding bank holidays) and increasing the maximum time in the
parking bays to 2 hours, again Monday to Friday excluding bank holidays. Having
reviewed the restrictions in the area it is felt appropriate to amend the restrictions
broadly in line with residents requests as shown on the attached plan.

Recommendation:

Introduce no waiting at any time at the junction with Boroughbridge Road and in the
turning head area.

Relax the remaining waiting restrictions to operate Monday to Friday.

Increase the maximum permitted parking time in the parking bays to 2 hours.

41 Great North Way Cost
(Raised by local business) £60

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Sugar beet lorries parking close up to the roundabout creating an obstruction.

Background information:

This is a dual carriageway road leading to and from the commercial estate and the
parking that takes place is very limited. However, large vehicles parking close to the
roundabout reducing the road to one lane does affect the capacity of the junction and
could cause visibility problems. In this case it is suggested that 30m of yellow lines
be put in to ensure there is free flow of traffic at the roundabout junction.

Recommendation:
Introduce the no waiting at any time restrictions as shown on the attached plan.

42 Oxford Street Cost
(Raised by local resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Residents parking operates 9am to 5pm Monday to Saturday. Would like it extending
to 24 hour.

Background information:

Oxford Street is a short street off Holgate Road with space for 2 vehicles. Non-
residential parking is permitted for up to 1 hour to help cater to local business needs.
It is alleged that long term evening parking is increasing by people visiting premises
in the central area, hence residents parking availability is reduced in the evenings.

Recommendation:
Extend the residents parking hours of operation to 24 hours, 7 days a week.




Page 120

43 Carr Lane / Rosedale Avenue Cost
(Raised by Councillor Simpson-Laing) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parking obstructing drivers visibility. Would like existing restrictions extending.

Background information:

On street parking is permitted for 1 hour between 8am and 6pm Monday to Saturday
on the section of Carr Lane under consideration. Whilst it is acknowledged that in
some instances a large vehicle in this location will restrict views site visits suggest
that this is not a frequent occurrence. Providing drivers take adequate care safety is
not compromised and the loss of parking is likely to be resisted.

Recommendation:
Take no action.

44 Scarcroft Road Cost
(Raised by local bed and breakfast) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Lack of parking availability for guesthouses. Would like 1 hour non-resident parking
time limit reduced to 10 minutes.

Background information:

The existing bay can accommodate approximately 7 cars for use by guest houses
and houses of multiple occupancy in zones R16, R36 and R40 and allows parking
for up to 1 hour for non-permit holders. The one hour parking for non-permit holders
allows drivers to the local shops and the adjacent church the opportunity to park free
of charge rather than use the car park on Bishopthorpe Road. Whilst this facility
benefits the customers to the local businesses and church it reduces the opportunity
to park for guesthouses permit holders who have to pay for the parking. The aim of
residents parking scheme is to try to balance the needs of all those in the local
community and this can rarely be done to everyone’s satisfaction. Previous
suggestions to reduce the non-permit holders time limit to 10 minutes have been
resisted, hence a half hour non-permit holder time limit is put forward as a
compromise even though this is not one of the time limits normally used in residents
parking zones. It should be noted that this suggested alteration does not affect the
parking availability in any way for residents in the area.

Recommendation:
Reduce the non-permit holders parking time limit from 1 hour to 30 minutes in the
bay shown on the attached plan.

45 Sandacre Court Cost
(Raised by local resident) £30

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Vehicles causing visibility problems. Would like yellow lines.

Background information:
Vehicles parked at the end of the existing yellow lines and the alignment of the road
make it difficult for drivers to see approaching vehicles.

Recommendation:
Extend the existing double yellow lines as shown on the attached plan.




Page 121

46 Elmtree Gardens / Oak Rise Cost
(Raised by Councillor Horton) £60

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Background information:
Vehicles parked on the narrow road are causing visibility and access problems.
These problems are made worse because the road is quite steep.

Recommendation:
Introduce double yellow lines as shown on the attached plan.

47 Bramble Dene / Moorcroft Road Cost
(Raised by local resident) £80

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parked vehicles are causing visibility problems. Would like yellow lines.

Background information:

Since the local pub has stopped people using its car park there has been an
increase in on street parking in the area and this has resulted in both access and
visibility problems for drivers entering and exiting Bramble Dene.

Recommendation:
Introduce double yellow lines as shown on the attached plan.

48 Royal Chase Cost
(Raised by local resident) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Cars parking close to the junction. Would like yellow lines.

Background information:

Although it is alleged that parking is a problem at this location and it is
acknowledged that it will happen from time to time, ad hoc site visits have not
revealed this to be a frequent, long term parking problem.

Additional information is expected on this item before the meeting.

Recommendation:
To discuss during meeting.

49 Manor Drive Cost
(Raised by Council Officer) £40

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Parked vehicles are obstructing the view for pedestrians crossing the road. Would
like the existing restrictions extending.

Background information:

As part of the review of the 20mph zone introduced on Manor Drive it was noted that
pedestrians could not see well when crossing the road due to vehicles parked close
up to the tactile crossing point.

Recommendation:
Extend the restrictions as shown on the attached plan.




Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123

Annex C
Other Restrictions
A Scarcroft Lane Cost
(Raised by Landlord of Trafalgar Bay Public House, Nunnery Lane) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:

Dray Wagons delivering to the Trafalgar Bay Public House, Nunnery Lane can cause
traffic problems along Nunnery Lane during delivery times. Create a
loading/unloading area for the Dray Wagon by moving the existing barriers on
Scarcroft Lane.

Background information:
This work has already been completed as part of an earlier project.

Recommendation:
No further action.

B Staithes Close Cost
(Raised by ClIr Horton) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Area of footpath being used by cyclists, request for a 'No Cycling' sign

Background information:

An area of land fronting even-numbered property No's 2-8 Staithes Close and odd-
numbered property No's 9-15 Staithes Close consists of a grassed area surrounded
by a footpath (see attached plan). This footpath is being used by local youths as a
cycle track, which is upsetting the local residents. Whilst the Police are able to take
action against people cycling on the footway this tends to be a low priority, hence
enforcement action is unlikely to be carried out. There is a standard sign available
that prohibits the use of cycles (a cycle symbol within a red circle), but to erect this
sign a traffic regulation order has to be in place and the enforcement would still be
down to the police. It is considered extremely unlikely that such a regulation would
be self-enforcing and it may lead to greater dissatisfaction for local residents due to
the abuse of the regulations.

Recommendation:
Take no action




Page 124

C Poppleton Park Cost
(Raised by Councillor Hopton) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Speed of vehicles travelling within the traffic calmed estate. Would like a 20mph
speed limit.

Background information:

This is a relatively new estate that has been built with traffic calming features from
the outset. The estate is off a 40mph road and therefore needs to have 30mph
speed limit signs at the entrance. As the streets are all traffic calmed to the extent
that the average speed will be at or below 20mph no additional works would be
required to introduce the lower speed limit of 20mph. The roads within the estate are
still in the maintenance period and the responsibility of the developer, however the
developer has no objections to a 20mph speed limit.

Recommendation:
That a 20mph speed limit be introduced on the roads in the area shown on the
attached plan.

D Arran Place Cost
(Raised by Councillor Kind) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
The signed speed limit is 30mph. Would like the speed limit reducing to 20mph

Background information:

Arran Place is a narrow cul-de-sac off the 20mph speed limit section of Dodsworth
Avenue. Because Arran Place is not within the area designated as 20mph signs are
in place showing 30mph. Because of the characteristics of the road the average
speeds will be at or below 20mph, hence, no additional traffic calming measures
would be needed.

Recommendation:
Extend the 20mph speed limit zone as shown on the attached plan.

E Clifford Street / Coppergate Cost
(Raised by resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Would like an exemption to the existing no right turn for cyclists.

Background information:

At present there is a no right turn from Clifford Street to Coppergate that applies to
all vehicles. Cyclists are allowed to use Coppergate at all times from the other
direction and there is room for them to wait in the middle of the road without blocking
the through route from Clifford Street to Nessgate. No special measures would be
needed to allow this movement and it would allow cyclists using the riverside cycle
route to cross the city centre without having to use the inner ring road.

Recommendation:
Relax the no right turn ban to exempt cyclists.




Page 125

F Acaster Lane Cost
(Raised by local resident) £100

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Would like the 30mph speed limit moving.

Background information:

The existing 30mph speed limit starts on the Bishopthorpe side of the old railway
bridge after the start of the built up area. In order to include all the residential
properties in the 30mph speed limit and to ensure adequate visibility of the signs the
speed limit would need to be moved to the Acaster Malbis side of the railway bridge
as shown on the attached plan.

Recommendation:
Relocate the 30mph speed limit as shown on the attached plan.

G School Lane and Croft Court Cost
(Raised by local resident) £50

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
The signed speed limit is 30mph. Would like the speed limit reducing to 20mph

Background information:

School Lane and Croft Court are narrow culs-de-sac off the 20mph speed limit
section of Main Street, Bishopthorpe. Because these streets are not within the area
designated as 20mph signs are in place showing 30mph. Because of the
characteristics of the road the average speeds will be at or below 20mph, hence, no
additional traffic calming measures would be needed.

Recommendation:
Extend the 20mph speed limit zone as shown on the attached plan.

H Northolme Drive and Southolme Drive Cost
(Raised by Councillor Moore) £0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Suggested making these roads one way.

Background information:

These two streets run parallel to each other from Shipton Road to Eastholme Drive.
Whilst creating a one way system would reduce the number of junctions on to
Shipton Road it would also be potentially more inconvenient for those residents living
in the streets. In addition, one way streets can lead to increased traffic speeds due to
the lack of opposing traffic resulting in increased concerns from residents. One way
streets have to have illuminated no entry signs and illuminated one way signs placed
at regular intervals along the street, which are very costly (and outside the scope of
the annual review funding) to install. There does not appear to be any strategic
advantages in taking forward a one way system for these streets.

Recommendation:
Take no further action.




Page 126

Wheatlands Grove
(raised by local Resident)

Cost
£0

Nature of Problem and requested solution:
Local resident concerned about vehicles exiting from Wheatlands Grove into
Boroughbridge Road has requested the road be closed.

Background information:

Whilst the closure of the road will remove through traffic it would also cause
inconvenience to local residents and redistribute the existing flows to adjacent

streets possibly leading to those residents having additional concerns. There are no

pressing traffic management reasons to close the road and is no opportunity to
provide an adequate turning head area, hence a closure is not recommended.

Recommendation:
Take no action.




.§(.wn,.”ﬁ.,hnw.”uuu.u.”,,_..;,n..nhn.ﬁa%....,,.,E‘ss...,.%éy s g Q\mz JO 30UD10G oy
e SR T
f 28] S,ukqny IS - | z [O1ED) |

O\ .\

) comn._ .m_.__flm.n_ -uw.rw Jo E
wdg 0} veg Buiem o NN
w1 Kuy B Buriep oN % 7

%8, \

SNOILO¥LSTY Q380d0yd

20, BuXIEg103AS LD e v e e
Wdg 0] WEG BUNiEAA ON = m ==
B | Auy 1y Buniept ON e | N
SNCO11 D uLS 3% ONILSIX 3 _

ATA

Page 127/




A pe0a.6 447 .0 ORACARD.0 ) PEM S TAY K0 Al E00W A8 MOGWDT. e, PIROANELA WDLVIDD MDD — _ 4

#3000 A POTEr 1 UM o0 S DRVD’] 00,0 VORI o B IR G20+ 490G 00001 T4, A WO RO7R0. s mgmz ;H.o Ooco,_.om D:H _

#0,9 buyradu)

e - e T <o |
r 1001S WOSSO[ .|ﬂ )&w %WO#OHH@U |
SR PR _

. o . O
D N

\ -
\\ “‘

awr) Auy 1y Buresm oN % _

SNO'LDid15 3% 03S0a0Ud _

20e)d Bureg 19315 U0 e e s e _

widg 0} LEY BUIEAM ON = = =

S| Auy 1y Buiep ON  eeme— _
SNOILD LS TY ONLSIXE

A




RO0 PREOLLE 10 .0 YORoeA 0 O PR Pa, FAE 1 BOAST ) Q.0 S80I SORIARALIE M OMT LN B0, WS T.)
$090) LALCKIG B QPUEN Mhe 10 MIORLO, B 40 MR S i/ ELdiu 042, | TaIAQ IOLILIN) (06, S uXiy PROFILg

vonesueda)
- —_— - _ 4wy By
R da¥q A 0 W8 WYSQ pors) Iv05

| 90B1ID | Wey3unse - ¢

- sdepy Jo ooudiog oy |,

T A3070118)

“ a2eld Buppey 12a0S U0 _.”.”.”._._.

o wag 01 weg Bul-BA; ON %
7 s Auy 1y Bunieps oN %

SNO'1I¥LS 3N 350a0dd

20e1d Buiyieq 19SS UQ s e e e
wdg O} weg BuNep ON m m
Fwiy AUy 1y BUNEAR ON e

SNOIIORILSIY ONSXD \
r - il




SBApenI0A iy 38 wopEC.d 0 Dl At PUF L BLAGE ) W80 480, wiene0.di. OIS LDANELT W07 a0 6
MO AR, 5 (SN b (O AROREY) S 0 SOKELS. ol FU I ELMORL 007 | 4SS JPLRLG TEA, W Ok pADH Pluge

- - - —_——

uoresie3 g
o Bwar,Q o burnbug
ey itya el AUMYR0 hid AvIQ

N0 JUNH - ¥

#28ig Bued 19948 U0 ﬁ

wag o1 weg Gun-es oN Z
8t Auy 1y Bunieas oN %

SNOLLDH1S T 03S0a0Bd

ST

A/

01d BUDLE4 RIS LD e v 0w

WOG O] Weg Buiepy ON == = =

3w Auy )y Bunies ON  re—
SNOILO'H 1S3 ONILSIX3

JEN |




SRRSO P 0 X0 TSR, O PR AT PUE iBATN 1 awal?) sa8lp vORC R0 A0 LOUNILS B IO ume
A0 COODRELS AL e (O IIRD] S0 isshred L ik BB 002+ SOAS BIURGR.C) 0N, W) WOy PO3eDa.g w _

— — e ] T\,T, | sdejy JO 20Ua10§ Y|

T opIEn | %woﬁotmo

7 uo.mE uapIeD) - Q

_ s0.1g Buwey PG uD

2udg 0} weg buleas oN %
oy Ay Jy Bunep oN %

SNOLD'H 183y G3S0d0ud

Ldg 0} Wweg Bun-ept ON = wa
Mty AdY Iy BUNBAL O s

802y Bupged 194G LD e »
SNCIID LS IH ONILSIX3




G M e 3.0 L0050 O PN S BUE B ADOZ WD, ) $60L i LIRS DO, DG AT ELD 1A0AT0N WO S
A0 AAOUPS S ENVYY Ay 3 04007 By 0 WORERLAG IRA o BuidiB G2, o FBLNG S TuD.) LEA, T VT PRINPAL

|
_ uonesizelin
_ tw B . 0.8 b

;nr, w . 22 vvud 1 I%S

;_ mom.ﬂ.s L plojsaiag / peoy adioyidoysig - 9

SdeAl JO 20UIOG AY |,

A3ojoue))

A S
208)q Bumieg 19a0g uQ
wJog 0} weg Bup-ean ON %
W Auy 1y Bupess oN %

SNCILDH153% 0350d0ud

90E|d Bunped 9GS U0 e e s @

wdg 01 weg Buyesy ON = wm e

Bl Auy )y BUTBAR ON e
SNOILDIYISIY ONSIX3




£ AD K LON IR, D} PES S B, Pu® 0 B4, vt ol Pe.ca. pat UL IBoAN ) o, S —
0 LALONIS T AN LBy D AN 8,0 TR0 P i DO OS2, |, ARG EUPLALD £00. MR w0 PRCS0. m mQN o DOGD ﬁo o
0

ggoﬁi wr A3 O10LIE )




SOURRIIOK 5 L0 LOKIEC, N Oy PR VI BLE ABWAID , umb, | 3080w LDRCROAN. pes DQRELD BUNIDN weo, N G
QO LALCATIS S A I LB (D IR") A O O I B O M Bu B 07, o+ AP WVu0e) (04, MR Wl By m

- e W%Z 1O oo:msm Y[ 7
A3oroue)

’

L . vonesiugdip

on Do) - wogam, ,

LA N e 3 , M
I

8

LN 25 Nyvrd

| | pIBA S UOXI(] -

= |
|

wtig o} weg Bunep oN %

2wl Auy Y Buleam oN % & \
SNOILD'HLS3Y 03S0d0ua 7 /\ .

08)d BuNEQ IPAIS U s e ee

wdg 01 Weg BUIRA ON == m m i
[ _ ui| Ay Jy BUREAA ON e

SNO 1D LS TH ONILSX I 7 A
| AN

v
‘\ |mom_n_lm_._wx._mu 19945 U0
|




M MAR (0 vOWLAEE. O PIE Al PAE BUABI") 0, 5 EB0MA YORINROAIR, RO BT wBLATED NG
WEN Wi 0 .N.CR.DT SR O ONTA O S W BIdRG [7, » SAFG BOLTLRIO LO0) S iy PRICPAg

uongsre3 _
o boarubug

goubmb:nm:_m-

sdepy Jo 9ouardg Ay |

A3070118)

-




2BL REAID d Wi, 3 WEArITER.T 0 PEN AP DUE 1ZAHOT aM0.T 80U gt LDRIMPO.OE. Pas ogm Fun oA NO) wMD. ) §

0040 LOVOREIS £ A SMER .00 I 1IIRIN ) I 0 wOKT Lu.Bd g et BUIB (57, 4 $AUPL TUPLR0 (00, M) wlla RETDILy
uonesireiin
an Bume. 4705 il
Wi vy 3v0 +d vl R L)

ade1g Buieg Joang uQ |1

.... v

wdg o} weg Buniep oN %
dwny Auy Jy Buniesy oN %

NOILORILS 3y 33S0d0uy

8081 Buwe4J9eNg U0 s e e e
LXig 0) Weg BuNeAA ON == == =
Qi) Auy 1y BLYRAA ON  e—
SNOILOIYLESIY ONILSX 3

JAOIN) YIRIP[Y -@

s -~ sdepy Jo 20udIdS Y |

~ A3oj01e)

Z

I H H __
e X
! __.

_. _ __ -| —
F | -
. = ! | |
! |

5 (Hd) : 7

1S0d
Buluup

syl




ABUDES" 0.0 WA .0 LOMCDWER.T T DEM LR Pul DA ) 0.7 £06 4l WO DRI PO DA BRI Wi Y ’ _

@D LOUOITIT 1 ATOIEY Ve o© SIOAI0 ) 4.0 S8 104 <30 DL 057,  ABA °E O 00, WU wain DO PO Y I mgmz (ﬁo Docoﬁom D,—(_.HL

uonesIedI()
 oytameq | 0.5 hoartug

T swgemmeno |1 ASojoue)

1 z

Lo widg 0} weg Bun-ep oN % !
AW ) Auy 1y Bunieas oN %

SNOILOILS 3 0350a08d 3
S

908 Buped18RNS L) e s s e
widg 0 weg BUNEAA ON = =
Bl | ALy 1y BUNIEAA ON  eee— -
SNO'LD'E 1S 34 ONILSIXS : _

| A
!

Vg g

I0Y039 ;g




o4 B,
RY

EO@EO

SO0 DOODLA 1 1.0 SO IACLE DL PIN (B P BUADD ) 0.7 S0 gut LORIAPDLON. DS LA PLE L BUAGE] WL DG
¥, LCRRE 3 QVMEYE M ,0 OAA ) OO VIILL I 3 e BUdin [y, , UL S0 PLILQ £63, WA W0A PHITRC 4

K10190Y - 7| N_

sdepy Jo 2oudrdog Ay |

A3o[01e)

H
q

Q

_
-
_

E __ _ 7 N
| - = - -
_ | . 13

! T o= —
| 2919 Buwed 19945 LO m ru.
_ |

— - Buesp o

T wdg 0} weg Bupem oN %
- 7 auwr | Auy Jy Buniea oN %

SNO'LO1Y1S I 03S0a08d
. | 7 97e|g Buiyleg }oaas uD e n e
' wdg O} weg BuNep ON = = =
uit) AU Jy GUNBAA ON s
SNOILDIYISTY ONiESIX3 —




e bt esm v oo s
i . e — sdeA Jo 90ua10g AY |,
T amau E..H..um. T T aro TN HSP.””M_ d M \ﬁw
| Q0B1ID & wooémo M- €1 | O#O”—.ﬂw U
_ N

ok Bued 1S uQ |

WLdg 0] weg Buniea oN %
suip Auy 1y BuTep ON %

SNO!LD1S3 0 1S0a0¥d

0e)d Buyz4 19SS v e o 0 e g* |
11.dg O] WEQ BLHEM ON =a = == -
Wl Ay 1y BUNBAL ON e \

SNOILORLSTY ONLSX3




AWOUPNON ¥ D .6 WAL, O Prin B FT AR WO, $B0MAR LORINPO Db A9 O B WA ) w0 G

W0 LAOBIS BAEHEN M L0 WOALDD S 10 LDNTRE B0 8 % B, 047, o RIS, BSLILD.C LO0) 8204 P IOS mgmz vwo oo:owuw O:H‘ _

uonESIPRIQ 4

I s
T T pggetey: e s %w o,—Oth |

I “peoy adiomdoystg - p1 |
_

- 1 - " I‘.J.|4

[ SRR
no_mfx .r____ wdg o1 weg Buep ON %

S
- ali | Fuy v Bugiea oN . ‘
8E | |

SNO!LOIY1SIY A3S0a0ud |
/]

- 29e)d Bupueg 19Ag WO [l 7

B Bune193NS U) s e s e

| Ady 1y BUTeAA ON s
SNOILDH 1S3 ONILSIX3 |

A

wiog 0) Weg SuNes ON e = = |
| |

R
o..i...o.ooto




$Bu POAI0.E WD M LOKIEC.D 0 DI APy PUR A (0D weD, | 1000 yud L0 DL. 00, RS O LD 807 WD &

sy Lewoams 4

AGOEP 0 O ARORE ) WL O WIS LB I e BUdE®u D570 o F LR FUPLNLO (64 B wly DAY AD.g

uonesImed 10y

___ weog baneuibug

P L

20e(d Bunped 18ang ug |l

wdg 0y weg Bunieg, oN W/ﬂé
aun Auy 1y Bumem on %

NOILOIYLS Ty Q3S0d0ud

kg BuWeg19NS UD e a e
uxdg 0] weg BUNEAA ON = w =
Bull} Auy 1y BUGIBAA ON, enmm—
SNOILJIFLS3Y ONILSIXT

— AN

moIA Kemey - G|

sdeJy Jo aoua1dg Ay |.

A30710118)

-




M WA LD o 0.0 D) PEW Swa pull 9] ) selu gyl o PO di. AMUONE LA W ELADR) WML )T
90 AL TRE 5 KEWER b 10 ORI 99,0 w0 e B L o EWOAEL D7, o SRAFS SURLELD FO0) @ a0y PO D0d m m “_m o @O ﬂo,—U D 7

Agojoue)

T

T i —— u %;
i e\ UI0OY 29 1IN0D) S[BPISA[IS JIEMS][(] - 91 _

* N
_\ ___
/ =7
~d
N_q
/




B LUIO0.C B s L0 RSO G DI AR DUt B 807) owd.?) S0 L CPOMEL DO DAL WBED ;D)
Mg AROLRS % UEHEN 1,0 N CAGDT) 3 0 SOKTI.off B AW BL 1M (52, , (808G SOUEUDAD LB, M wOn PRy

uonesumdig
an, Bawme ) dng<) Bunew L)
ARNNYRC “wo gt

qUIODY “‘PROY IO A - mg

s | sdeA] JO 20udIdS Y.

v 298g BuEL 19S5 UD

uldg 0] weg Bunep on %

et Auy ly BuleA ON
SEEE -
SNO'1LD'¥ 1934 A350d0¥g

aoeld Bunded RN U) e e e e

WG 0} WEg BuUEAL ON we = =

by AUy 1Y BUTBAA ON s
SNOHL D LSIY ONLSIX 3

AN

— T\

U

., oM
R dogs S8 eﬁ.“h..vuﬂ\ o.ﬂm‘MN

A3070118)

A Vv\\«) .




SEAUTIA BNO X0 L0 9, DN AT BUN D] 0D Bl SRTNPOIR POALANILN A ATET MDD T
B0 A MLTATIS T ATMIN (B j0 A ALE]) 0,0 SORELL. W P et Budima 057, » 184,73 O NFRPAD CH0, T il REWRD o

- o

| -
uoinesiedicy

_ on fuvt.g] L — __rogbane,

At A NARED LI~

—a

|.|S

QNUOAY TINQISH

29814 Bubped 199118 VO : i 7

wiag o) weg Bunep oN % 7
aul | Auy ly BuIBAA ON % L

SNOI OIS Y 03S0d0¥d 7 _

a%e1y Buped 183G U0) s e e e L 7
wdg 0} 1028 BUNEAL ON = = -

Al AUY 1Y BUnIEAN ON  sem— ‘ 7
SNOILO™N 1S 3% ONIISIXS




SOLPIIOM D uOMRAR 0. O DER Iy YR, LOATDT) ") S0l W4ICRONIS, pbu .Ogm BuAd) Wwn) G
S0 LOusES 1IN 0 0 ORI Wy 0 e the. o I A BLEII (520 » S0ArS uEL L, B WOy PINPOsy

| . sdeyy Jo 9oua1dg ay |
_______ wed 1) roghant %5

| owiova v sww-er 1 Aojoe)

|

aF:_..._..f_qmca_m.soz% 7 '

SNOILOY 1894 3IS0d0Yd

3%k Bupked 199G UD e e w @ 7

Wag 0] wep BuNeA ON = = -

g Auy Ty Bunieps ON  ee—
SNOILILSTY ONILSIXT

abejon
Jouepy




10UPERIOR] WS 2 LRCIHON W RN W PUB WMEWAD] WD, ) IBEL LDRITRONET MR CANILT i dey ML) G - wj |—

Fapoivy S sdejq JO 90Ud10G Y |

_ [

- ?xL uovesies i)
.I _re xd . — . A0 NMYED = ?..“. 0 w _15 w
| Ag3ooye)

1 JA0ID) INWISAY)) / oﬂ?@ o39g .ﬂ,oms,

\“ - — — ./|J

\ _ wdg 0] weg Bun-epm ON %
\ _ Sl Ady 1y BuIRAR ON % _
| sNOILORLSM 0380a0Yd |
/ i 208)d Buineg 199NS U0 e e e e _

wdg o) weg BuREA ON = v =
/ 2uit] Auy 1y BugIeps ON e _
_ SNO'1DHISIN ONUSIX3 _

L A

/

Page 146 +—




e .0 AF L0 SONYIDX O PI AR PU ABAATDD, wmOe SaBU Yot Vo INDO.BK. Pt LCANPLA 1BV 00 ) W0/ )
P LRORNG & LRSI i O NORLDT B 43 LOeaansed My BB (52, | ARUS 3 UBUR0) 68, R AT , FENPO o

oh ey

uaesed g
_ rog buyr. g

Lot ¥

QW

AANATE W 3vIS

BaIy oSIy UOI[IAL - |7

ANV

ae|g Busueq leaug ug

way 0} weg bupep oy %
awi | Auy 1y Bumegs oN %

SNCHOIELSIY 0380d0%4a

P0B|g BuNE{ 19045 L) s e e

wdg O] wep BuLess ON = wm =
by AUY 1Y BLUBAA ON e
SNOIDIMISTY ONILSXT
N~

sdepy Jo 2oua1dg Y.




SEBORCOM A LT LORIIGEE.T D) PEM AT FLE JBAIO) wmd/ ) 30U WOAINLOAIS, PSR 1lAdn 1w, 3
FHO ARLOLIG BRI 000 0 ARORAT AR O SORTLL. B 0o e OLI Tl 075 o ABAINS BOLILE O COI, Wl 04y P POy

uonjesedi()
drox) fuan,

- 48 WAVHa IwIS

ONUIAY @ooBmE:oo C

sdejq Jo 20uaIog Ay |,

A3ojoue)

— 7 ——

\\ E\So yoseg,

N\_

_\ &m_n_ Buped 19848 U0
uidq 0) weg Bunrep ON %
aw | Auy Iy Bumieps oN %

SNG LI 1574 350d0ua

ae.d BULB4 19SS V) s e s @

W09 0] g Bujiepg ON = wm wa

Fw | Auy 3y Sudiepy ON  ee—
SNOL. 25183y ONILSIX3

_ A
If_lll_l o oL
n_ﬁ\ o
| ﬁ_____%.mm
\lm

.




25U 1O AL 10 LOMNRO.D 0f PIN (M PuT 1 AM00) w0, ]) 38004 WK Do, 8, Pog Lo mELn . DABIY W 3 0
02,0 AUBIELS £ A HEA 91,0 MNERP] 9 0 SORtlu.0d Bal it DU D57, , 7RG 23UVLI.C [ G4 KA O B9 MO0,

an PI}M

LRl uva

uoneaIed i
. o buambug
IS

! pROY qUOdY .@

¥ Wvad [LT

J
—_—

T
_ﬂ_

*

9% 3

sdeA JO 90UAIDS Y.

-

ixh_l\

- - -
!

i

/

. 208, Euryied 194G U0 ,_““”“”mw

Jidg 0, weg Buniea oN %u
7 aw | Auy Jy Bud-eas oN %

7 SNO1OIHLSTY §3S0d0ud

aoeid Buiye410aS L) e e e e
_ w09 0} WEG BLYEAL ON m wm =

A1 AUy 1y BURBAL ON s
\ SNOILD'B.S34 ONILSIXT

A

A3o[oye) |

I
I




- - - — - - - - . . - — — — — /7

SBARMITONT AL N DL Of PEM Vi I L8 KE) ) 0linn wORXPONID, pob SO DLadde) WG

s...ar!a._...i..;..,:o...-...x..;s..:.iZ..;Ps.:s... (aRG, BLILDIO) DG, W8 <Xy XA mgmz a%o OQG@Mow DA\—r—L __

dna.<) Ay, ,..?.O

P ol BN \mwoﬁotmo _f

QEQ yred oamﬁom vN
e/ Aﬂlﬂfaﬁ

-~ L

O¥OU NOL 409004

r Sm_n_ mg_fmn_ ,.ambm co ...........

i wdg o) weg Bukes ON % 7
7 swi; Auy Iy Buniep ON % 7

SNO' 10187 03S0a0¥d

C i

d L 7 3381 g BLnIEg1RaNG UD e » e e

- . WAG 0} WEg BUTBA ON = m aw

AR U Auy Jy BUEM ON  e—— _
_ _ SNOILDIILS T ONIISXF

A




TMPONOS | D 0 voprterstLd O PEW S¥u PUE NEWIAL) Lams.") 3B VRICPONEs RS 20WREYN 1N wHOsT B
WA LIS S AENEW B O ARG A0 SOV SR e B fdnw 02, b Temng B0LILRNO LOGE A way pacrpLy

uonesiedIn 7
) Buazube)
Y0 A IS

o._mswm m,.m_smm 18 - G7

IHYNDS SINVd LS

sdejq JO 20udIdS YT,

A3or011R)

Al

wdg o1 weg Bun-ea oN %
aun) Auy 1y Buneas oN %

SNQILJYLS3Y 03S0a0Bd

2%e1d Bue 19805 U0 s e e w
Wag 0} wieg Buniess ON m m

Bun] Auy 1y BUR-EAA ON  e—
SNOL O™ 1S3Y ONuLS1X 3

A3M




A0UPSA0.0 RS K LOW T B DN AT PuT 1 AT0D wmD 4 $a80 4an LU TOMS, DR Ea 1DWII0D SH0:T 5

$ O UBUOREL, T AGNER I I LTAORV0) RO wOR SLu. B Jug, e Bt 042, » AL KNIDAD) LG, WAl koW n PRXDC o

— UOHRSIRS 10y
_op bk, . 4c.0) bunrubu)

AT R Aury Y 23 wrud M

| 298[d BI[299)) - 97

sdeA] Jo 2oudI10g Y |,

A3010108)

\ o I~

e Buyeg 19eng uQ

Widg 0} WEeg Buuess N %
aw | Auy 1y Buleas ON % _

SNOIDIRILS 3y 03S0aO¥a

aoeig Bugey 128G LD e @

wdg 01 weg Bunepr ON e = wm

aui} ALy )y BUN'EAL ON e
SNOILDILS 3 ONILSIX3

JEN




L

SR 104 2 M LT A W PEN S BB W BEDED JRD.7) TOBL AV LT DML O0. DI AU B oD K) a0, B g

QRO FBLEAIS & AT I 4 (0 Sq0RE ) By 0 wORYAAD I o DUATIII D2y | SOUET KOUIPG 68, MR w05

B SABTA] JO 20UDIIS Y [ |

uoney M
an Eowe gy L __wo.g B LT5)
L nwes EA) LT TR XV ¥ | & =

1001 UOWIE)) - /7 !

—

sw-1 kuy 1y Bun-ess oN % \

SNOILDHISTE 03S0d0ka

ace)d buive JBRIS LD e e e @

wdg 0) Wweg Bujiep oN = m e

ull] Auy 1y BUURAR ON st
SNOLLOIYESIY ON1SX3

]




W0 NG 20 SO

O X PN S BUE 10D Wi, ] 880l UORINRC.ON. MPLONPILN L8] o, )G
W) AAUOREIS, | MNP Ay j0 OGO T A B o DB D570 o ANLTE GIUBLILG FONL R 208 DOOC PO o W mng %O mocmﬁow ®£ ~

\;ehm_ ) ..i,i.g oSy usruﬁ M&Va %w O,— Ot@ O

_ﬁ Kepp 1005V - 8T i

T _ﬂr, 77 Z _,,,,,, 7

I SNOLIHLS 34 03S0a0¥d

\\N

8%Big BUEJISNS LD s e 0w
wdg 0} uleg BUR-EAA ON = wm we

JN K;\\\ WO_\V \\ ! \ ~ Hirc) BUDIE YORRS VO [y
Q - ) - wdg 0} weg Bujiepm oN “
| X /) N L Jm J %Ou\rwv\ \ \/ \? N// o aﬁum_;m”,:z%
- Y .

aul | AUy Jy BUG-BAA ON  e—

SNOILOIMLSAY ONILSX3 /

A




B0 LOBCOA WD L6 Lo ee0 O O PIM T Pl 80 KN 0. E88une LOUX ROKIR PEEAIPA nlurde] WD G
S0 LICERS £ ATHE 00 0 M08 I 0 J0KTha 0 016 Do BUIORL [A2E , SHAFS WUOLE.C FOE, WA «a0N POINPO 4

sdejpl JO 2oUdIDG Y |

uolesIvAIN
_ oy Bumes) - . . . us_u?e?o_ \
WA 3.¥0 L IW A0 vy o™ - M.IJ_UV M
: A3010110
| J0BIID ], P[oLJIeD) / PROY UBWAIT - §7
| — |, T - B -
e = T [ B — - . - .
e T e T e y — 7
\ L ! - - T — - a%eig Bu-weg J9ang JQ o
-~ — T H — - .L.ﬂ wdg o} weg Buliea oN %% B ) )
o N - - -7 . - __.. - ||.,_11 | Auy 1y Bueps ON % : “_1
T M - SNOILOR 1S T 03S0a0ud
238 Buneg 18NS U0 e w e e ;
R _ wdg 01 weg Bujieps ON = = -
—- A Auy Iy Bun-Bpp ON e
_  SNOILD HiSIYONILSXI _
o A M

4

ERl2- ) EIRGIEEREL D)

i

g |0l




JOUEION] D JC O 3020, 0f DA Vi PUR (407 wMD, ] T80 WDLODOL O, PRLOL T D dDT WMD) G
oG LAUMEIS 1 ATHIN 0 D AKIAA) S 0 SORMaEd R o Wiy (G2, , (LS O0UPLE.C B4, T Oy PROCPO.y m

-/
uonesnedin

o 0.9 by = A BT

O Buawrs

Page 156

Sdeq JO 20URIDG AY |,

=" wasn-or 1 A3oroue)

1

I3eid Bupneq WAAS 4O ﬂ

wdg 01 weg Buyes ON %
aull; Auy 1y Bunea oN %

SNO'.L I H 1S3 0IS040Hd

aseid Bunleg PRISL) s e e e

wag 0y weg Gugiepg ON w w m

W Auy 1y Buniepy ON  se—
SNO'LOIALS T ONILSIX3




I0UPeID d RS A3 LOAMNAA B PEN 4B BuE W ERATR] WL ) S0 wOINRO. i, M LDUTILT LOABI) wMaD G w

o KOG 5 A b 3 NORUG 3 B 48 SO0 BN A BLMIL DGZL o Smaay IUBLE.CHEEH, WA WOK P DO 5 + 4 WQ“E 'wo Dogo._om DE.HL
3

|4 7 vonesiuediQ .
ooooo o) _ deax) Bunrubed) g %w
| e 0[0}R))
R N

by e

Q J10BPURS | 2d10U ] 1S9M - 1€

YaInyQ 1sIpoyion
adloy| 1SoM




:
:
i
i
3
i
:

s sdepA] JO 20UDIDS Y I,

=

el e ey
" ROy 12IPOUAE IS 2 SSNO UOISINY [ - mmi % %Wm:

—




B 10K WD 20 ORI Y W PEN A CUE e M anenr) 1000 gl LOR CDRLOE, PR 0T Bun Ol 800 0D 0

e o e . A S mawz JO Q0UADS YL
e % AZojoye)

aw) Auy Jy Baniegs oN %

NOLLOIYLS 34 03S0d0%a

0R)d BUDLEL IS UD s e a e

Wdg o) weg BUREAA ON mm e -

Bull) AUY 1Y BUTEA ON e /
SNOILIIMIS 34 ONSIXT

5-




CEL pEROOE 4 3.0 LORTMEO G R AR Bt L BLATE) Jwu?) SO0 SO PBAXIS. BEEIOWL RUN 1 B0 3 M0,
A0 AL ING § LMW O 0 M CALD ) B 1O L0 Tha®d B e BL IR (52, + 307G BLRLDIO) 5 OB M 08, IRCPEL

n,ow E«:MM
T - A WVHT

3084 Bunpey 198G uQ [l

wdg o} weg Buess ON %
awn ) Auy 1y Buiess ON %

SNOILDMLSTY QTS040Ud

92B|y BUPEL NS U e s e e

w.dg o) eg Buliesg ON = e =

) Auy )y DUIEAA ON  se——
SNOINDIMIS 3y ONi1§X ]

- QUe S0 - HE |

sdepy Jo 9ouaIdg oﬁ.

AZoj011R)




R PR - - - 1

S5 PASC.T WD .0 SOALINEAE O RPN S8 DUP (W BUNIOT w0, 300U wu WD RO, P8 DT BN A0 1 e G

0040 LOUCHRE 3 QIME)Y 2 13 OBU0 T B O ORI MY ..;?u.n:..or.. » V800D MDA 06 B O D" D0 w mgmz '%o OUGOMUW ogr_l

upnestuedl

T sopwcemn-ss || ABO[OMED

- — — — 1

—-— - v ¥

90)g Bunueg 19a0g uo E _ 7
Co

wdg 0} weg Buniem oN %

sl Auy 1y BueA ON %

SNOILJIY1S3d A3SOuOHd

30Big BUKEg 1SS L) s e e e

wdg 0} weg BUGEA ON e = ==

Juil] Auy Jy BUDIEAA ON  ee— X
SNOILDIRMLS 3d ONILSIX3

AN




B ERI0H WO L L ORSAE0.E OF PO (s LI LU0 3 0D Sy LR R0 N PINLDUC IS ALddE] e @
P30 ALOLE Dk UEMEN .01¢ 0 AKIRUD?) $1d 0 KPR, O Bwv Budiew (570 o ASTS TIUBVELC OB, WQ way PRS0y

uoupsIEd 0
] o, Suamnsq| | _ ama 16y ButPabug)
Y L] N

LY ] iIN

Emswm AIRIQI » O¢
w - - o — — - I

swooy Ajquiassy

sdeA] JO 0UIO§ AY [,

~ e

Aeiqri

~

~

I 4 N7

w9 o) wweg Bules oN 74
auil] Auy 3y Bun-ep oN §

SNO'1L0¥.L534 Q3SQa0ud

s0g)d Bunued 123G L0 e e w e

wWag 0] Weg SuNear ON e we wm

A | Auy Iy BURBAR ON e
SNOIL DR LS 3Y SNILSIXT

AN

A3010118)




OURREI0A AD .8 LOPLME J O PR AR DU W BLATRD) . ) S S RRaKS RELOMA L JEIADD Y ME G
Ay LAOMIEL 1 ASHER] BK (O ARRUT] PR O JTEERL O IR AW BoldM (573 o S0AFG OLRLE.O) (D6, Sl wXiy PR DALY

— —" h«w sdejy JO 90uaI0g Ay .
N

A3ojoue)

..... . duvq e a6y A8 NMYNa W EY

onDmrg| | - - - R . o tures bug

| 208[J YHOMO] - L€

s 89€g Buwieq 10845 L0 EE
wag o) wieg Buniep oN 7//% 7
awil| Auy )y Bumep, oN % -

SNO'1 0181534 03S0408d

kg buweg eI L) s e e e
wag o} weg BUess ON e e =
2wl ALy 1y BUD-BAA ON e .
SNOFLOLS 1 ONILSIX ] “

AD




SBUPIE 0. WO 2T LONONSE B B SP DLE DrANDD wid. ;300 qu LU DRI, DOFOYNI WOAOT M0 1

R A A M Sy o m%E JO 0UAI0S A [, |

uones v
drog) e |
Wt THIS

el e ,
= dA0ID) SonfEn) - §¢| \mwoﬁou—.ﬁwo _

i




b pRG0Ad M X0 0N NEA.1 & PET AR DLV 1TWAADT M &) ol OSTPONRI PRIORTEY " 18I0 WD

S USRS EASHEA 0ot (& RN Wi 0 ORI T s [N DT, SBATS WHBAD TER, B A0 PR S mgmz I%O ooco,—om OQT—L 7

T 025 oE_oA_HMoW- 6¢ | A__w \mwoﬁou—.ﬂwo f

J
E{ _— |.I|l“ - |z — -
J|| — A7 — N S t:oo E;mp_:s_ i

seld Buvped 1898 4O 111.w
wgg o} Wweg Buyem ON % 7
oui), ALy Iy BueAL ON % 7
SNOIIDIMLS 3y A3S0408d
908|g BUNLEJ 19RISUD e e ¢ o ‘
wdg 0} weg 6uHSAA ON == = =

u&.;cd:.qmcam?ozl
SNOILDuLSTY ONILSIXE _

o) A

'/’//




KEY

EXISTING RESTRICTION:!

— No Waitng Al Ary Time
w w = No Waiting 8am to 6pm

® ¢ On Street Parking Place

PROPOSE D RESTRICTIO

‘ m No Waitng At Any Time

=2 Op Street Parc.ng Pace

&\Y« No Waiting 8am to 6pm

ATE 26 2000

Q
[Oroweng Na

Organisation

D:O - Low Poppleton Lane

SCAt
Corgramg Grap

Stakonary Ofce

£ 0 awe Capwngh® unaumor 380 “erroducher wanget Crown Comyig a7 ™) wid ko PraCL™ DF v pTOCHRIIGE

Producmd %3~ 1 043 elnanca Survy ¢ 1250 maapng wik e MTIINC of the Lanralier o' ta” aesy 3

Cartology

The Science of Maps




DU O WA 20 NI DL PEN LI pur oliuL$0) 0T SB0M g wORDAPO.OR, PO T WD K 020
D) ABLDAR & ATMPYY 05 )1 .AORVID) I (0 WO LL ] SR AW BUMORc Ings o SOTS FIVIP L) SR wOx PEIORC o

uonesuRdI() 7
ON Dyne. a0, buasabegy
i .¥d

1 1@ N0 e 108

KeA\ qUON 18910 - [ 7

sdeA JO 20UdI0G Y |

aseiy _mc_ﬁmn_ 18948 LO
wag 6) useg Bugiem ON %
21| Auy 1y Bulem oN %

SNOILDIYLS 3y S3S0a0ud

ey BunE41894SL0 e e s e

wag o) weq Buliepg ON we = m

allit] Auy 1Yy Bumieps ON  se—
SNO1LOu1STe ONILSX 3

AIA




. —
266 PUEIL.C o 7.0 SORTONE0 O O PEM /Bl Qu? W L0AGD ) Wm0, S004 yu DRt Oa. pesogteun LBuadn) oaL )G M.UJ

o0 LOVONRG, 3 UMEN e ,0 0GR, 3 DR 10 WONTNLOC DR ot BT (62, , 40 L) F 44, RN a0 DFIFBOug mng .Wo Doquum D:.HL

| O 3 P-m
* , " A3ojoue)

+8 ' Ye0 1%

o a8 PIOPXO - 71 ]

22844 Buueg 19945 LD T‘K.”.”.

wdg o1 weg Bunegs o V//.%
auwip Auy )y Bunieps oN %

SNO'1 011534 3350d0Ha

80Big Buwe 19SS UD e e a

Wwilg 0} weg Bujiept ON = w m

8| AUY I BLNEA ON eommmmm
SNO'LO1H 1S3y ONLSXT

AIA
o0)




S0 pated MG O WONINOA T REN AT PUP DD ) W0, ) S30L yut LORY DAL D2 X0g7 VLN (AL wmd. ) G
g0 LIDAELE 5 ASIEYY s (8 OV ) BN 0 O eI O A DAL 042, o S, MU0 S0, Ml wusy OO DOLG

_ uonestueiiy
. anwmng | 4%, Buavubn
v uyg AT 0 o we

v
\ " \
\ - |
»
\
. -
» \
. \
N

sdep Jo 20udIdS Ay |

A307011B)

. Iﬂ IIIIlIIIJ

3901d Bupheq 19345 uQ |

wag o} weg Bumeps oN %
2wi) Auy 1y Bujepn ON %

SNOILOIRILS 3 03S0aC¥d

a28|q Bu R4 J9INS UD e s o o

wdg O} weg Bunieps O = e =

Al ] Auy 1y Bunieps OF e
SNOIL . STHON I SIX3

AIA




D SRy S J sdepy 10 20UA1G Ay |
e e e Q00
| PROY 1JOIOIBIS - wi I g O~ I Q

S I i T e

391 Bu-ueq J9eAS J0 W .......... -1 _ |7

_ | TR |
o smgsenn A u‘f — TR o8 = — I T F:I_L

| Auy 1y Buntep on @

| s ok P B ~ T
NO! 10 1S3y 03500 N . ) 7 : a 4
’ | : i | ..

908) BUPLEH 1995 LD e e e I
wdg 0} weg BLTEAL ON m = = !
AL ] Auy 1y BUTEAR ON o
SNOHDMLS3Y ONLLSIX T

A

— T 1




. DOOOALT BT .0 SOROMIDK O PEm Amw it (gl 07 M0/ 50y BORIPROS, POILOANTTL . BLbtir) N VG /_

:...ceso.._n.c.l:....:u.;ur.n.oisges?:s.s:!an?sm...!smsf?uo.a.:.no..u.%-od WQNZ a%o oogu._om o:.|—|.

14 uoneswredi(y
an Bumi]) 40 Bwaruls O

e A3oroue)

3a1)g Bunded 19eNs O :

LOg 0] weg Bulep ON %
awn ) Auy 1y Bunep ON %

SNOULDIY L83y 03S0d0ua

Y 2

80Biq BudE10aNS UD) e e e

wldqg 0] weg Butiess ON == = ==

3| Auy Iy BUNEAA ON smv—
SNC{LD 1S3y ONLSIXT

A

Uroy e |
Q@@*@DO .

—_




ABUPEGIC.S W 10 SeqDesaM S RN AT PR pBAEdE) a0 BT jon 0B KOS, PON.ART L rBdde )G m

4G ROIRS 34,3000 A 0 OO KA ¥ LS BN I BT 0621+ ABAFS BT O £08) Mg a0y PICRC mmmz a%o OOGQMUW D,—lﬁ{—l

uoneswedyy
#04.¢) Bu a0

il B S ¥<10) (010 (19

an Swwe.)

wr iy v

- 5

| STY YR / SUSPIBN) da1jU[] - 9,

aoeg Buey 19ang uQ

wag o) weg Buyeas on %
aull_ ALy 1y BUIEBA ON %

SNOILD 183y GIS0a0Yd

#2e|d Bunpedq 188G LY s e e e

Wdg 0} weg BUNEAL ON we = ==

B | Auy 1y Buniess ON  ee—
SNOLZ 153 ONILSIXT

, AIA




Bt 0.0 V3 A LoV L0 O] IR AT BB BUAS0") L 3 500M g W0, 00, DI DT IL!

LLASID w0 @ I_
B0 FBLOLEG EARWEN vy 0 OMOT B4 OHTA o ) B AW 052,  SAS SCURUP.O (00 R way PAINRON

S
sdeiAl JO 20URIOS D
- |._l.a.____“ - uonesIuEdiQ) ] 2!% w Qrﬁ

— — %woﬁotmo

== 3 M
A8 WSO T we aws

| peo mMoMszZ / oco.m QEEEm - E
I o i

- V ) Auy 1y BulBAR ON %
, u

p—— — _ .= — - = == — — _— |\ — e —

,_. / ._. / __ __ 30B1d Buped 199G u :
: \ S —1 | 1d Bublied 19905 w0

\L/ v / — \/\ w o ___ i. B / widg o} weg Bume oN %
..,* / / / ./. / 3 / \ __ _ i L

" oot / Vol / / /ﬂ\ .7 ) |

MOORCROFT ROAD

i . SNO'LD'E 1S 3y A350d0Ud
. L __ 20g|d Buped1eans u) e s s e
. : I wdg 01 weg FUN-BA ON me == =
. - ; _ ! — audl) ALY Yy BUMEM ON s
-0 / _ __ f- SNOILOIa1S 3 ONILSIXT
- . L : |
— L !
o | _ . _ | | AD
. 1 ! | . - -
T - : . ' | ! S
. | ' . N
e B 1 ' .- .
a / . - 1 . ' v '
. 1




A0 P70 3 10 BRSSO A PEN AW PU K LadD]) uwi.?) S0 SR RAKE, MALOLCELS BT M ) 3 w
B0 A CACRIG SAEINN Ay 3 W DR B 58 WDTRSd B e B0 80P 042, ¢ S0ARS WOLRLELC (04, 8 Dy PSCRLg

- - . sdepy JO 20UQI10S Y |
e _ ] :o_wa_ﬁmhc ! 3 \\MWV_‘S

A3010118)

| asey)) [eAoy - 8

r....r..r!..
~=/
- wdg o} weg Buness oN %
. aw- ) Auy Iy Buniegs oN %

/ SNOLTiE1 ST Q3S040ud
/

—

\ 9081 BB 199G L) » @ o »
wdg 01 Leg BulieAs ON e wm

\ B3 Ady 1y Bunieas ON  eevemmm
SNOILOINISTH ONNLSIXT \—

A




e n o o a3 e bt F mn Tt bt S S sz JO 20UIDS Y |
uonesiuedag)
R ANVNG Hﬁm E A 4 M %w
GALI(T IOUBIN - G % O[OLIED)
2 —_

soe|d Bunpeg 1eaas ug 4

Lag 0) weg Burep oN %
awi) Auy 1y Bueps oN % - .

SNOILOMIS 34 350d0dd

s0B|d Buned 188iS L) e e e e

Wy 0] weg BuleAA ON == = m

Bui) Auy 1y Bupeas ON  wemmmm—
SNO'OHISTH ONILSIX3

AIM




sdeJA JO 90UdI0S AY |

W LOMTESC. DL PR
L SUOURE T AIN0N P O AORAD] S0 L. OUdNTw [52, » AN I NTRO (K6 wiy BT DLy
UoIESI 1
o) Bu h
ST S, wOMOtwo
N - - - [N

vy Y
/ N /. ’
U.\..xhosU\ \\ N / \\ \\

7 i 3
NN /> ,,m/\\\ _
. , | , /o

SR \ J
NN ,.\ ~ / <
/._,,,,,,// \w/\
~ ~ /




— T~ > sdejq JO 20udI0G 9y |

Wogp() L SMOATLG, T AISOOPYY B ) L OARAT) B 0 O S o0 B Jut Bu CHFLs 052, o FILDE @PURL0 {0 BN Dy [P
unnsgiig
05 Burw 1.0 ¥ 0.0 hapadh) m g
AT uyd e aneve0 o ‘— O ﬁw Q

_

i

2WE o

\ I e - - . I
T T I __ _
B R I

o ! I

N |

, ]; Z - \ \ | _‘ N S S

1P W) 4 T s

g\@hljmllﬁ ___----- , .--l---|j,
- fr . - - |g o

N0 i e
=

Page 177

38070 S3HLIVLS




500 pARSKLE pAY LD LOMORG D 64 PN § P DU 1t 107 M0, S0BU ot WO DELOR. PG 0N Funt 18110 ) MO @
1) LILOANG EARNEN .01 0 J0RIH) B 10 S La, 0 08 B Budii (7, , FBLNL REURAD LH0 s A aly BOOND0.

uonesiuedagy

sdeAl JO 92UAIDS AY .




SEUPMLID O W5 43 LW IWTLE B LM A1 BUE JOURA0 5 um0.D) ToEum ORCPAIN. Pt DU R 1B R0 ) WD
0,5 1 HIUSNIG £ ASHERY a0 ARINY) B O SORILILE AR I DO 06T, , 48NS FRER TS, WA Oy P PO

uoneSIUeR Q)

droxy ??g_
wos

208[J UBLIY - (

sdeq JO 90UdIDS AY

A30]011e)

B




B0 P00 A L0 NOBL WD, O ) PEm AR BLE 15GET0 ) UMD, ) 1300 yudl W04 PDEOE PMLBNPLT  BATO7) w0,

WO 4LoaTy & YEHEN Bp 0 Aagen0e) S 0 WO ARG B By 1B D520 o ABAICG SUBLP0 L84, MR s VDL

- : _ s sdepy Jo aouatog Ay |
T = Jw Jo 20u210g o

< A3070118)

" 05 3

o.“.nm.a&oo / Hmwwm pIOHI) -

(SSHQ)

9940
JUSWILIBAQL)

22LIFFORD STREET

388
s Q

ENIEY

ajebuislindg




SBUPMLIL.E P B SRRSO U IR ST PUE (eOLAIT D, ) SO0L YN LOLAPRLES, P60 BT Jubufde) unt.) @
#2400 LOMDIEIR £ ASOMPY (B 1O L HOIU0 ) BN 8 LT TR0 M am Do CHWLa G2, 4 MUY BUTVPAD) £06s 4 w0y £ OrDOeg m

uonrsiued 1
i Bovee )] X 4~ o_h-,..?.o
- o 3 M
|

sdeJq Jo 20ua1dg Ay |,

A307011R)

4vo . 23 warnd

F o&osaoszm d:ﬁ .5”58< q

Page 181




$0URI AL K O OM RN S BLE (BATD ML ) 1800 yul LY DIL0N. DS 0" B 14t 10D wMp
00 LAREIS 1 ATOEPY B 0 OAN0 3 IR B O THadd B e B OB 052, LT a0 OB, W

- : sdejq Jo 20uaLdS AU .

9 A




The Science of Maps




B

Bt S e Y R .

I’jl."_ L IR RN \ |
ST T e e S T
_J" ‘ I L%—'ILD«WL\EHLE’{%E—H_,‘H . " .III
. CeliTs ""'-t-'—l-'_— 4-.'—__ - __LJ L:l— ‘LLQ&JI I|II
s v T e

N T e “—~__-_-_.-'-_—_.'-T
SN T
R SRR I. it . [
., -.I' . I’ I. .. I. ' X II' . Il . .

SR s

1T

]

cerzaz il iEmarasL T .
. s A i
Do
SRR TR ks
. . ' L I' I' N - - JJ_

LA iy

! .I "lL| Co e
IRRSUERRE
L sy

s e

: S e AL U
‘o . 1 B S S R
- I T S _ \ ! B T
e e A T , .
T TR RTIS e R :
mr g Tor T e e R A S . ]
. ) E - ?
L | : 1 P 3
) .

i

D

-

T

a

PRI

L

oo - TN
t .U R |
' —ll b

\I - Wheatlands Grove

G nang Goo

Upsasy 5 Subohary Dlie

MCROr 07 vl 3 ieeed \ga

250 MALOIAg Wi Ihe par b0~ 97 lhe Coavam: o e
oW (ORI LmAhor sad e 0dUCIKIn mngan [rawn Capynght and iy wad 10 [0

P aducnd *are a8 Oednance Survay * ¢

Cartology

The Science of Maps




Page 185 Agenda ltem 11

COUNCIL

a,

Meeting of Executive Members for City 17" July 2006
Strategy and the Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Automatic Teller Machine (ATM) Defensible Space

Summary

1. This report brings to Members attention a request for markings on the public
highway at the Royal Bank of Scotland ATM in Nessgate to improve security
and seeks approval to develop a policy for when and where such markings are
appropriate.

Background

2. The Royal Bank of Scotland have asked for approval to mark out a “defensible
space” at their ATM in Nessgate in order to increase security for their
customers (see example in annex A). The marking consists of a white or yellow
line 1m? with the words cash machine area inside the box around the ATM.
Whilst this type of marking has not been used before in York, they have been
used elsewhere in the country with positive results in terms of crime reduction.

3. There are a number of ways crimes at ATM’s are carried out:

e Standing close to the victim to see their pin number (known as
shoulder surfing) then either skimming or stealing their card to make
further withdrawals.

e Assessing how much has been withdrawn then stealing the cash from
the victim at a more secluded location.

e Standing behind the victim threatening them with violence and
ordering them to withdraw money for them.

By putting markings on the ground the area becomes more “offender hostile
which discourages the offenders from taking action. In addition, victims and
potential withesses become more aware of possible threats.

4.  Where the ATM fronts onto land owned by the bank or other landowner, local
authority approval is not required. However, in this case the ATM on Nessgate
fronts directly on to the Public Highway, hence the involvement of the Highway
Authority. The markings do not feature in the Traffic Signs Regulations and
General Directions that specifies what markings can be used on the highway.
However, the Department for Transport representative for this area has



10.

11.

Page 186

confirmed that the placing of a non-highway related marking on the highway
would be down to the discretion of the City Council as Highway Authority.

This is the first request for a defensible space marking and it may be the first of
many. There are many ATM’s across the authority area, including an estimated
25 in the pedestrianised area of the city centre and there is no policy in place
for the use of such non-highway related markings on the public highway.

Consultation

No consultation has been carried out.

Options

The following options are put forward for consideration:

A. Turn down this and any subsequent request for defensible space
markings on the public highway.

B. Approve the use of defensible space markings at ATM’s that front
on to the public highway.

C. Defer a decision until officers develop a policy for presenting to a
subsequent meeting of the Executive Members for Strategy and
Advisory Panel for consideration.

Analysis

Although option A resolves this and any subsequent requests of this type
quickly it does not contribute towards crime prevention in the city. Hence,
option A is not recommended.

A blanket approval as put forward in option B may lead to a proliferation of
such markings in locations that don’t merit the attention. Hence, option B is not
recommended.

Option C allows officers to make further investigations and come up with a set
of recommendations to ensure a consistent approach to using the markings
taking into account various factors such as existing crime, site conditions,
visual impact, materials, colour, funding, etc. This option is recommended for
approval.

Corporate Priorities

The City Council has a stated corporate priority to reduce the actual and
perceived impact of violent, aggressive and nuisance behaviour on people in
York. The introduction of defensible spaces at ATM’s could contribute to this
aim by reducing crime and also the fear of crime.



Page 187

Implications

12. At

Ri

13. In

this stage the following implications have been identified:
Financial - there are no financial implications at this stage if the
recommendations are approved.
Human Resources (HR) - there are no HR implications.
Equalities - there are no Equalities implications.

Legal — the city council as Highway Authority for the area has the authority
to introduce non-highway related markings on to the footway.

Crime and Disorder - if the recommendations are approved the
subsequent report to members will outline the likely contributions to crime
and disorder.

Information Technology (IT) - there are no IT implications.
Property - there are no Property implications.
Other - if the recommendations are approved the Head of Network
Management will have to take on the task of determining requests for
defensible space markings.

sk Management

compliance with the Councils risk management strategy, there are no risks

associated with the recommendations in this report.

Recommendations

14. Members are requested to approve Option C:

Defer a decision on this request until officers have had the opportunity to
develop a policy for presenting to the December meeting of the Executive
Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel for consideration.

Reason: to ensure a consistent approach to using the markings, taking into
account various factors such as existing crime, site conditions, visual
impact, materials, colour, funding, etc.

Officers to advise the Royal Bank of Scotland of the above.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Alistair Briggs Bill Woolley

Traffic Engineer Director of City Strategy

Department of City Strategy

Tel No. 551368 Report Approved Date 16/06/06

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers - None
Annex A — Example of a defensible space marking



Page 188

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 189

Annex A

Example of a defensible space marking




Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 191 Agenda ltem 12

COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for 17 July 2006
City Strategy and the Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

CODE OF PRACTICE FOR HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE

Summary

1. This report provides a brief overview of the code of practice, ‘Well Maintained
Highways 2005’ and asks Members to approve the policies determining standards of
highway maintenance within this authority, particularly where they vary from the
recommendations of the Code of Practice. These variations are clearly shown in
Annex 1 of this report which in effect is the exemptions report contained within the
Council's Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair Manual.

Background

2. The Annual Highway Maintenance Report, 2 May 2006, included a reference to three
new Codes of Practice:

e ‘Well-maintained Highways’: Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance
Management, July 2005

e ‘Well-lit Highways’ Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management,
November 2004

e ‘Management of Highway Structures’ Code of Practice , September 2005
This report considers the first of these three Codes of Practice.

3. The first Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance endorsed by the local government
associations was published in 1983 and has subsequently been revised twice to take
account of new and emerging developments in technology, policy and good practice.

4. The Code covers all aspects of highway maintenance, from day to day small scale
repairs to long term strategic planning. lts recommendations are not mandatory, and it
does not set prescriptive standards. It sets out an approach to highway maintenance
for authorities to adapt where local conditions are taken into consideration, while
including examples of good practice, and is intended as a benchmark against which
policies can be developed and local variations identified. @ However, it also
recommends that local variations are ‘derived following a risk assessment, then
approved, adopted and published by the authority. The approval and adoption process
should involve the authority’s Executive and be explicit, transparent and inclusive.’



Page 192

The latest edition emphasises the use of asset management, risk management, whole
life costing and sustainability in the development of highway maintenance programmes
and procedures. The preparation of the York Transport Asset Management Plan,
which deals with long term planning, data management and preparation of annual work
programmes, is well advanced, and will be the subject of a separate report to Members
later this year.

The current arrangements for regular basic maintenance of York’s highway network
have developed over a number of years and consist of

e anetwork hierarchy based on the recommendations in the Code of Practice, the
Council’s Hierarchy of Road Users, and local knowledge

e regular safety inspections by dedicated safety inspectors, with frequencies
determined by the network hierarchy

e a number of reliable and publicised means by which members of the public and
other users can report defects and other concerns regarding the highway — the
most popular being the York Pride Action Line

e area based reactive inspectors to respond to all reported defects on the
highway within a specified time

e a dedicated inspector to supervise and monitor all new development work which
is subject to a section 38 [1980 Highways Act.] agreement.

e dedicated utility inspectors to monitor and inspect work carried out by the public
utilities within the public highway

e specified investigatory levels for defects used by all inspectors to ensure
consistency and effective use of resources, the most frequently used being :

Carriageway pothole Depression > 40mm deep extending > 300mm in any
one direction
Footway trip Abrupt level difference > 20mm

e specified response times for defects - the inspector carries out a risk
assessment on site to decide the risk posed to highway users by the defect, the
level of risk determining the category of response.

e All inspectors are proactive and respond to any defects which pose an
immediate risk to the public noticed during other inspections.

To formalise our highway maintenance policy and to comply with the Code of Practice
means a specific manual has to be produced with any differences highlighted within
this document in a section titled "The Exemptions Report" and approved by Members.
Therefore the City of York Council has produced such a document called the Highway
Survey, Inspection and Repair Manual — which details all surveys, inspections,
categories and investigatory levels, and is issued to all CYC staff directly involved in
highway inspection. A copy is placed in the Members’ library for reference. The
manual is updated regularly to take account of changes in the network, codes of
practices, legal requirements and staffing arrangements etcetera. This manual is also



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 193

used as the main document when evoking defence against third party highway
insurance claims. It is recommended that Members familiarise themselves with the
Code of Practice which can be found on www.roadscodes.org and the Council's
Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair Manual which can be found in the Members'
library.

Consultation

The Code of Practice is a nationally agreed document which was widely consulted on
prior to publication.

Options

Option 1 - Members note and approve this report, particularly the adoption of the
highway survey, inspection and repair manual as Council policy.

Option 2 - Members note the report and suggest any changes they would like to see
be included within the manual before it is adopted as Council policy

Option 3 - Members note the report and reject the manual as Council policy.
Analysis
The advantages of option 1 are:-

The inspection and maintenance regimes currently practised by the Council have been
developed in accordance with

. The code of practice ‘Well Maintained Highways 2005 and preceding

documents
. Council policies and objectives
. Local knowledge of the highway network
. Financial and staff resources available

Since the introduction of the inspection and repair manual and the regular safety
inspections in 2000 the number of insurance claims received by the Council has
dropped significantly, by over 80% and the Council’s repudiation rate is currently at
over 90%, one of the highest in the country.

The basic maintenance regime, together with procedures used to produce the annual
programme of carriageway and footway resurfacing schemes, has resulted in
significant improvement in condition. This is measured by the BVPIs, and sustained
increase in customer satisfaction as measured by the Residents’ Opinion Survey.

Policies and procedures are constantly monitored and updated to improve efficiency
and effectiveness, and to achieve best value. For instance, the employment of a driver
to assist the safety inspectors has allowed the inclusion of all frequent bus routes
within the monthly safety inspection.



Page 194

14.  The network hierarchy, inspections frequencies and investigatory levels vary only
slightly from the recommendations in the Code of Practice. The main differences are:

e No separate hierarchy for footways, as carriageways and footways are
inspected together during safety inspections. All of the most heavily used
footways are included in the monthly inspections.

e There is no 3 monthly inspection frequency in York. All important link roads are
included in the monthly inspections and school frontages are inspected at least
6 monthly. With the resources available, and from local knowledge of the
network, it is considered that annual inspections are appropriate for all Level 3
roads.

e An additional defect category is included to allow inspectors to differentiate
between defects that are immediately dangerous, and those which require
prompt attention but can reasonably be attended to within 1 working day.

15. A detailed comparison between the Code of Practice recommendations and CYC
procedures is included as Appendix 6 in the Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair
Manual, and this is set out in Annex 1.

16. Option 1 enables the recent improvements to highway maintenance service delivery
and the Council's claims history to be continued. Any other option, to vary service
delivery in relation to the Code of Practice, or to move away from acceptance of the
Code of Practice, would need to be carefully considered as this could have
implications for customer satisfaction and insurance costs.

Corporate Objectives

Maintenance of the public highway has a direct impact on several of the Council’s
corporate aims and objectives:

17.  Corporate Aim 1: (Environment) Take Pride in the City, by improving quality and
sustainability, creating a clean and safe environment.

Specific objectives:

A Increase resident satisfaction and pride with their local neighbourhoods.

.2 Protect and enhance the built and green environment that makes York unique.

.3 Make getting around York easier, more reliable and less damaging to the
environment.

— otk

18. Corporate Aim 3: (Economy) Strengthen and diversify York's economy and improve
employment opportunities for residents.
Not directly relevant to any of the specific objectives, but good quality highway
infrastructure is vital to the local economy.

19. Corporate Aim 4: (Safer City) Create a safe City though transparent partnership
working with other agencies and the local community.
Specific objectives:
4.7  Make York’s roads safer for all types of user.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 195

Corporate aim 8: (Corporate Health) Transform City of York Council into an
excellent customer-focused “can do” authority.

Specific objective:

8.9 Manage the Council’s property, IT and other assets on behalf of York residents.

LTP aim: To maintain, improve and make more efficient use of the existing transport
network.

Implications
Financial

The costs of dealing with highway defects, in accordance with the Highway Survey,
Inspection and Repair manual, are met by the Council's annual revenue budget.

Human Resources (HR)

Staff in Highway Infrastructure manage the day to day maintenance issues using the
Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair manual as a tool to prioritise and target
resources.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.
Legal

e The Council, in its capacity as the Highway Authority, has a statutory duty under
Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 to maintain the public highway.

e The Council can use the Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair manual to
demonstrate it has a Section 58 defence to third party highway insurance claims.

The suggested recommendations of the Code are explicity not mandatory on
authorities. However, where authorities are the subject of claims or legal action by
those seeking to establish non-compliance with legal obligations, it has been
recognised that the contents of the Code may be considered to be a relevant
consideration. It is essential therefore, for any deviations from the Code to be
identified, together with the reasoning for such differences.

Crime and Disorder

There are no crime and disorder implications.
Information Technology (IT)

There are no information technology implications.
Property

There are no property implications.

Other



29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 196

There are no other implications.
Risk Management

In compliance with the Council's risk management strategy, the main risks that have
been identified in this report are risks arising from hazards to assets and people
(Physical), those which could lead to financial loss (Financial), and non-compliance
with legislation (Legal & Regulatory).

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score all risks has been assessed
at less than 16. This means that at this point the risks need only to be monitored as
they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.

Recommendations

That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member that:

1) It be noted that highway maintenance procedures within the City of York have
been developed in accordance with the Code of Practice ‘Well Maintained
Highways’ 2005.

2) Option 1, with the variations from the recommendations of the Code, as set out
in Annex 1, be approved.

Reason: The Council, as Highway Authority, has a legal duty to maintain the highway.
The Code of Practice may be considered to be a relevant consideration when the
authority is the subject of claims or legal action by those seeking to establish non-
compliance with these legal duties.



Contact Details

Author:

Fred Isles
Maintenance Manager
Highway Infrastructure
Tel 551444

Page 197

Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Damon Copperthwaite

Acting Assistant Director

(City Development & Transport)

Report Approved Date 30/06/06

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no specialist implications.

Wards Affected

i

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair Manual - located

Annexes

Annex 1 — Extract from the Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair Manual.

27 June 2006
FI/SPR

LADOCUMENT\WORDDOC\COMM\EMAP-P&T\170706 - Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance.doc



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 199

ANNEX 1

The following is an extract from the Highway Survey, Inspection and Repair manual:
APPENDIX 6
COMPARISON WITH NATIONAL STANDARDS (EXEMPTIONS REPORT)
6.1 NETWORK HIERARCHY

The Code of Practice quotes separate hierarchies for roads, footways and cycleways. As
CYC footways and cycleways are inspected at the same time as the adjacent road, one
inclusive hierarchy has been developed for the CYC network.

A comparison between the CYC hierarchy, and the road hierarchy in the Code of Practice
is shown in Tables 6.1 and 6.2.

The inclusion of City Centre footstreets, routes from car parks and railway station, and
main suburban shopping areas as CYC level 1 reflects both the Council’s commitment to
giving pedestrians top priority in its Hierarchy of Road Users, and the footway hierarchy in
the Code of Practice.

Windmill Lane (C294) is the only classified road which is included in Level 3, with annual
safety inspection. This is due to the change in its function from important link between
classified routes to local access road, with restricted access at one end.

6.2 SAFETY INSPECTION FREQUENCIES
The Code of Practice states that safety inspection frequencies should be based upon:

Category within the network hierarchy

Traffic use characteristics and trends

Incident and inspection history
Characteristics of adjoining network elements
Wider policy or operational considerations

The relative frequencies within the CYC regime are dictated by the first four elements
above. The actual frequencies are determined by the resources available, and are those
which CYC is confident it can achieve, based on past experience. A programme has been
developed for the annual safety inspections of the Level 3 roads which takes account of
the characteristics of each area and allows for periods of adverse weather, so that
regularity of inspection can be ensured.

A comparison between the CYC safety inspection frequencies and those suggested in the
Code of Practice is shown in Tables 6.3, 6.4 and 6.5.

The Code of Practice also states that safety inspections ‘are normally undertaken by slow
moving vehicle’. Whilst as much of the York network as possible is surveyed by vehicle,
this is not feasible for the city centre, urban shopping areas and approximately 15% of the



Page 200

remainder, due to the numbers of pedestrians and/or parked vehicles. As walked surveys
take longer this contributes to the slightly lower frequency of CYC inspections compared
to the Code of Practice.

6.3 INVESTIGATORY LEVELS, DEFECT CATEGORIES AND RESPONSE TIMES

The Code of Practice does not specify values for investigatory levels, allowing local
judgement to be made as to the hazard to users of the network, depending on the location
and severity of the defect, and the normal use of the item.

The investigatory levels given in Appendix 4 cover all the items given in the Code of
Practice list of ‘suggested items for inspection’. They have been developed using Audit
Commission Standards of Performance, the Highways Agency’s Routine Maintenance
Management System, and local knowledge of York’s highways.

A comparison between the Code of Practice and CYC defect categories and response
times is shown in Table 6.6. The introduction of an additional category in the CYC regime
allows the inspector to differentiate between defects that are immediately dangerous, and
those which require prompt attention but can reasonably be attended to within 1 working
day.



10g ebed

CODE OF PRACTICE HIERARCHIES
CITY OF YORK COUNCIL HIERARCHY
Roads Footways
Level Description Level Description Level Description
1 Motorway 1a | Prestige zone — Prestige areas with
exceptionally high usage 1 City Centre footstreets; important
. pedestrian routes from car parks
1 Primary route — Busy Urban ShOppIng and ra||way Stanon, main
and business areas, and main suburban shopping areas
pedestrian routes linking transport
interchanges 2 All classified roads and footways
and important links between
2 Strategic Route — Trunk 2 Secondary route — Medium usage classified routes. Unclassified
roads routes feeding primary routes, routes with frequent* bus services.
and some principal roads shopping centres, large schools etc.
3 All other roads and footways and
3a | Main urban network and 3 Link footway — Linking local access off-road cycle routes
links between strategic footways through urban areas, and
routes busy rural footways *at least one every 20 minutes in one direction
3b | Other classified roads and Table 6.2
unclassified bus routes
carrying local traffic Notes:
1. As footways, cycleways and the adjacent
4a | Local traffic roads linking 4 Local access footway — Low usage road are inspected at the same time in
category 3 roads routes, estate roads and culs de sac York, the one CYC hierarchy covers all 3
_ levels of use.
4b | Local access roads serving 2. There are no motorways within CYC
limited _number of boundary, and trunk roads are maintained
properties only. by the Highways Agency, so no categories
have been included for these.
Table 6.1



CODE OF PRACTICE SAFETY INSPECTIONS

Road Description ::nspection
Category requency
2 Strategic Route — Trunk Monthly

roads and some principal
roads
3a & 3b | Main urban network. Monthly
Other classified roads and
unclassified bus routes
4a Local traffic roads. 3 monthly
4b Local access roads serving | Annually
limited number of
properties
Table 6.3
Footway Description ::nspection
Category requency
1a & 1 Prestige zones. Main Monthly
urban pedestrian routes
2 Medium usage routes 3 monthly
3 Link footways and busy 6 monthly
rural footways
4 Low usage routes, estate | Annually
roads and cul de sacs

Table 6.4

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL SAFETY

INSPECTIONS
Category Description g:-zzizt:c’:;
Level 1 The city centre footstreets and
important routes from car parks and Monthly
the railway station.
Main suburban shopping areas
Level 2 | Principal roads and other main Monthly
important distributor roads, including
unclassified roads carrying frequent*
bus services.
Frontages of schools not located on
Level 1 or 2 roads. 6 monthly
Level 3 | All other roads. Annually
Plus off-road cycle routes
Table 6.5
Note:

Footways, cycleways and the adjacent road are inspected at the

same time in York

*at least one every 20 minutes in one direction

20g obed



DEFECT CATEGORIES AND RESPONSE TIMES

Code of Practice City of York Council
Cat. Definition Response Cat. Definition Response

1 Require prompt Correct or make safe at 1 First person to pass by | Defect is made safe
attention because they | time of inspection (if would be likely to have | before the Inspector
represent immediate or | reasonably practicable). an accident leaves site. Temporary
imminent hazard or Temporary repair within 24 repair within 1 working
there is a risk of short- hours. Permanent repair day. Permanent repair
term structural within 28 days within 20 working days
deterioration.

2 | There is an immediate Defect is made safe or
risk to the public or risk | repaired within 1 working
of short-term structural | day. Permanent repair
deterioration. within 20 working days

2 | All others Within planned 3 | No immediate risk to the | Permanent repair within
programmes of work with public. 20 working days.
the priority as determined
by risk assessment.

Table 6.6

€0g obed



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 205 Agenda ltem 13

COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for 17 July 2006
City Strategy and the Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

CODE OF PRACTICE FOR HIGHWAY LIGHTING MANAGEMENT

Summary

1. This report provides a brief overview of the code of practice ‘Well Lit Highways
November 2004’ and asks Members to note and approve the recommended standards
of highway lighting management.

Background

2. The Annual Highway Maintenance Report, 2 May 2006, included a reference to three
new Codes of Practice:

e ‘Well-maintained Highways’: Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance
Management, July 2005

e ‘Well-lit Highways’ Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management,
November 2004

e ‘Management of Highway Structures’ Code of Practice, September 2005
This report considers the second of these three Codes of Practice.

3. The first Code of Practice for Road Lighting endorsed by the local government
associations was published in 1999 and has subsequently been revised by this edition
to take account of new and emerging developments in technology, policy and good
practice incorporating changes in legislation and standards.

4. The Code covers the provision and maintenance of a street lighting service with
reference to legal obligations and best practice within the industry. The code also
touches on service level agreements with Distribution Network Operators, and the
procurement of contracts within the street lighting arena.

5. The Code emphasises the use of best value systems including asset management and
make a series of recommendations to achieve this.

6. The current highway lighting management system is based on the previous Code of
Practice along with a number of advances based on technical reports issued by the
Institute of Lighting Engineers (ILE) and Institute of Electrical Engineers, built up over a
period of time. This can be summarised as:



Page 206

A prioritisation of works and systems based on ILE technical reports, current
design regulations, previous codes or best practice and current
recommendations along with local knowledge.

e Visual inspection of the street lighting and illuminated network timed once a
month in summer and twice in winter.

¢ A number of reliable and publicised means by which members of the public and
other users can report defects and other concerns regarding the highway; the
most popular being the freephone number displayed on all equipment and the
York Pride Action Line.

e Reactive attendance of all faults determined by severity or risk. Standard faults
are attended within two working days and Emergencies within two hours.

e Routine programmed maintenance in line with best practice (dependant on
budgetary constraints).

e Monitoring and approval of specifications and levels in all systems related to
current regulations.

Improvements to the current system and ways of working are always being evaluated
and will be subject to a specific report to be brought before Members in September.

Options

Option 1 - Members note the report and approve the measures being taken to comply
with the recommendations as set out in Annex 1.

Option 2 - Members note the report and suggest any changes they would like to see
be included in relation to the recommendations.

Option 3 - Members note the report and reject compliance with the Code and its
recommendations.

Analysis

The advantages of option 1 are strong and re-enforce systems already underway but
to summarise:-

The inspection and maintenance regimes currently practised by the Council have been
developed in accordance with

. The code of practice ‘Well Lit Highways’ and preceding documents
. Council policies and objectives
. Local knowledge of the Street Lighting network

. Financial and staff resources available



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Page 207

With the use of the ILE's Technical Report No. 22 relating to column conditions as set
out in the Code, proactive management of lighting stock and risk can be improved.

Policies and procedures are constantly monitored and updated to improve efficiency
and effectiveness, and to achieve best value.

A detailed comparison between the Code of Practice recommendations and CYC
procedures is included in Annex 1.

Option 1 enables the maintenance and safety of the lighting network to be provided
with the greatest possible compliance with the recommendations in the Code of
Practice. It also assists in maintaining the authority's national standing with respect to
lighting networks. Any option that moves further away from the Code of Practice
recommendations will need to be carefully considered, as this could have customer
satisfaction and cost implications.

Corporate Objectives

Maintenance of Street Lighting has a direct impact on several of the Council’s
corporate aims and objectives:

Corporate Aim 1: (Environment) Take Pride in the City, by improving quality and
sustainability, creating a clean and safe environment.

Specific objectives:

A Increase resident satisfaction and pride with their local neighbourhoods.

.2 Protect and enhance the built and green environment that makes York unique.

.3 Make getting around York easier, more reliable and less damaging to the
environment.

1.4  Control and improvement of the night environment through best value and quality

procedures.

— ot —h

Corporate Aim 3: (Economy) Strengthen and diversify York's economy and improve
employment opportunities for residents.

Good quality street lighting systems aid the local economy through better visible
access to facilities.

16.Corporate Aim 4: (Safer City) Create a safe City through transparent partnership

working with other agencies and the local community.

Specific objectives:
4.7  Good Quality management of lighting systems through management of risk and
improvements to the network (electrical, structural and light output).

17.Corporate aim 8: (Corporate Health) Transform City of York Council into an

excellent customer-focused “can do” authority.

Specific objective:
8.9 Manage the Council’s property, IT and other assets on behalf of York residents.



18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 208

Implications
Financial

The costs associated with dealing with lighting maintenance, replacement and fault
management come from both City of York Council revenue budgets, ward committees
funding, and the LTP allocation.

Human Resources (HR)

The Street Lighting team consists of two full time staff to implement and manage the
whole service. There are no implications with this report.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.
Legal

e The Council, in its capacity as the Highway Authority, has the power to light the
highway under Section 97 of the Highways Act 1980.

e The Council also has a duty of care to the road user, however this duty of care
does not impose on the Highway Authority any duty to keep the public lighting lit.

e An authority responsible for the maintenance of public lighting should be able to
demonstrate that they have systems in place to maintain the public lighting
equipment in a safe condition, including the detection of dangerous equipment.

The suggested recommendations of the Code are explicity not mandatory on
authorities. However, where authorities are the subject of claims or legal action by
those seeking to establish non-compliance with legal obligations, it has been
recognised that the contents of the Code may be considered to be a relevant
consideration. It is essential therefore, for any deviations from the Code to be
identified, together with the reasoning for such differences.



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 209

Crime and Disorder

There is a link between good systems of lighting and the positive effect this has on
levels of crime.

Information Technology (IT)

The development of the current asset management systems has links with IT and Exor
management systems.

Property
There are no property implications.
Other

There are no other implications.
Risk Management

In compliance with the Council's risk management strategy, the main risks that have
been identified in this report are risks arising from hazards to assets and people
(Physical), those which could lead to financial loss (Financial), and non-compliance
with legislation (Legal & Regulatory).

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score all risks has been assessed
at less than 16. This means that at this point the risks need only to be monitored as
they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.

Recommendations

That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member that:
1) The report be noted.

2) The main recommendations in the Code of Practice 'Well Lit Highway' 2005 be
noted and current progress towards meeting these recommendations, as set out
in Annex 1, be noted and approved.

Reason: The Council, as Highway Authority, has a legal duty to maintain the highway.
The Code of Practice may be considered to be a relevant consideration when the
authority is the subject of claims or legal action by those seeking to establish non-
compliance with these legal duties.



Page 210

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Ricky Watson Damon Copperthwaite

Project Engineer Acting Assistant Director

Street Lighting (City Development & Transport)

City Strategy
Tel 01904 551401

Report Approved Date 22/06/06

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no specialist implications
Wards Affected All
For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

None.

Annexes

Annex 1 - Extract from the Well-Lit Highways — Code of Practice for Highway Lighting
Management.

27 June 2006

PT/SPR

LADOCUMENT\WORDDOC\COMM\EMAP-P&T\170706 - Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management.doc Code of Practice for
Highway Lighting Management



Page 211

ANNEX 1

Well Lit Highways — Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management

The following is an extract of the recommendations made within the code along with
comments, in italics, relating to current CYC policy and procedures:

Summary of Recommendations

1.

The policy of any authority, in relation to the provision of its public lighting service,
should be clearly stated and should cover all the organisations and services involved in
delivering the service. (3.2)

Currently the services policy is covered in two documents. Designs and specifications of new
schemes are outlined in the street lighting and illuminated signs policy, whilst maintenance
timescales and all other aspects are covered within the street lighting term maintenance
contract. Policy in relation to the inventory and asset monitoring systems is not covered in any
great detail currently but this will be improved through the forthcoming Transport Asset
Management Plan.

All Personnel engaged in public lighting operations should be trained in accordance
with the national guidelines such as those produced by the Institution of Lighting
Engineers and issued with the appropriate certification.

All our contractors are fully approved and part of the sector schemes for competency.

No operatives should be placed at risk due to lack of skills on the part of themselves or
others dealing with electrical equipment.

All operations in relation to electrical equipment are tightly governed by legislation and are
abided by within the current systems. All contractors' personnel are continuously evaluated
and trained when needed.

Each Authority should establish and maintain up to date and accurate inventory of all
highway electrical equipment (including authority cable networks) as part of it asset
management system.

This is something we have already undertaken and are developing constantly in lines with the
recommendations.

Authority cable networks should be recorded on Ordinance Survey based plans or
alternatively on a Geographic Information System.

This information is noted on "as constructed" drawings and could only be implemented as
recommended if resources and finance could be made available.

An asset management system should be used to record and control all cyclical and
reactive maintenance activities.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 212

Currently all maintenance activities are logged through the Exor system and this notes the
dates and times of these activities.

Cyclical Maintenance intervals for lighting installations should be determined to ensure
the installations' correct operation and light output, minimize failures and maximise life.

There are considerable cost implications associated with this recommendation.  Cyclical
maintenance systems have been in place but have been temporarily put on hold. Re-
introduction will be considered subject to the finance being available.

Lamp replacement policies should be carefully evaluated taking account of local
technical and geographical considerations, to maintain light out put whilst limiting the
number of lamp failures to an acceptable level.

Whilst fitting new lamps and/or lanterns to provide better light output in a more efficient way
with reduced light pollution is desirable, there are considerable cost implications. Large scale
replacements are currently not affordable.

Each authority should establish and operate a system for monitoring the operational
status of its equipment.

For quite some time CYC has had systems in place for the monitoring of its stock, and complied
with one of the suggested methods within the code.

Each authority should establish and operate a system for the reporting of faults by the
public. The system should allow for the reporting of emergencies 24 hours per day
each day.

This is also a system that CYC has had in place for quite some time and operates successfully
whilst complying with the code.

Each authority should establish and enforce specific response times for each
maintenance task.

We currently have set response times that are specified in the maintenance contract. These
response times are known to be amongst the most demanding compared to other authorities
across the country.

Each authority should determine the frequency of electrical inspection and testing and
carry out such works at a frequency of not less than once every 6 years.

Routine electrical inspection and testing is not carried out at present. This is an issue for
further consideration to determine the most appropriate frequency and to develop budgets to
fund the works.

The condition of all enclosures, including the general structural condition of lighting
columns, illuminated traffic signposts; feeder pillars etc. should be included on the
operative report at each maintenance visit.

This is carried out whenever maintenance work is undertaken.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 213

New steel lighting columns should, as a minimum, be hot dipped galvanised and the
lighting column manufacturer should give consideration to the application of further
protective coating at the time of manufacture.

This is already undertaken by CYC as a standard specification.

A programme for the maintenance and reapplication of protective coatings for in situ lighting
column or illuminated traffic sign posts should be determine and implemented taking account
of the location, existing protective system and any other environmental factors including
atmospheric conditions.

This is not currently undertaken due to the financial implication but it does have the potential to
extend the maintenance life of current equipment.

A risk assessment strategy for the management of the structural safety of lighting
columns should be developed and implemented and where necessary structural
testing of lighting columns and illuminated traffic sign posts should be carried out. The
asset management systems should include sufficient data as to the location, type and
age of the equipment to allow the risk assessment to be carried out.

The current inventory and asset data now allow the risk assessment to be carried out.
However, there are resource issues associated with structural testing and the number of

replacements that would result and this needs further consideration and financial planning.

Each authority should negotiate a formal service level agreement (SLA) with the
Distribution Network Operator (DNO).

The Council has already entered into this using the trial SLA administered by OFGEM.

Each authority should ensure that their procedures, and those of any contractor, do not
prevent the DNO from meeting agreed performance standards.

The Council works closely with the DNO, and therefore already complies with the
recommendation.

Each authority should consider the use of competitive tendering for highway electrical
maintenance as part of Best Value policy.

Competitive tendering is used for highway electrical maintenance.

Each authority should seek competitively tendered supplies of electricity for its highway
electrical equipment.

Having obtained the accurate inventory then the next stage is to obtain certification of this from
the DNO followed by seeking competitive prices for the supply of electricity.



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 215 Agenda Iltem 14

COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for City 17 July 2006
Strategy and the Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

TENDERS FOR PROVISION OF SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES

Summary

1. To consider tenders received for continuation of most bus services subsidised
by the Council, in either their existing or modified form, and to decide on
appropriate action in respect of the bus services involved.

Background

2. The Council has powers, contained in the Transport Act 1985, to provide
subsidies for bus services where, in its view, there is a transport need that is
currently not being met through commercially operated services. The only
means of providing these services is to offer subsidies for them. Council
Financial Regulations, United Kingdom Statutory Regulations, and European
Union Procurement Regulations govern the way in which such subsidies are
allocated and, amongst other things, limit the length of subsidy contracts to a
maximum of five years. The majority of the Council’s contracts for the
provision of bus services are due to expire at the end of July and August 2006
and tenders were invited earlier this year in accordance with financial
regulations with a view to continuation of the services for a further five year
period.

3.  The majority of the bus services involved are currently provided by First York
and were last revised in September 2004, during the currency of the four year
contracts due to expire shortly. The revisions were made by mutual
agreement between Council Officers and the Company and included several
service improvements made possible by growth in bus use achieved by the
Company across its network of services since 2001. A list of the services
involved (in their current form), the current operator, and an outline description
of each service forms Annex A to this report.

4. Fifteen companies requested tender documents (for a combination of local
bus service and home to school transport services) and bids for all or some of
the services were returned by twelve of them. Seven of the submissions
included bids for one or more local bus service contracts and are considered
in this report. A further tender submission was received after the published



Page 216

closing date and was returned to its sender unopened with an explanation that
it was inadmissible.

Consultation

No specific consultation is required. It was envisaged that the services
provided would only be subject to minor alterations. Subsidised bus services
are continually monitored to ensure that they continue to meet the travel
needs of passengers and are provided in accordance with Council transport
policies which have been the subject of extensive previous public consultation.
Additionally, from time to time, the Council participates in Bus User Surgeries
organised by Bus Users UK, to listen to public views about bus services. The
appropriateness of the existing subsidised supported services will be reviewed
in the context of the Council’s Second Local Transport Plan during the
timeframe of the contracts due to be awarded. Public consultation and
notification will be carried out on any significant changes proposed as an
outcome of this process.

Options

To award contracts for all the services listed in Annex A. This would
substantially exceed the allocated budgets. This is due to significant
increases in most tender prices. This is mainly attributable to bus service
operating costs rising faster than inflation in several successive years.
Confidential Annex B to this report compares existing costs with the cost of the
lowest acceptable bids for each service and includes performance indicators
for the various services and part services involved.

To discontinue support for some services. In order to contain expenditure
within existing budgets, it would be necessary to discontinue support for some
services on the basis of tenders received. It is recognised that this would be a
retrograde step, in the context of Council transport policies. This report,
therefore, makes no suggestions of which services might be at risk of
discontinuation, if this option is pursued.

Not to award any substantive contracts at the present time and negotiate with
the tenderers to seek reductions in costs, and if necessary to carry out further
tendering of services in the future. Members may wish to consider not
awarding any contracts on the basis of the tenders received. In this event, it
would be necessary for officers to negotiate temporary contracts, with existing
suppliers where possible, initially until 25 February 2007, to allow time for the
situation to be examined in more detail. This date is the earliest agreed bus
service change date the Council has with bus companies, which will allow
sufficient time for negotiations to be completed. During this process, there
may be additional expenditure implications or a need to modify contract
specifications in order to make savings. It may be possible to mitigate these
effects by proposed changes to bus services 22 and 23 for reasons outlined in
Annex C to this report. During the period of these extended contracts, officers
would engage with lowest price bidders to explore any opportunities for
savings, which would contain expenditure within budget whilst minimising any
adverse effect on the bus services affected. If this cannot be accomplished,



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 217

tenders would need to be invited afresh, with the aim of encouraging bidders
to become more competitive. A new tender specification would need to be
adopted which maintained the level of service whilst achieving reductions in
cost.

Analysis

In order to contain expenditure within budget it will be necessary to review the
current level and extent of services provided. In the 2006/7 financial year
without negotiation, there would need to be a saving of up to £71,750 in
expenditure. This could potentially have a significant effect on the extent of
the existing network of bus services in the City.

Existing bus service support budgets are fully committed to maintaining
existing subsidised services at current prices. Additional funding would have
to be found from other revenue spending areas, if reductions in bus service
provision are to be avoided. This is unlikely to be easily achieved and would
involve careful analysis during the process of setting the 2007/8 budget.

Extending current contracts and negotiating affordable solutions with tender
bidders, or re-tendering will not necessarily produce the necessary savings to
completely avoid the need for either additional spending or reductions in
services. This course of action may, however, reduce the scale of the
difficulties which the Council faces.

It should be noted that patronage data collected for the subsidised services,
which has been used in this analysis, was collected before the advent of free
Concessionary Travel for those eligible. Consequently, any patronage growth
associated therewith will not be reflected in the analysis.

Corporate Objectives

Providing subsidies to maintain bus services, which would otherwise not exist,
and supplement those services provided commercially by the private sector,
contributes towards the following Council’s Corporate Aims as set out in the
Council Plan for 2005/6. In particular, it contributes towards the “Sustainable
City” and “Inclusive City” strategic objectives in the Community Strategy and
Corporate Aim 1.3 to “make getting around York, easier, more reliable, and
less damaging to the environment”. It also contributes towards achievement
of the objectives embodied in the Council’s Second Local Transport Plan; to
reduce congestion, improve safety, improve air quality, improve accessibility,
and improve other aspects of quality of life.

Implications

Financial

As indicated in paragraphs 6, 9 and Annex B, awarding all contracts to
maintain all existing subsidised bus services would require a substantial

increase in related expenditure. It may be possible to reduce the amount
involved through negotiation and minor changes to contract specifications.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 218

Containment of expenditure may, however require the Council to withdraw
support from selected bus services or parts thereof.

Human Resources (HR)

The proposed negotiations, together with re-tendering (if required) will
necessitate resources within the Transport Planning Unit being re-allocated
away from current priorities.

Equalities

The discontinuation of some bus services would disadvantage some
residents, who are dependent on those services for their mobility and access
to various facilities in the City. The action proposed seeks to minimise this
adverse effect.

Legal

Tenders were invited in accordance with legal requirements. The Council
makes no commitment when tendering to accept the lowest or any tender.
The Transport Act 1985 (Section 91) allows the Council to enter into
emergency agreements to maintain or replace services to meet a requirement
which has arisen unexpectedly, provided tenders are invited as soon as
possible afterwards. It also provides that, where an authority has invited
tenders, but have received none which they consider acceptable, the
authority may enter into a negotiated agreement without inviting further
tenders.

Crime and Disorder

Discontinuation, particularly of evening bus services, may lead to people
needing to walk further to and from their nearest bus stops, or not making
journeys by bus, due to perceived safety risks.

Information Technology (IT)

There are no Information Technology implications for the Council.
Property

There are no property implications for the Council.

Transport

Discontinuation or reduction of bus services, making the overall bus service
offer less attractive, may cause some transfer to car use with a consequent
increase in traffic volumes. The scale of likely transfer is, however, not
forecast to make a material difference to traffic congestion in and around the
City.



22.

23.

Page 219

Risk Management

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score all risks has been
assessed at less than 16. This means that at this point the risks need only be
monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the
objectives of this report. The detailed risk analysis forms Annex D to this

report.

Recommendations

That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member that:

1)  Existing contracts should be extended, or temporary contracts awarded,
for continuation of the following bus services in broadly their current form
until 25 February 2007:

10 (York — Poppletons; weekday evenings)

11 (York — Bishopthorpe; weekday evenings)

11 (York — Bishopthorpe; Sundays & Public Holidays)

12 (York — Acomb Park; weekday evenings)

12 (Haxby — York — Acomb Park; Sundays and Public Holidays)

13 (Monks Cross — York — Copmanthorpe; Sundays and Public
Holidays)

14 (York — Clifton, Green Lane; weekdays)

16, 17, 17A (Clifton Moor — Acomb — Askham Bar/York & Monks
Cross; every day)

20 (Clifton Moor — Haxby — Monks Cross; daily)

21 (Acaster Malbis — Middlethorpe Estate — York; Tuesdays,
Thursdays, and Fridays)

26 (York — Acomb — Askham Bar; weekdays)

128, 129 (Monks Cross — Heworth/Haxby Road & York — University;
Mondays to Fridays)

746 (York — Pocklington; early Monday to Friday morning journey)

C3 (Askham Bryan/Richard — Askham Bar; weekdays)

Reason: To ensure, as far as possible, continuity, in the short term, of
established subsidised bus services, which supplement and complement
the existing network of bus services provided commercially within the



Page 220

City, to form a comprehensive and convenient overall network of services
designed to achieve the LTP and Corporate goals. To enable more
detailed consideration to be given to the issues raised by this report, with
the aim of seeking to minimise any possible adverse longer term
outcomes.

A contract to be awarded for continuation of bus services 22, 23, 27 in the
modified form as proposed in Annex C to this report (reduced weekday
frequency between York & Fulford).

Reason: To reflect recent increases in commercial bus service provision
between York & Fulford and to contribute towards containment of
expenditure within allocated budgets.

The Director of City Strategy should be empowered, in consultation with
the Executive Member, to take appropriate action, guided by the aims
embodied in this report, to respond to any changes in the situation
brought about by commercial bus service registrations, with any such
action reported to a subsequent meeting of this Panel.

Reason: To facilitate a timely response to any unforeseen changes,
which may be made with a minimum of eight week’s notice, to the
network of bus services provided commercially by the private sector.

The Director of City Strategy has delegated authority to negotiate with
the existing tenderers to explore opportunities for savings which would
bring the cost of the service within existing budgets whilst minimising any
adverse effect of the bus services affected.

Reason: To reduce the financial implications and bring the costs within
budget.

The Director of City Strategy has delegated authority to re-tender all or
any of the services where these cannot be delivered within existing
budgets.

Reason: To encourage bidders to become more competitive and ensure
that the best services are provided for future bus services.



Page 221

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Terry Walker Bill Woolley
Public Transport Manager Director of City Strategy

Directorate of City Strategy
Tel. 01904 551403

Report Approved Date 05/07/06

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Financial

Patrick Looker

Finance Manager

City Strategy

Resource & Business Management

Tel No. 01904 551633

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Tenders submitted by bus service operating companies in response to Council
invitation issued March 2006.

Patronage data for existing subsidised bus services supplied by the current
operators.

Sample survey data collected by Council Officers to monitor usage of existing
subsidised bus services.

The Council Plan 2005/6
Annexes

A - Services for which tenders invited

B - Price and performance comparisons (Exempt - By virtue of paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006)

C - Proposed economies in Subsidised Bus Service Provision

D - Assessment of Risks



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223

ANNEX A

City of York Council — Directorate of City Strategy
Tenders for Provision of Subsidised Bus Services

Services for which tenders invited

Bus Current Outline Service Description
Service provider
Number
10 First York Hourly weekday evenings between York and
Poppletons 1915 to 2350
11 First York Hourly weekday evenings (1845 to 2330) and
Sundays/Public Holidays (0800 to 1930) between
York & Bishopthorpe plus Fri/Sat only 2335 Service
22 York to Fulford
12 First York Hourly weekday evenings between York & Acomb
Park 1900 to 2345 and hourly Sundays/Public
Holidays between Haxby & Acomb Park 0725 to 2340
13 First York Hourly Sunday/Public Holidays between Monks Cross
& Copmanthorpe 0850 to 1930
14 First York Hourly between peaks weekday daytime service
between York & Clifton (Green Lane) 0930 to 1500
16,17, 17A First York Half-hourly weekday daytime service between Monks
Cross & Acomb 0620 to 1940 extending hourly
between Acomb & Clifton Moor plus one return
journey between Clifton Moor & York College. Also
hourly Sunday/Public Holidays between Acomb &
Monks Cross 0830 to 1900
20 Door to Door | Hourly daily between Clifton Moor & Monks Cross via
Haxby 0730 (0900 Sunday) to 1900
21 Door to Door Two hourly between peaks Tuesdays, Thursdays &
Fridays between Acaster Malbis & York 0920 to 1650
22,23,27 First York Half-hourly weekday daytime between Fulford and
Skelton/Clifton Moor 0600 to 1945 plus hourly
weekday evenings (1915 to 2340) and
Sundays/Public Holidays (0815 to 2340) between
York & Skelton. Also return journeys between
Heworth and Archbishop Holgate/Fulford Schools and
between Skelton & St. Wilfrid’s School
26 First York Hourly weekday daytime between York & Askham
Bar via Acomb 0720 to 1900
128,129 Top Line Hourly Monday to Friday daytime between Monks
Travel Cross & York University 0700 to 1930 integrated with
Home to School transport between Dunnington &
Fulford School
746 East Yorks Early morning Monday to Friday York to Pocklington
Motor journey.
Services
C3 Door to Door Weekday peak journeys between Askham

Bryan/Richard and Askham Bar integrated with Home
to School transport between Askham Bryan &
Askham Richard and between Copmanthorpe &
Manor School




Page 224



Page 225

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



1.

Page 229

ANNEX C

City of York Council — Directorate of City Strategy
Tenders for Provision of Subsidised Bus Services
Proposed economies in Subsidised Bus Service Provision

Bus Services 22,23,27: This group of services emerged from the
changes agreed with First York in September 2004 and included:
e Reintroduced First York services between York & Fulford
e Improved frequency service to Rawcliffe
e Reintroduced weekday evening & Sunday services to Leeman Road
area, Rawcliffe, and Skelton.
Arriva Yorkshire, which runs mainly commercial services through Fulford,
has questioned the provision of a subsidised service over much of their
route and, with their tender submission, indicated an intention to run a half
hourly service via Heslington Lane and Broadway to eliminate much of the
justification for the supported service. Arriva will increase the frequency of
its main York to Selby service from 31 July 2006 from every 20 minutes to
every 15 minutes through most of the day. The Company has agreed,
however, to continue running the service straight along Fulford Road,
Main Street and Selby Road provided the Council does not provide more
than an hourly frequency service (currently half hourly) via Heslington
Lane and Broadway to Fordlands Road. First York has also recently
increased the frequency of its Service 7 (Designer Outlet Park & Ride)
along this main road route from every 15 minutes to every 10 minutes.
A draft timetable for Services 22, 23 has been prepared to reflect this
situation, with timings co-ordinated with Service 128 to maintain a half
hourly frequency (Monday to Friday) between Broadway and York City
Centre. Two little used journeys from Wheldrake to York, which had been
included in the previous 22, 23 timetable to supplement the main service
from that village, will be lost as part of the changes. These changes would
be proposed, even if there was no need to consider containing
expenditure commitments.
From surveys carried out by the Council, up to about 150 passenger
journeys (24%) on the service, to and from stops on Broadway,
Heslington Lane, and Fordlands Road, could be affected by the reduced
service. Possible subsidy savings have not been discussed with bidders,
but are estimated at £10,000 per annum.

An estimated 50,000 passenger journeys will be affected by the
proposed reduced frequency service for Heslington Lane and
Fordlands Road (plus Broadway on Saturdays) and the loss of through
journeys between Skelton, Clifton Moor and Fulford. Current total
annual passengers for all Council subsidised services is 1,006,000.
This change will therefore affect up to 5% of current subsidised bus
service users.



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 231

City of York Council — Directorate of City Strategy

Tenders for Provision of Subsidised Bus Services
Assessment of Risks

ANNEX D

Risk
Category

Detail

Impact

Likelihood

Score

Governance

Public expectation is for a
comprehensive and
integrated public transport
service. Fragmentation of
provision and reductions in
service detract from these
expectations.

Medium

Certain

15

Strategic

The above factors may lead
to reduced use of bus
services, thereby undermining
pursuit of Corporate Aims.

Low

Certain

10

Physical

People required to walk
further to access bus services
would become more
vulnerable to hazards

Very
Low

Possible

Financial

Reduced use of Council
subsidised bus services could
lead to increased subsidy
costs or further service
discontinuations in the future.

Medium

Probable

12

Competitive

The financial risks referred to
above will reduce the value of
the affected subsidised
services and the City’s public
transport service in general.

Medium

Probable




Page 232

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Science City York:  Future Direction
	Annex A

	6 Proposed improvements to the Moor Lane, Askham Lane & Askham Bryan Lane Junctions on the A1237 York Outer Ring Road
	Annex A
	Annex A1
	Annex B
	Annex C
	Annex D
	Annex E
	Annex F

	7 Public Rights Of Way Œ Proposed Diversion of Part of Public Footpath, York (Dunnington) No9
	Annex 1

	8 Public Rights Of Way Œ Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath, York (Murton) No4
	Annex 1

	9 City Strategy Capital Programme 2006/07 - Consolidated to include Carry-Overs from 2005/06
	Annex 1
	Annex 2

	10 Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Orders
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C
	Annex D

	11 Automatic Teller Machine (ATM) Defensible Space
	Annex A

	12 Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance
	Annex 1

	13 Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management
	Annex 1

	14 Tenders for Provision of Subsidised Bus Services
	Annex A
	Annex B EXEMPT
	Annex C
	Annex D


